
6:30 I CALL TO ORDER

6:30 II PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

6:35 III APPROVAL OF AGENDA

6:35 IV

A.

B.

C.

D.

E.

F.

G.

H.

6:40 V OPEN FORUM 

VI I.

6:45 VII STAFF, CONSULTANT AND COUNCIL UPDATES

VIII COUNCIL BUSINESS

New Business

7:00 J.

7:10 K.

7:20 L.

Action Items 

7:40 M. 

Public Hearing 
7:50 N.

8:00 IX ADJOURNMENT

Fire study introduction by BKV 

Pinning of Firefighter Greg Petersen 

AGENDA

CITY OF DAYTON, MINNESOTA

12260 So. Diamond Lake Road, Dayton, MN 55327

Tuesday, April 23, 2019

Approval of Resolution 26-2019; Contribution to the Dayton Fire Relief Association 

Approval of Council Meeting Minutes of April 09, 2019

Approval of Payment of Claims for April 23, 2019

The City of Dayton's mission is to promote a thriving community and to provide residents with a safe and 

pleasant place to live while preserving our rural character, creating connections to our natural resources, 

and providing customer service that is efficient, fiscally responsible, and responsive.

REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL - 6:30 P.M.

is limited to 3 minutes for non-agenda items; state your name and 

address; No Council Action will be taken and items will be referred back 

to staff

Final Audit Presentation 

Approval of Strategic Plan

Approval of Large Assembly Application for 2019 Car Show

Approval of RFP for the Activity Center

Approval of Activity Coordinator Job Description and Approval to Post for the 

Position 

These routine or previously discussed items are enacted with 

one motion

CONSENT AGENDA 

Kevin Astrup with the Dayton Fire Relief Association- Presentation 

Approval of Replacing the Roof at City Hall

Approval of Wellhead Protection Plan

Approving Plans and Specs and Authorization to go out for Bids on the NW Well
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A work session was held to discuss the large assembly and special events permitting 
process. Goodroad presented that we have a current Ordinance, and staff has been 
wanting to convert it to a special event Ordinance, and is looking for guidance from 
Council.  With summer approaching, we will have a few events that may require City 
involvement, and historically City involvement has meant different things. We need to 
decide if the farmers market would be a City event, and for City events, we would need 
to provide insurance. For Heritage Day, the City has not required a deposit for the 
Activity Center, however this will need to be reconsidered due to the building being left 
unclean last year. Benting presented that a lot of people are asking for forgiveness of 
fees since Heritage Day has not been required to pay fees. This carries over to other 
events such as Bunce Productions. Enga shared that moving to a special event permit 
would cover races, parades, etcetera, and we would be more in control of the use of 
roads and other details. O’Brien stated that other Cities require that the event holders 
hire the police on a part-time basis. O’Brien asked Enga if there are any pros to keeping 
the current Ordinance. Enga responded that with more events expected in the future, 
moving to a special event Ordinance would be the preference. The EDA would like to 
see the farmer’s market happen, and use their funds to cover advertising and paid 
volunteers to run the event. There is also a car show that occurs in the same area, so it 
raises the question about insurance coverage. Goodroad is looking for clarity from 
Council as to what they want to see happen with these events. Shawn Luther, a founder 
of the car show stated that they have insurance in place and an agreement from the 
property owner. He does not want anyone to think there has to be an overlap with the 
farmers market. Benting shared that if a farmer’s market is held at the same location, 
the City would have liability. Mellberg asked Huttner if he could report to the Council on 
the success of the farmer’s market. Huttner speculated that the person organizing the 
event should be able to provide that information for Council. 
Work session ended at 6:21 p.m.  
 
Mayor McNeil called the public meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  
PRESENT: Mayor Tim McNeil, Bob O’Brien, Dennis Fisher, Julie Gustafson (via Skype) 
and Jon Mellberg 
ABSENT:  
ALSO PRESENT: Police Chief Paul Enga, Public Works Supervisor Marty Farrell, 
Engineer Jason Quisberg, City Administrator/Development Director Tina Goodroad, and 
Deputy Clerk Stacie Brown  
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  
 
MOTION: Motion was made by Councilmember O’Brien, seconded by Councilmember 
Fisher to approve the agenda items, as amended.     
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
CONSENT ITEMS: 
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A. Approval of Council Meeting Minutes of March 26, 2019 
B. Approval of Payment of Claims for April 9, 2019 
C. Approval of Resolution 23-2019; Approving 2018 Year-end Transfers 
D. Ord 2019-05; Amending City Code 130.21; Sexual Offenders and Sexual 

Predators 
E. Amendment to Brayburn Trails Developers Agreement and Letter of Credit 

Reduction for Brayburn Trails First Addition 
F. Approval of Spring and Fall 2019 Street Sweeping 

 
MOTION:  Motion was made by Councilmember O’Brien, seconded by Councilmember 
Fisher, to approve the Consent Items.  
The motion carries unanimously. 
 

Mellberg asked for confirmation on item C. Goodroad confirmed that these are all very 
specific transfers based on the CIP. There are also certain account closures as a result 
of the audit. 
 

Mellberg inquired on the cost of street sweeping. Farrell estimated approximately 
$25,000 for the two sets of sweeping. O’Brien inquired if there is a point where we 
would look at purchasing a street sweeper. Farrell responded that he has a street 
sweeper in the CIP for 2021. 
 
Mayor McNeil opened the Open Forum at 6:35 p.m.; no one came forward    
 
Staff Updates:    
Goodroad – Would like to schedule another work session to review final plans of the 
interchange financing on Monday, April 29 at 5:30 pm with SRF. We would also like to 
schedule an open house in early May, with a focus at the beginning on property owners 
affected by the interchange. The Council agreed to May 9th. In mid-May, Goodroad 
would like to have a meeting on the 429 Process, and would like for the entire Council 
to be present. This would be a work session with the property owners affected by the 
429 Process. The Council agreed to May 30. We need to resolve the community solar 
Ordinance. It was suggested that this be a joint meeting with the Planning Commission.  
Goodroad asked if this could be scheduled for the same evening as the next Planning 
Commission meeting – May 2nd. Council was open to this date. Goodroad will look at 
the schedule and confirm a time. 
 
An email was sent to Council today suggesting that we stop issuance of permits for a 
developer who does not want to pay his escrow balance. The builder has been made 
aware that this is something the Council will be considering. McNeil explained that these 
are charges that the City has paid, and the question is whether the burden should be 
put on the general taxpayer by giving the developer a discount. Council briefly 
discussed the charges being questioned by the developer. Goodroad explained that the 
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City has experienced issues with dewatering in the past, so the charges are justified. 
Council agreed with holding permits for this development. 
 
Farrell – There is an unforeseen situation in the water tower; there has been a delay 
due to ice that was not visible until the water was drained. The pump was found to be in 
poor condition, and will need to be replaced. A new pump will be installed the middle of 
next week. Hopefully we will be back running on our own system by April 15. The 
surface and sub-structure of Zanzibar Lane has seriously degraded, and had to be 
closed. Rock has been put in place to make it passable, but with a storm coming later 
this week, it may degrade again. O’Brien stressed that any cost put into temporary 
repairs is wasteful. McNeil stated that Council has given direction to Quisberg to explore 
paving the road and provide a report.   
 
Enga – We have had some maintenance issues with vehicles recently. Hopefully the 
flooding has subsided. He has monitored the river gauges recently, and documented 
the levels in Rockford and Delano. Calls have been received from a few residents 
regarding sand bagging. We will come up with policies at a staff level of how we want to 
handle these situations and bring them to Council. 
 
Quisberg – Staff received contact from Connexus Energy regarding an extension of 
electrical service along 117th to serve the Brayburn Trails development and future 
development in the area. We asked Connexus about burying the line as our Ordinance 
dictates. Their response was that this will be a main feeder line, and therefore exempt 
from the requirement to bury. They stated that it will be installed overhead, and if the 
choice is made to bury it, the City or someone other than Connexus is responsible for 
that cost. The estimated cost would be around $105,000 for the area that abuts the 
Brayburn Trails development, and approximately $136,000 for the area from Fernbrook 
to the east side of Brayburn. Our Ordinance does allow for above-ground lines.  
Gustafson inquired if Connexus is responsible for the line in the air if it is damaged or 
falls. Quisberg responded yes; it is their facility, so it’s their responsibility. Goodroad 
explained that it is an aesthetic concern the developer (Excelsior Group) as well, so 
there may be room for some cost sharing on the area outside of their plat boundary. 
McNeil would like to see the Ordinance changed and work with Brayburn to see what 
can be done about sharing cost. 
 
Mellberg- Had a starter meeting regarding a possible paddle share program; and we 
will be reaching out to neighboring cities to discuss involvement.  He also enjoyed being 
a part of the aesthetic committee for the bridge. We are looking at a couple of historical 
properties, and the prospect of looking at these sites qualifying for a grant or on the 
historic register. 
 
McNeil- Tomorrow there will be a guest speaker from the DNR at the Northwest 
Hennepin League of Municipalities updating on grants that may be available. Also, he 
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recently spent some time with representatives from the Mississippi River Cities and 
Towns Initiative discussing some issues they are working on.   
 
Gustafson – Attended a couple of open houses on the Parade of Homes; there were 
some very nice layouts, and there are great opportunities for people to live in Dayton. 
 
COUNCIL BUSINESS: 
New Business: 

       
G. SW Dayton Corridor Study – Presentation by SRF Consulting 

Matt Pacyna of SRF shared a presentation regarding the corridor study. The 
presentation included a background on the study, sub-area study framework, corridor 
study area/goals, the general system configuration, corridor refinements, and 
preliminary options. He also shared alternative alignment options for a future city center 
and northern segments.   

 
Fisher inquired about concern over Hennepin County’s preferences; McNeil stated that 
the concern comes in the potential for the road to become a County facility. 
 
Nicole Schlepp of SRF presented some high-level concept plans based on the 
approach of being respectful of the natural system and wetland. She shared an example 
from Ramsey, which allows for a high density of housing. She also presented examples 
from Burnsville and Maple Grove of their city centers and main streets, and concept 
plans for Dayton. Goodroad stressed that Council should not get hung up on which of 
these concept plans is best; this is more about thinking about the road system relative 
to future land use. 
 
Pacyna reviewed next steps for the corridor study, which should be wrapped up over 
the next month. Goodroad explained that the information in the corridor study will be 
rolled into the transportation plan and become the narrative for the chapter.   
 

H. Dayton Parkway Interchange Bridge Aesthetic and Landscaping – 
Presentation by SRF Consulting 

Goodroad shared that a series of meetings have been held with the Aesthetic 
Committee regarding the bridge design. Michael Jischke of SRF came forward and 
presented the final three options chosen by the Committee, as well as one additional 
option incorporating feedback from the Committee. Slides were shared of the various 
options for structure, colors and textures. Dave Montebello of SRF stated that the goal 
tonight is deciding on the structural aspects/shapes more than the textures and colors 
(limestone vs. fieldstone, etc.). 

  
The Council concurred with option B, as recommended by the Committee. 
 

I. Review Strategic Plan 
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Goodroad presented that on March 1st, the Council participated in an extended goal 
setting session. Staff has since aligned the action steps and year for each of these 
goals. The results of this plan are included in tonight’s packet. O’Brien pointed out that 
the discussion about senior needs was not included in this report. Goodroad 
acknowledged that can definitely be added. Staff had it included on the immediate list 
due to the need to hire a coordinator for the Activity Center in the near future. She will 
bring it back at the April 23 Council meeting. O’Brien wants to be sure this is not 
forgotten. 

 

J. Discussion – MnDOT Deer Composting Site 
Quisberg presented that MnDOT has a deer composting site that will be displaced by 
the interchange. A one-acre area is needed to use in place of this. Gustafson inquired if 
we are required to provide this. Goodroad responded that we are being strongly 
encouraged to do this. Quisberg displayed a possible area which could be considered.  
Fisher inquired if we would donate this land; Goodroad responded that we would 
dedicate this as a perpetual easement. However, Quisberg added that there are issues 
to work through with this. The cost would be $100,000 or more to prepare this site.  
MnDOT may be willing to contribute to this. We are asking for the Council’s thoughts on 
whether we should continue to explore this option.  
 
Mellberg speculated that MnDOT may have other options. Quisberg explained that his 
view is that our project is displacing their site, so the thought is that Dayton should 
provide a new location. Goodroad has told MnDOT that there will be no funding 
available from the City for this site, even if we consider this new location. 
  
ADJOURNMENT:     
MOTION: Motion was made by Councilmember Mellberg, seconded by Councilmember 
O’Brien to adjourn at 9:13 p.m.   
Motion carries unanimously. 
 
 
 
Approved: __________________                               Attest: Stacie Brown     



























RESOLUTION 26-2019 

RESOLUTION DAYTON FIRE RELIEF ASSOCIATION REQUESTING 
BUDGETED FUNDS OF $15,000.00 

 
 WHEREAS, The City of Dayton has approved the 2019 annual budget; and 
 
 WHEREAS, The annual budget includes budgeted funds of $15,000.00 to the Dayton Fire Relief   
Association; and 
 
 WHEREAS The Dayton Fire Relief Association is requesting these funds; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED The City Council finds that it is appropriate to 
distribute the funds as approved in the 2019 Budget.  
 
  
  
 
 Adopted this 23rd day of April 2019 by the City Council of the City of Dayton 
 
 
 
Motion made by Councilmember **, seconded by Councilmember **   
Motion carried unanimously   
 
 
 
            ____________________________________ 
       Mayor – Tim McNeil 
 
 
            
____________________________________ 
City Clerk – Amy Benting  



  Meeting Date: 04-23-2019 
  Item Number: D 

 

PRESENTER: Marty Farrell 

 

ITEM:  Approve the Request for Proposal on Activity Center Upgrades  

 

PREPARED BY: Marty Farrell 

 

POLICY DECISION / ACTION TO BE CONSIDERED: Approve the Request for Proposal on 

Activity Center Upgrades 

 

BACKGROUND:  Staff has been asked to make improvements to the Activity Center, which has 

not had any major renovations in many years. In fall of 2018 staff, after consulting with 

Hennepin County Public Health Department, provided an initial scope of work and bid for 

restoration and installation of a commercial grade kitchen as required by Hennepin County for 

food preparation and service. The bid came in at $290,000, after discussion with the council, 

staff was directed to revise the scope of work and re- bid the project as a service only kitchen 

which allowed us to remove some of the more expensive items required for the commercial 

kitchen.   

 

Subsequently, staff has been asked to prepare a request for proposal to make improvements to 

the Activity Center and to include a service only kitchen. This means that there will be no 

equipment for preparation of cooking the food on the premises.  It will only be equipped for 

meals to be catered in and served. 

 

CRITICAL ISSUES:  N/A 

 

BUDGET IMPACT: Cost included in the CIP budget for 2019 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the Request for Proposal for Activity Center Upgrades 

 

ATTACHMENT(S):  Activity Center Request for Proposal 

 



 

 

 

 

Request for Proposal 

Activity Center Upgrades 

18461 Dayton Street, Dayton, MN 55327 

 

 

 

 

 



Background 

The City of Dayton is refurbishing its existing Activity Center, the building has not seen any 

major improvements since it was built in the 1980’s. We are considering making changes in the 

kitchen area, the main dining/activity area, bathrooms and the office. We are looking to get bids 

for plumbing, electrical, floor coverings, painting, HVAC, framing and sheetrock.  

Estimated Start Date 

The anticipated start date for the project is late Spring early Summer 2019.  

Bid Requirements 

• Sealed Bid Proposals for work will be received at the City of Dayton Offices, 12260 S. 

Diamond Lake Road, Dayton, Minnesota 55327-9655, until 11:00 a.m. on May 24th, 

2019, after which times such bids will be publicly opened and read aloud by the Public 

Works Director at the Dayton City Hall. 

• All Contractors submitting bids must have appropriate licenses, insurance and bond 

where necessary. 

• Contractors should submit plans and specifications with their bid documentation. 

• Contractors wishing to view project site for the purpose of measurement, confirmation of 

existing conditions should contact, Kelsey Montgomery at 763-427-3224 or email 

kmontgomery@cityofdaytonmn.com to schedule an appointment. 

 

mailto:kmontgomery@cityofdaytonmn.com


Statement of Work 

 

 

 

 

nued  

 

 

Plumbing 

Kitchen 

• Install Three compartment sink with faucet 

• Install Prep sink with faucet 

• Install Hand sink with faucet 

• Install Mop sink with faucet 

• Disconnect gas cooker and cap gas connection.  

• State plan approval and permit fees.  

• Include costs for removal and disposal of old 

equipment etc. 

Main Room 

N/A 

Office Space 

N/A 

Bathrooms 

• Demo existing toilets. 

• Install 4 new ADA compliant gravity flush toilets 

• Install 2 new urinals with flush valve 

• Install 4 new wall hung sinks with auto faucets 

• Install 2 new floor drain covers 

• Remove and cap drinking fountain 

 

Electrical 

Kitchen 
 

• Replace 6 outlets to GFI outlets 

• Replace fluorescent 2x4 fixtures with LEDs 

• Replace existing switches 

• Replace exit/emergency light 

 
Main Room 
 

• Replace bulbs in 19x 2x4 fluorescent tubes with 
LEDs 

• Replace 1 Exit/Emergency light 

• (Storage Room) Replace fluorescent 2x4 fixtures with 
LEDs 

• Recycle all fluorescent bulbs 

 
Office Space 
 
N/A 

 
Bathrooms 
 

• Replace fluorescent bulbs in 2x4 fluorescent fixtures 
with LEDs 

• Replace GFI receptacle 

• Replace switches 

• Rewire rooftop exhaust fan 

HVAC  

Option 1- 

(Review Fire Station 1 HVAC Requirements) 

General 

• Install all exhaust duct work complete with grilles 

• Install power roof ventilator for the purpose of bath 

room exhaust 

• Upgrade thermostats 

Kitchen 

Main Room 

Office Space 

Bathrooms 

 

Floor Coverings 

Kitchen 

• Contractor to confirm quantities of quarry tile 

Main Room 

• Contractor to confirm quantities of vinyl planking or 

equivalent  

• Contractor to confirm quantities of quarry tile in pass 

through area 

Office Space 

• Contractor to confirm quantities of vinyl planking or 

equivalent 

Bathrooms 

• Contractor to confirm quantities of ceramic tile or 

contractor recommended product 

 



Continued Statement of Work 

Painting 

Kitchen 

• All walls in appropriate paint product colors TBD 

Main Room 

• All walls in appropriate paint product colors TBD 

Office Space 

• All walls in appropriate paint product colors TBD 

Bathrooms 

• All walls in appropriate paint product colors TBD 

 

General 

Kitchen 

• Demo kitchen floors, cabinets, ceiling tile. 

• Remove and salvage existing hood. 

• Cut and jackhammer concrete for plumbing 

• Pour new concrete, finish and smooth 

• Frame wall for new plumbing 

• Sheetrock, tape and sand smooth 

• Supply and install 12” x 16” stainless steel shelving 

above sinks on plumbing wall 

• Provide and install stainless steel table around 3 

compartment sink, hand sink and prep sink on back 

wall 

• Install FRP on walls 

• Install washable ceiling tiles 

• Install quartz counter top for pass through area 

• Install kitchen cabinets below quartz countertops at 

serving pass through. 

Main Room 

N/A 

Office Space 

• Frame in office space 

• Sheet rock, tape and sand smooth 

Bathrooms 

• Remove flooring in bathrooms 

• Remove bathroom fixtures (partitions, toilets, urinal 

and sinks) 

• Option 1 Tile shower walls in both bathrooms 

• Install shower curtains 

• Install new bathroom partitions that are ADA compliant 

in both bathrooms 

 



  Meeting Date: 04-23-2019 
  Item Number: E 

 

PRESENTER: Marty Farrell 

 

ITEM: Replacement of Roof at City Hall 

 

PREPARED BY: Marty Farrell 

 

POLICY DECISION / ACTION TO BE CONSIDERED: Approval of proposal from Horizon 

Roofing at $68,008 

 

BACKGROUND: The roof on this facility was repaired in 2011, since that time the rubber roof 

membrane has perished and is no longer repairable. Staff has experienced numerous leaks in 

the Council Chambers, the main office area as well as the old Police Department that is being 

used by Engineering. 

 

I have only reached out to 1 contractor for this work as they did the work on the Activity Centre 

roof last year, they were the most competitively priced and did the job efficiently on price and on 

time. 

 

CRITICAL ISSUES:  N/A 

 

BUDGET IMPACT: Total base bid cost is $68,008. The number budgeted in the 2019 CIP for 

this project is $73,000, a saving of nearly $5,000. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve proposal from Horizon Roofing totaling $68,008 

 

ATTACHMENT(S):  Proposal from Horizon Roofing 
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  Meeting Date: 4-23-19 
  Item: F 

 

ITEM: 

 

Approval of Strategic Plan 

 

PREPARED BY:  

 

Tina Goodroad, City Administrator/Development Director 

 

POLICY DECISION / ACTION TO BE CONSIDERED: 

 

Consider approval of the Strategic Plan 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

On March 1st the City Council participated in an extended goal setting work session.  During this 

time we identified future goals and action steps for the next two years, five years and ten years.  

Staff has assembled a draft strategic plan document that includes summary of the work session 

and final draft goal statements and action items. At the April 9th meeting the council requested 

goals and action items related to the senior needs study.  This has been added along with a 

couple additional action items under parks/trails.  

 

CRITICAL ISSUES: 

 

There are no outstanding issues. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Staff recommends approval of the Strategic Plan 

 

ATTACHMENT(S):  

 

Strategic Plan 

 



CITY COUNCIL STRATEGIC PLAN 
2019 – 2020  
 

  

Photo Credit: © 2017 Phillip Forseth 
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Introduction   
The City Council and Department heads met for an extended work session on March 1, 2019 to set for a strategic plan for 
the next two years, five years and 10-years. This plan will be reviewed and updated annually. This work session was a 
productive discussion with everyone working together to set a positive direction for the future of Dayton and identify what 
steps are needed to fulfill this plan.  

 

Participants 
Mayor and City Council 
Tim McNeil, Mayor 

Bob O’Brien, Councilmember 

Jon Mellberg, Councilmember 

Julie Gustafson, Councilmember 

Dennis Fisher, Councilmember 

 

City Staff 
Tina Goodroad, City Administrator 

Paul Enga, Chief of Police 

Amy Benting, City Clerk 

Alec Henderson, Associate Planner 

 

Consultants 
Jason Quisberg, Wenck Associates, City Engineer 

 

Work Session Guidance 
To prepare for discussion the Participants were asked to envision Dayton in the year 2040, when approximately 18% of the City 
could be developed. What will Dayton look like and what will you be able to do in Dayton? 

 

The following three pages are a brief synopsis of responses logged during the work session:  
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What should the community look like?  

 Mostly homes 

 A concentrated industrial section in the south 
(heavily screened) with a budding (but not too big) 
commercial/retail space 

 Work force housing should have some 100-300 
more units (preferably, again in the south) as well as 
senior housing 

 New large, community park with the needed 
playfields 

 Park with a splash pad 

 A new southern fire station and a new city hall  

 Some kind of public transit connecting population to 
retail and community focal points  

 We will still have horses at this point in time, so will 
need horse trails connecting rural areas in Dayton 

 More “rural” areas preserved. 

 Trails connecting all of the parks. Neighborhood 
based retail-food, gas and other needs such as 
medical clinics. 
 

 Opportunity for all businesses such as office and 
small manufacturing.  Well-developed Industrial area 
that serves Dayton and has transportation to 
freeways and local roadways 
 

 Affordable housing (including multi-housing) for all 
but adequate senior housing.  Mixed of densities 

 A town center 

What can you do in Dayton? 

 LOTS of river and park amenities. Honestly, not a lot 
of shopping though 

 Horse riding, snowmobiling, trap shooting, river 
activities (canoe, kayak, etc. with access to food 
along the way.  Probably camping too).  Farm to 
table restaurant, high end fast food (Chipotle, 
Walbergers, etc.), higher end grocery (Hy-Vee, 
Whole Foods, etc).  Entertainment like a Lookout 
(volleyball, live music)  

 Music in the park series (or movie in the park), 
farmers market, parks for organized sports (CDAA)  

 Park and Ride near Dayton Parkway (hopefully as a 
hub for our local transportation)   

 Go for long walks on the various trails alongside the 
river 

 As far as commercial enterprises, possibly things 
you CAN’T do in neighboring cities  
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 Rent a kayak or canoe or tube to go down the river 
from one park to another. You can climb a tower and 
hope to see the eagles on the river. Hire a guide to 
do a nature walk or do guided fishing on the river  

 Ride your bike or walk on connected trails to Elm 
Creek Park Reserve. You can eat breakfast and 

grab a cup of coffee with a friend, you can shop at a 
cute local place next to the restaurant. You can fly 
your kite in the park by the river (Stephens Farm). It 
should be a great place to spend a few hours with 
your kids 

 

City Council was asked about what would be the most important services to improve: 

 Communication- city wide 

 High Speed Internet Access 

 Combine parks that aren’t practical 

 River access, equipment rental to use the river, an 
excursion company that makes it seem like a good 
idea to be out there 

 Water- supply, storage and treatment 

 Roads 

City Council was asked what are some of Dayton’s Greatest Strengths/Opportunities? 

 Still undeveloped; one of the few places convenient 
to the Metro that still has open land. 

 The Rivers 

 Elm Creek preserve 

 Outdoor recreation opportunities   

 Open land near the freeway/Dayton Parkway 
Interchange 

 Our Residents; we are a friendly community where 
people are always willing to help 

  
 Great housing and our transportation will be greatly 

improved with the Dayton Parkway   
 

 Wild life (corridors) 

 Mixture of high- and low-density housing 

 Work for what the resident’s want 

 Expanding the draw to the river and giving people a 
reason to go there and enjoy 
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Word Cloud Showing Frequencies of Key Phrases 
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MISSION AND STRATEGIC INITIATIVES 
Our mission and initiatives endeavor to make lasting, positive impacts to our City which benefit all residents, present and future.  

The City Council chose to modify slightly the City of Dayton’s Mission Statement and to include key phrases which outline important 
initiatives moving forward.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

The City of Dayton's Mission:
• To promote a thriving community 

and to provide residents with a safe 
and pleasant place to live while 
preserving our rural character and 
creating connections to our natural 
resources. 

Strategic initiatives:
• Build Quality Infrastructure
• Encourage Quality Housing and 

Commercial/Industrial Business 
Growth

• Maintain and Grow a Robust Park & 
Trail System

• Enhance Our Connections to the 
Natural Environment

• Foster a Safe Community
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CORE VALUES:  
Our values guide how the City, as a municipal organization, does business. City Staff believes the following values accurately guides 
how our organization operates on a day to day basis.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

Quality 
Customer 
Service

We believe that 
high quality and 

responsive 
custromer 
service is 

deserved by our 
residents, 

businesses, and 
all who interact 
with the City.

Fiscally 
Responsible

We believe that 
prudent 

stewardship 
and investment 
of public funds 
is essential to 

position the City 
for future 
success.

Community 
Safety

We will protect 
the community 
by  providing 
quality police 

and fire 
protection and 

by investing and 
maintaining 

infrastructure

Transparency

We believe in 
open and 

honest 
communication 
with residents.  
We will seek 

ways to 
continue to 

increase 
opportunities to 

educate and 
receive 

feedback

Responsible 
Decision 
Making

We believe it is 
the 

responsibility of 
the City to 

address diffficult 
issues now and 
create informed 

plans be well 
prepared for the 

future
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GOALS 
The City Council, with assistance and collaboration with staff and consultants, developed the following lists of goals as well as action 
steps and timelines to reach those goals in the short and long term.  
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GOAL 2019-2020: Actions Five Years: Actions Ten Years: Action

Provide a safe and reliable 
water supply 

 North East Well installation 
 Additional water treatment 

improvements 
 

 Develop a water treatment 
facility 

 South Water Tower and Well 

Develop comprehensive 
transportation plan and 

finance mechanisms 

 Local transportation Improvements 
– construction and maintenance 
o Construction of Dayton Parkway 

Interchange 
o Completion of Transportation 

Corridor Study/Transportation 
element of Comp Plan 

o Pineview Lane/Oakview Lane 
Reconstruction 

o Zanzibar Lane 
 Adoption of Franchise Fee 

Ordinance for Transportation 
Improvements and Pavement 
Management 

 Completion of Parkway Design 
Standards 
 

 Park & Ride Facility at Dayton 
Parkway 

 Continued Local 
Transportation improvements 
based on progress of 
development and CIP 

 Continued Local 
Transportation improvements 
based on progress of 
development and CIP 

Create an Age‐Friendly 
Dayton to better serve an 

aging populace.  

 Continue to engage with local 
seniors during long-range planning 
processes and other community 
engagement opportunities. 

 Explore creation of a bus/ 
transportation system for senior and 
handicapped residents (work with 
volunteers, neighboring cities, 
and/or the Met Council 

 Hire an Activity Center Coordinator 
that will organize social events and 
activities for seniors. 

 Create plans and work with 
developers to encourage 
affordable senior housing 
options.  

 Become recognized as, an 
Age-Friendly Community by 
the AARP and adopt an Age-
Friendly Action Plan 
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GOAL 2019-2020: Actions Five Years: Actions Ten Years: Action 

Create a connected park and 
trail system with year‐round 
recreation and opportunities 
for residents to connect with 

nature 

 Implement a Kayak Rental Facility 
 Completion of Activity Center 

Upgrades and hiring of Activity 
Center Coordinator 

 Three Rivers Park District (TRPD) 
Corridor study (identify needs and 
cost of ROW) 

 Prepare a Stephens Farm 
Implementation Priority/Funding 
Plan (CIP) 

 Construction of Elm Creek Park 
access points (Rush Creek Pkwy; 
Co. Rd. 121) 

 Acquire or accept donation of land 
for community park 

 Develop a tree farm for use at city 
parks and parkways 

 Create a legacy donation request 
letter to mail to large land owners

 Construction of Stephens 
Farm amenities based on CIP 

 Explore purchase of lakeside 
park land (French Lake, 
Dimond Lake) 

 West Mississippi Regional 
Trail on Dayton River Road 
(Construction of Segments) 

 Continue construction of 
Stephens Farm amenities 
based on CIP 

 All residents access by foot to 
Elm Creek Park Reserve (trail 
construction) 

 Park Referendum 
 Continued city-wide trail 

development 

Work Collaboratively with 
others to create a variety of 
housing options for all ages 

and stages of life 

 
 Review lot sizes for Residential 

(implementation of Comp Plan) 
 Zoning regulations that allow large 

lots (home business, accessory, 
housing units, age in place) 

 Affordable Housing Efforts 

 
 Collaborate with interest 

groups for Development of 
Affordable Senior Housing 

 
 Funding mechanism for 

manufactured home park unit 
improvements 

 

  



Strategic Plan 2019 ꞏ City of Dayton, Minnesota 

10 
 

GOAL 2019-2020: Actions Five Years: Actions Ten Years: Action

Increase economic growth and 
development to encourage 

services and job growth in the 
community 

 Complete market study for 
southwest Dayton 

 Solicit commercial users (possible 
convenience store) for SW and NE 
Dayton) 

 Explore funding mechanisms 
(internal and external) to support 
local business expansion 

 Partner with business to seek 
county and state business 
assistance resources – initiated by 
businesses and City assisted 
through State Grant allocations 

 Redevelopment at Co. Rd. 81 
and new development 
(economic development 
strategy) in SW Dayton 

 Continued redevelopment 
along Highway 81 

 New Industrial/Commercial 
Development 

 Prepare redevelopment study 
for Historic Village 

 Purchase of homes in flood 
plain (3) 

Communicate Transparently 
and Effectively 

 Adopt a formalized City 
Communication Plan including a 
Social Media Plan and Policy 

 Improve and Promote Website 
Capabilities and Information 

 Implement high speed internet 
solution 

 Create and Manage Social 
media (e.g. City Facebook 
Page, etc.) 

 

Improve and Sustain High 
Employee Morale 

 Update Personnel Policies 
 Complete classification and 

compensation study 

 Develop a staff recognition 
program 

 Create a City Employee 
Wellness program 
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GOAL 2019-2020: Actions Five Years: Actions Ten Years: Action

Prepare Plan for Public 
Facilities Needs to Meet City’s 

Growth  

 Review and update as necessary, 
the 2009 Facilities Needs study 

 Complete Fire Service Needs 
Assessment 

 Update Capital Facilities Plan 
annually and budget 
appropriately for facility needs 

 

Increase City’s Fiscal Strength 
 Create Wetland Bank to sell credits 
 Annually evaluate and update the 

Budget, Development Revenue 
Forecast and Long-Term Plan 

 Annually evaluate and update all 
rate studies and fee schedules

 Explore options for city wide 
fees for storm water, recycling 
and street lighting 
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  Meeting Date: 08-09-2018 
  Item Number: G 

 

 

ITEM: 

 

2019 car show large assembly permit  

 

PREPARED BY:  

 

Amy Benting, City Clerk 

 

POLICY DECISION / ACTION TO BE CONSIDERED: 

 

Approving the 2019 large assembly permit application once insurance is submitted  

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

During the last work session staff discussed with Council the need to change the way we issue 

large assembly permits and go toward a special event permit, until we get this new process in 

place the car show would like approval for the 2019 season.  

 

CRITICAL ISSUES: 

 

Some issues in the past have been parking and this has been resolved by the car show 

applicants. Chief Enga will continue to monitor for additional needs in the future.  

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Approval of large assembly application with proof of insurance requirements  

 

ATTACHMENT(S):  

 

2019 car show large assembly application  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 













  Meeting Date:4-23-19 
  Item: H 

 

ITEM: 

 

Approval of Activity Coordinator Job Description  

 

PREPARED BY:  

 

Tina Goodroad, City Administrator/Development Director 

 

POLICY DECISION / ACTION TO BE CONSIDERED: 

 

Consider approval of job description and posting of position. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The 2019 budget includes hiring for an Activity Coordinator position.  A new job description has 

been prepared with essential functions focused on creating events, activities, outings and 

educational events for seniors, youth and families.  The purpose of including youth and families 

is to eventually evolve this position into future first park and recreation position that can be 

expanded to full time (future) to meet needs of all residents.  This position would also manage 

rental of the activity center.  

 

The initial focus will be implementing new programs for seniors using the Senior Needs 

Assessment as a platform.  This will include using the activity center for variety of events 

catered to seniors while also working with other senior groups in nearby communities for 

outings, etc.  We would also like to see new events that cater to youth and families that are not 

covered by the CDAA such a T-ball program.   

 

With the approval of this description staff intends to post the position as part time at a Grade 1, 

Step 1.  With a mid-year hiring this year staff anticipates keeping this position as part time in 

2020 with the hopes that through program and participation growth we can move this potion to 

full time in 2021.   

 

CRITICAL ISSUES: 

 

There are no outstanding issues. 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO COUNCIL GOALS: 

 

The hiring of an Activity Center Coordinator fulfills the action item under the new goal to Create 
an Age-Friendly Dayton to better serve an aging populace.   
 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Staff recommends approval of the Activity Center Coordinator and posting of the position.  
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ATTACHMENT(S):  

 

Activity Center Job Description 

 



CITY OF DAYTON 
POSITION DESCRIPTION 

 
Position Title: Activity Center Coordinator  FLSA Status: Non-Exempt 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
POSITION OBJECTIVE 
Responsible for developing, organizing, coordinating and supervising the activity center; planning and 
scheduling educational and recreational programs for seniors, youth and families.  
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
Activity Center  
Coordinates use of the Dayton Activity Center, with the primary goal of serving the social and 
recreational needs of area seniors, youth and families and maximizing the use of the Center for other 
recreational and rental uses. 
 Responsible for managing rental of the activity center building; city parks, and playing fields. 
 Schedules activities and events throughout the year for seniors including social (including with other 

senior groups), recreational, educational, speakers, and assist in finding senior resources, etc.  
 Assist preparation of grants for park, trail, recreation and senior activities.  
 Designs, promotes and implements programs and activities for youth and families. 
 Coordinates volunteers for various programs and activities for seniors, youth and families. 
 Determines need for program adjustments to increase or maintain levels of participation. 
 Coordinates various recreation programs with other agencies and organizations to establish 

cooperative efforts and facilitate services. 
 Keep program records updated. Prepare quarterly and annual reports which identify existing program 

activities, extent of participation, financial overview and current trends. 
 Requisitions necessary materials, supplies and equipment. 
 Makes recommendations concerning Activity Center activities budget, policies and procedures. 
 Manages Activity Center cleaning contract. 
 
MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS 
High school diploma or equivalent and possess a valid driver’s license. Be able to read instructions and 
verbally communicate to the general public. Ability to effectively communicate pertinent information to 
the City Administrator, Public Works Superintendent and City Hall staff when necessary.  
 
DESIRED QUALIFICATIONS 
Education in Recreation, Parks, and Leisure Services or related fields. Previous experience working with 
seniors or youth; organizing activities/events.  
 
KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES  
 General customer service skills including ability to communicate rules and direction to others. 
 Ability to work effectively with adults and children. 
 Ability to work independently without constant supervision.  
 Good leadership skills as well as organizational skills 
 Ability to establish effective working relationships with fellow employees, supervisors and public. 
 Basic computer processing skills including MS Office and Excel. 

 
 



PHYSCIAL REQUIREMENTS 
Physical effort is medium, with lifting or carrying up to 50 pounds intermittently. Frequent walking, 
standing, reaching, sitting and bending.  
 
EXTENT OF SUPERVISION OR GUIDANCE PROVIDED 
This position is supervised by the City Administrator, or others as directed by City Administrator.  The 
amount of supervision is minimal. Works independently on a daily basis.  Must be able to carry out duties 
under minimal direction. 
 
SUPERVISION OF OTHERS 
May provide direction to volunteers. 
 
RESPONSIBILITY FOR PUBLIC CONTACT 
Contact with facility, activity and event users. 
 
 
This position is a Grade 1 
 
 
 
Position Description Approved: 
 
City Council______________________________     Date__________________ 
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Report on Matters Identified as a Result of  
the Audit of the Financial Statements 

 
 
Honorable Mayor, Members  
  of the City Council and Management 
City of Dayton 
Dayton, Minnesota 
 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the governmental activities, 
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of 
Dayton, Minnesota as of and for the year ended December 31, 2018, in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the City's internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control.  
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that 
have not been identified. In addition, because of inherent limitations in internal control, including the 
possibility of management override of controls, misstatements due to error, or fraud may occur and not 
be detected by such controls. However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal 
control that we consider to be a significant deficiency.  
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the City's financial statements will not be prevented, or 
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A reasonable possibility exists when the likelihood of an event 
occurring is either reasonably possible or probable as defined as follows:  reasonably possible – the 
chance of the future event or events occurring is more than remote but less than likely; probable – the 
future event or events are likely to occur. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we 
consider to be material weaknesses. 
 
A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. The significant deficiency identified is stated within this letter. 
 
The City's written response to the significant deficiency identified in our audit has not been subjected to 
audit procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion 
on it/them.  
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The accompanying memorandum also includes financial analysis provided as a basis for discussion. The 
matters discussed herein were considered by us during our audit and they do not modify the opinion 
expressed in our Independent Auditor's Report dated April 11, 2019, on such statements.  
 
This communication is intended solely for the information and use of the Members of the City Council 
and management and others within the City and state oversight agencies and is not intended to be, and 
should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
 
 
 
Minneapolis, Minnesota 
April 11, 2019 
 

sheryl.griffiths
Matt M - BKDV
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City of Dayton 
Significant Deficiency 

 
 

LACK OF SEGREGATION OF ACCOUNTING DUTIES 
 

The City has a lack of segregation of accounting duties due to a limited number of office employees. The 
lack of adequate segregation of accounting duties could adversely affect the City's ability to initiate, 
record, process, and report financial data consistent with the assertions of management in the financial 
statements. 
 
During our audit, the following access, verification and implementation issues were noted: 
 
 The Accounting Clerk is the individual who prepares the deposits, enters deposits into accounting 

software and is responsible for delivering them to the bank.  
 The Accounting Clerk is responsible for check stock and is the one preparing the checks. 
 The Accounting Clerk duties related to payroll include custody, recording, and reconciliation. This is 

mitigated to a certain extent by separate authorization and monitoring of the reconciliation process. 
 

Management and the City Council are aware of these conditions and have taken certain steps to 
compensate for the lack of segregation, but due to the number of staff needed to properly segregate all of 
the accounting duties, the costs of obtaining desirable segregation of accounting duties can often exceed 
benefits which could be derived. However, management and the City Council must remain aware of these 
situations and should continually monitor the accounting system, including changes that occur.  
 
We recommend segregation or independent review be implemented whenever practical and cost 
effective. 
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City of Dayton 
Required Communication 

 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 2018. Professional standards require that we advise you of the following matters related 
to our audit. 
 
OUR RESPONSIBILITY IN RELATION TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT  
 
As communicated in our engagement letter, our responsibility, as described by professional standards, is 
to form and express opinions about whether the financial statements prepared by management with your 
oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of the financial statements does not 
relieve you or management of its respective responsibilities.  
 
As part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the City. Such considerations were solely for 
the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such 
internal control.  
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of the City's compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grants. However, the objective of our tests was not to provide an opinion on compliance 
with such provisions.  
 
Generally accepted accounting principles provide for certain required supplementary information (RSI) 
to supplement the basic financial statements. Our responsibility with respect to the RSI, which 
supplement(s) the basic audit financial statements, is to apply certain limited procedures in accordance 
with generally accepted auditing standards. However, the RSI was not audited and, because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance, 
we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI. 
 
Our responsibility for the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, as 
described by professional standards, is to evaluate the presentation of the supplementary information in 
relation to the financial statements as a whole and to report on whether the supplementary information is 
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.  
 
PLANNED SCOPE AND TIMING OF THE AUDIT 
 
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements; therefore, our audit involved judgment about the number of transactions to be 
examined and the areas to be tested. 
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City of Dayton 
Required Communication 

 
 
PLANNED SCOPE AND TIMING OF THE AUDIT (CONTINUED) 
 
Our audit included obtaining an understanding of the City and its environment, including internal 
control, sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to design 
the nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures. Material misstatements may result from 
(1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or 
governmental regulations that are attributable to the City or to acts by management or employees acting 
on behalf of the City.   
 
COMPLIANCE WITH ALL ETHICS REQUIREMENTS REGARDING INDEPENDENCE 
 
The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, our firm, and our network firms have complied 
with all relevant ethical requirements regarding independence.  
 
QUALITATIVE ASPECTS OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRACTICES 
 
Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of the 
significant accounting policies adopted by the City is included in the notes to financial statements. There 
have been no initial selection of accounting policies and no changes to significant accounting policies or 
their application during 2018. We noted no transactions entered into by the City during the year for 
which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been 
recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.  
 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are 
based on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about 
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the 
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ 
significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were: 
 

Depreciation – The City is currently depreciating its capital assets over their estimated useful lives, 
as determined by management, using the straight-line method. 
 
Net/Total Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) Liability, Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Related to OPEB and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB – These balances are based 
on an actuarial study using the estimates of future obligations of the City for post employment 
benefits.  
 
Net Pension Asset, Net Pension Liability, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Relating to 
Pensions – These balances are based on an allocation by the pension plans using estimates based on 
contributions. 
 

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the accounting estimates in determining 
that they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.  
 
The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 
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City of Dayton 
Required Communication 

 
 
SIGNIFICANT DIFFICULTIES ENCOUNTERED DURING THE AUDIT 
 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of 
the audit. 

 
UNCORRECTED AND CORRECTED MISSTATEMENTS 
 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the 
audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of 
management. Further, professional standards require us to also communicate the effect of uncorrected 
misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant classes of transactions, account balances or 
disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole. Management did not identify, and we did not notify 
them of any uncorrected financial statement misstatements 
 
In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by 
management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a 
whole. 
 
DISAGREEMENTS WITH MANAGEMENT 
 
For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a 
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or 
auditing matter, which could be significant to the City's financial statements or the auditor's report. 
No such disagreements arose during the course of the audit.  
 
REPRESENTATIONS REQUESTED FROM MANAGEMENT  
 
We requested certain written representations from management, which are included in the 
management representation letter. 
 
MANAGEMENT'S CONSULTATIONS WITH OTHER ACCOUNTANTS 
 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters. Management has informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations with 
other accountants regarding auditing and accounting matters.  
 
OTHER SIGNIFICANT MATTERS, FINDINGS, OR ISSUES 
 
In the normal course of our professional association with the City, we generally discuss a variety of 
matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, operating 
conditions affecting the City, and operating plans and strategies that may affect the risks of material 
misstatement. None of the matters discussed resulted in a condition to our retention as the City's 
auditors. 
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City of Dayton 
Required Communication 

 
OTHER MATTERS 
 
We applied certain limited procedures to the RSI that supplements the basic financial statements. Our 
procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI. 
 
With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, we made certain 
inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content and methods of preparing the information to 
determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information 
is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and 
reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the 
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.  
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City of Dayton 
Financial Analysis 

 
 
The following pages provide graphic representation of select data pertaining to the financial position and 
operations of the City for the past five years. Our analysis of each graph is presented to provide a basis 
for discussion of past performance. We suggest you view each graph and document if our analysis is 
consistent with yours.  
 
TAX LEVY, TAX CAPACITY, AND TAX CAPACITY RATES 
 
In basic terms, the City's tax capacity rate is a percentage amount, which when multiplied by the City's 
tax capacity, results in the gross property tax levy. Since 2014, the City's levy has increased 34.5% while 
the tax capacity has increased 60.4%. During 2018, the City's levy increased $583,374, or 16.5%. The 
total tax capacity also increased, resulting in a slight increase in the tax capacity rate. 
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Data obtained from the Hennepin County Taxing District Information (www.hennepin.us.).  
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City of Dayton 
Financial Analysis 

 
 

GENERAL FUND 
 
The following chart presents the City's General Fund data for the past five years: 
 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Total Revenues $3,140,488 $3,656,233 $3,863,767 $3,736,813 $3,728,370
Total Expenditures 2,584,255 2,687,817 2,798,906 2,933,829 3,489,064
Fund Balance 1,457,808 2,020,749 2,051,132 2,066,323 2,105,583

 $-

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000

 $2,500,000

 $3,000,000

 $3,500,000

 $4,000,000

General Fund Revenues, 
Expenditures, and Fund Balance

 
In all five years presented above, revenues have exceeded expenditures in the General Fund. Details for 
revenues and expenditures are discussed on the following pages. 
 
At year-end, the fund balance level increased $39,260 from 2017, due to the excess of revenues over 
expenditures. Revenues for the General Fund stayed consistent only decreasing $8,443. There was an 
increase in general fund expenditures of $555,235 from 2017. The Office of the State Auditor's 
recommended level for a city's fund balance is between 35% and 50%. The City's fund balance level 
was 60.3%, or seven months of expenditures, based on 2018 spending levels. This level is down from 
70.4% at December 31, 2017.  
 



 

 10

City of Dayton 
Financial Analysis 

 
 

GENERAL FUND REVENUES 
 
The chart below depicts the General Fund revenues by source for the past five years. Overall, revenues 
decreased from $3,736,813 in 2017 to $3,728,370 in 2018, a decrease of 0.2%. 
 
This decrease was due to a decrease in license and permit revenue, which decreased $72,809 from 2017 
due to fewer building permits being issued in 2018. This decrease was offset by an increase in property 
taxes. Property Tax revenue increased $112,823 due to an increase in the property tax levy. All other 
revenue sources were consistent when compared to 2017. 
 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Fines, Charges for Services, and

Miscellaneous
$275,660 $450,484 $459,066 $479,391 $436,655

Intergovernmental Revenues 196,004 204,087 222,467 255,597 249,876
Licenses and Permits 227,609 289,369 463,569 607,760 534,951
Taxes and Assessments 2,441,215 2,708,584 2,718,665 2,394,065 2,506,888
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City of Dayton 
Financial Analysis 

 
 

GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES 
 
The chart below presents General Fund expenditures by function for the past five years. In total, General 
Fund expenditures increased by $555,235 or 18.8%, from $2,933,829 in 2017, to $3,489,064 in 2018.  
 
General government expenditures increased $226,268 or 29.6% from the prior year. This increase was 
primarily due to a rise in salaries and benefit expenditures in 2018. The City had new contracts that were 
settled at the beginning of 2017 which included wage increases as well as cost of living adjustments. 
There were also two additional employees hired in 2018. Public works expenditures increased $324,382, 
or 43.64% from the prior year. This increase was due to an additional employee being hired, increased 
engineering and building inspection costs and increased repair and street maintenance costs. 
 
All other expenditures stayed consistent with the prior year. 
 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Parks and Recreation $96,729 $176,072 $128,649 $137,734 $131,145
Public Works 655,056 710,673 761,464 743,362 1,067,744
Public Safety 1,064,590 1,015,315 1,107,678 1,289,783 1,300,957
General Government 767,880 785,757 801,115 762,950 989,218

 $-
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GENERAL FUND BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
 

For the 2018 operating year, the City Council provided a balanced budget. In the end, revenues were 
10.0% over budget and expenditures were 3.0% over budgeted amounts. The resulting surplus was 
transferred to other funds for capital purposes. 
 

Overall, General Fund revenue were over budget by $342,715. This variance is due to charges for 
services and licenses and permits coming in over budget due to an increase in development activity, the 
City typically budgets conservatively for these areas. Charges for services were overbudget $118,287 
due to budgeting conservatively. Intergovernmental revenue was over budget $78,373 due to budgeting 
conservatively for federal and state grants received. All other revenue categories were in line with 
budgeted amounts. 
 

In total, the City's expenditures were $103,409 over the projected amounts. General Government was 
$74,111 over budget due to the County's assessing fees being higher than anticipated. Public safety was 
underbudget $64,116 mostly due to a police officer leaving early in the year and not being replaced until 
late in the year. Public works was $154,564 over budget due to more building inspection costs and 
repairs and maintenance costs than budgeted. Parks and recreation is $61,150 under budget due to the 
City expecting to start projects in 2018 that ended up not happening. 
 

Actual Over (Under) Budget
Budget Amounts Budget Variance

Revenues
Property taxes 2,540,276$ 2,506,888$ (33,388)$    -1.3%
Licenses and permits 358,227      534,951      176,724     49.3%
Intergovernmental revenues 171,503      249,876      78,373       45.7%
Charges for services 216,849      335,136      118,287     54.5%
Fines and forfeitures 51,500        35,639        (15,861)      -30.8%
Miscellaneous 47,300        65,880        18,580       39.3%

Total revenues 3,385,655   3,728,370   342,715     10.1%

Expenditures
General government 915,107      989,218      74,111       8.1%
Public safety 1,365,073   1,300,957   (64,116)      -4.7%
Public works 913,180      1,067,744   154,564     16.9%
Parks and recreation 192,295      131,145      (61,150)      -31.8%

Total expenditures 3,385,655   3,489,064   103,409     3.1%

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from sale of capital asset -                  50,082        50,082       N/A
Transfers in -                  64,546        64,546       N/A
Transfers out -                  (314,674)     (314,674)    N/A

Total other financing sources (uses) -                  (200,046)     (200,046)    N/A

Net change in fund balances -$                39,260$      39,260$     N/A
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WATER FUND 
 
The financial activity of the City's Water Fund has increased significantly over the course of the last five 
years as new users continue to be added. While the financial statements indicate operating losses each of 
the past five years, with depreciation included, the fund shows positive cash flows from operations. The 
liquid, or unrestricted, net position of the fund increased over $440 thousand dollars during 2018 to 
$1.75 million. 
 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Operating Revenues $221,869 $258,813 $308,787 $463,404 $565,274
Operating Expenses 509,655 506,740 620,149 759,474 689,748
Operating Loss with Depreciation (287,786) (247,927) (311,362) (296,070) (124,474)
Operating Income without

Depreciation
29,347 74,179 10,744 26,036 198,292
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 $400,000

 $600,000
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Water Fund 
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SEWER FUND 
 
As with the Water Fund, depreciation is a significant driver of the operating losses in the Sewer Fund. 
This fund also cash flows positively from operations, although its unrestricted, net position at year end 
of $188 thousand is significantly below the reserves in the Water Fund. 
 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Operating Revenues $252,782 $252,652 $252,005 $349,724 $396,729
Operating Expenses 569,799 585,257 635,605 717,840 691,561
Operating Loss with Depreciation (317,017) (332,605) (383,600) (368,116) (294,832)
Operating Income without

Depreciation 33,061 51,004 9 15,493 90,960
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Executive Summary 
The following is an executive summary of financial and business related updates to assist you in staying 
current on emerging issues in accounting and finance. This summary will give you a preview of the new 
standards that have been recently issued and what is on the horizon for the near future. The most recent 
and significant updates include: 
 

 Accounting Standard Update – GASB Statement No. 84 – Fiduciary Activities – GASB has 
issued GASB Statement No. 84 relating to accounting and financial reporting for fiduciary 
activities. This new statement establishes clarity to determine when a government has fiduciary 
responsibility for a certain activity.  

 Accounting Standard Update – GASB Statement No. 87 – Leases – GASB has issued GASB 
Statement No. 87 relating to accounting and financial reporting for leases. This new statement 
establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the principle that leases are financing of 
the right to use an underlying asset.  

 
The following is an extensive summary of the current updates. As your continued business partner, we 
are committed to keeping you informed of new and emerging issues. We are happy to discuss these 
issues with you further and their applicability to your City.  
 
ACCOUNTING STANDARD UPDATE – GASB STATEMENT NO. 84 – FIDUCIARY 

ACTIVITIES  
 
The objective of this Statement is to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities 
for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported.  
 
This Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments. 
The focus of the criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets of the 
fiduciary activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate criteria 
are included to identify fiduciary component units and postemployment benefit arrangements that are 
fiduciary activities. An activity meeting the criteria should be reported in a fiduciary fund in the basic 
financial statements. Governments with activities meeting the criteria should present a statement of 
fiduciary net position and a statement of changes in fiduciary net position. An exception to that 
requirement is provided for a business-type activity that normally expects to hold custodial assets for 
three months or less.  
 
GASB Statement No. 84 describes four fiduciary funds that should be reported, if applicable: (1) 
pension (and other employee benefit) trust funds, (2) investment trust funds, (3) private-purpose trust 
funds, and (4) custodial funds. Custodial funds generally should report fiduciary activities that are not 
held in a trust or equivalent arrangement that meets specific criteria.  
 
This Statement also provides for recognition of a liability to the beneficiaries in a fiduciary fund when 
an event has occurred that compels the government to disburse fiduciary resources. Events that compel a 
government to disburse fiduciary resources occur when a demand for the resources has been made or 
when no further action, approval, or condition is required to be taken or met by the beneficiary to release 
the assets. 
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ACCOUNTING STANDARD UPDATE – GASB STATEMENT NO. 84 – FIDUCIARY 

ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED) 
 
GASB Statement No. 84 is effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018. Earlier 
application is encouraged. 
 
Information provided above was obtained from www.gasb.org. 
 
ACCOUNTING STANDARD UPDATE – GASB STATEMENT NO. 87 – LEASES  
 
The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by 
improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments. This Statement increases the 
usefulness of governments' financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and 
liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of 
resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. It establishes a 
single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the 
right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability 
and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a 
deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about 
governments' leasing activities.  
 
A lease is defined as a contract that conveys control of the right to use another entity's nonfinancial asset 
(the underlying asset) as specified in the contract for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like 
transaction. Examples of nonfinancial assets include buildings, land, vehicles, and equipment. Any 
contract that meets this definition should be accounted for under the leases guidance, unless specifically 
excluded in this Statement.  
 
A short-term lease is defined as a lease that, at the commencement of the lease term, has a maximum 
possible term under the lease contract of 12 months (or less), including any options to extend, regardless 
of their probability of being exercised. Lessees and lessors should recognize short-term lease payments 
as outflows of resources or inflows of resources, respectively, based on the payment provisions of the 
lease contract.  
 
A lessee should recognize a lease liability and a lease asset at the commencement of the lease term, 
unless the lease is a short-term lease or it transfers ownership of the underlying asset. The lease liability 
should be measured at the present value of payments expected to be made during the lease term (less any 
lease incentives). The lease asset should be measured at the amount of the initial measurement of the 
lease liability, plus any payments made to the lessor at or before the commencement of the lease term 
and certain direct costs. A lessee should reduce the lease liability as payments are made and recognize 
an outflow of resources (for example, expense) for interest on the liability. The lessee should amortize 
the lease asset in a systematic and rational manner over the shorter of the lease term or the useful life of 
the underlying asset. The notes to financial statements should include a description of leasing 
arrangements, the amount of lease assets recognized, and a schedule of future lease payments to be 
made. 
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ACCOUNTING STANDARD UPDATE – GASB STATEMENT NO. 87 – LEASES 
  (CONTINUED) 
 
A lessor should recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources at the commencement of 
the lease term, with certain exceptions for leases of assets held as investments, certain regulated leases, 
short-term leases, and leases that transfer ownership of the underlying asset. A lessor should not 
derecognize the asset underlying the lease. The lease receivable should be measured at the present value 
of lease payments expected to be received during the lease term. The deferred inflow of resources 
should be measured at the value of the lease receivable plus any payments received at or before the 
commencement of the lease term that relate to future periods. A lessor should recognize interest revenue 
on the lease receivable and an inflow of resources (for example, revenue) from the deferred inflows of 
resources in a systematic and rational manner over the term of the lease. The notes to financial 
statements should include a description of leasing arrangements and the total amount of inflows of 
resources recognized from leases.  
 
GASB Statement No. 87 is effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. Earlier 
application is encouraged.  
 
Information provided above was obtained from www.gasb.org. 
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Independent Auditor's Report 
 
 
Honorable Mayor and Members 
  of the City Council 
City of Dayton 
Dayton, Minnesota 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Dayton, 
Minnesota, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2018, and the related notes to financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the Table of 
Contents. 
 
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
 
Auditor's Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the City's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the City's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions.
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Opinions  
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to in the first paragraph present fairly, in all material 
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, 
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Dayton, Minnesota, as of 
December 31, 2018, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows 
thereof and the budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Implementation of GASB 75 
As discussed in Note 10 to the financial statements, the City has adopted new accounting guidance, 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions. Our opinion is not modified with respect 
to this matter 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information  
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's 
Discussion and Analysis, which follows this report letter, and Required Supplementary Information as 
listed in the Table of Contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB), who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We 
have applied certain limited procedures to the Required Supplementary Information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.  
 
Other Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the City of Dayton's basic financial statements. The combining and individual 
nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and 
are not a required part of the basic financial statements.  
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Other Matters (Continued) 
 
Other Information (Continued) 
 
The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules are the responsibility 
of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, 
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and 
schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a 
whole.  
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards  

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 7, 2018, 
on our consideration of the City of Dayton's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of 
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on  the 
effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering 
the City of Dayton's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
 
 
 
Minneapolis, Minnesota 
April 11, 2019 

sheryl.griffiths
Matt M - BKDV



City of Dayton 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

 
 

5 

As management of the City of Dayton (the "City"), we offer readers of the City's financial statements 
this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended 
December 31, 2018.  
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 

 The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City exceeded its liabilities and deferred 
inflows of resources at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $38,983,575 (net position). 

 The City's total net position increased by $3,235,438. While a change in accounting principle 
accounted for an additional increase of $61,353. 

 As of the close of the current year, all of the City's governmental funds reported combined ending 
fund balances of $12,067,791, an increase of $1,187,253 in comparison with the prior year. 

 At the end of the current year, unassigned fund balance for the General fund was $1,932,839, or 
55.4%, of total General Fund expenditures. 

 The City's total bonded debt decreased $2,452,000 during the current fiscal year due to 
scheduled principal payments. 

 
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial 
statements. The City's basic financial statements comprise three components:  1) government-wide 
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to financial statements. This report also 
contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 
 
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the 
City's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 
 
The Statement of Net Position provides information on all of the City's assets and deferred outflows of 
resources and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with a difference between the four reported as 
net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether 
the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating. 
 
The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City's net position changed during 
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event 
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and 
expenses are reported in this Statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal 
periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 
 
 
  



City of Dayton 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

 
 

6 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenue (governmental activities) from other functions that 
are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-
type activities). The governmental activities of the City include general government, public safety, 
public works, parks and recreation, economic development, and interest on long-term debt. The 
business-type activities of the City include the water and sewer utilities. 
 
FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses 
fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of 
the funds of the City can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and 
fiduciary funds. 
 
Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions 
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the 
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term 
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at 
the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term 
financing requirements. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is more limited in scope than that of the more expansive 
government-wide financial statement, a better understanding of the long-term impact of a City's near-
term financing decisions can be achieved by comparing the information presented for governmental 
funds with governmental activities, as the two are more closely related. By doing so, readers may better 
understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the 
governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and 
changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental 
funds and governmental activities. 
 
The City maintains numerous individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the 
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and 
changes in fund balances for the General Fund and other major funds. Data from the other governmental 
funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these 
nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. 
 
The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund. A budgetary comparison statement 
has been provided for the General Fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget. 
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
Proprietary Funds - The City maintains two proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the 
same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The 
City uses enterprise funds to account for its water and sewer utility services. 
 
Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, 
only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for each of 
the enterprise funds, all of which are considered to be major funds of the City. 
 
Fiduciary Funds - These funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside 
the City. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the 
resources of those funds are not available to support the City's own programs. The accounting used for 
Fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in 
the government-wide and fund financial statements. 
 
OTHER INFORMATION 
 
In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain 
required supplementary information concerning the City's progress in funding its obligation to provide 
pensions and other postemployment benefits to its employees. 
 
The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds are 
presented immediately following the notes to the financial statements. 
 
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial 
position. In the case of the City, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and 
deferred inflows of resources by $38,983,575 at the close of the most recent fiscal year. 
 
A portion of the City's net position ($21,785,327 or 55.9%) reflects its investment in capital assets of 
(e.g., land, buildings, infrastructure, machinery, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire 
those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; 
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City's investment in its 
capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted the resources needed to repay this debt 
must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate 
these liabilities. 
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 
 
An additional portion of the City's net position ($11,634,290 or 29.8%) represents resources that are 
subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net 
position ($5,563,958 or 14.3%) may be used to meet the City's ongoing obligations to citizens and 
creditors. 
 

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Assets
Current and other assets 21,487,289$    17,029,650$    2,328,948$      1,689,396$      23,816,237$    18,719,046$    
Capital assets (net of
Accumulated depreciation) 24,235,095      27,935,896      19,086,451      19,855,030      43,321,546      47,790,926      

Total assets 45,722,384      44,965,546      21,415,399      21,544,426      67,137,783      66,509,972      

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 1,026,920        1,228,866        25,517             41,072             1,052,437        1,269,938        

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 46,749,304$    46,194,412$    21,440,916$    21,585,498$    68,190,220$    67,779,910$    

Liabilities
Current liabilities 3,416,141$      3,253,707$      115,700$         89,495$           3,531,841$      3,343,202$      
Noncurrent liabilities 24,213,014      27,121,445      115,316           176,240           24,328,330      27,297,685      

Total liabilities 27,629,155      30,375,152      231,016           265,735           27,860,171      30,640,887      

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 1,320,754        1,421,366        21,222             30,873             1,341,976        1,452,239        
Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB 4,076               -                      422                  -                      4,498               -                      

Total deferred inflows of resources 1,324,830        1,421,366        21,644             30,873             1,346,474        1,452,239        

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 13,537,709      11,713,840      19,240,118      19,855,030      21,785,327      19,473,895      
Restricted 11,624,241      11,889,501      10,049             9,035               11,634,290      11,898,536      
Unrestricted (7,366,631)      (9,205,447)      1,938,089        1,424,825        5,563,958        4,313,853        

Total net position 17,795,319      14,397,894      21,188,256      21,288,890      38,983,575      35,686,284      

Total liabilities, deferred inflows
of resources, and net position 46,749,304$    46,194,412$    21,440,916$    21,585,498$    68,190,220$    67,779,410$    

Net Position
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GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITES 
 
Governmental activities increased the City's net position by $3,341,840. 
 

 
 
 

Governmental Governmental Business-Type Business-Type
Activities Activities Activities Activities Total Total
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

Revenues
Program revenues

Charges for services 2,326,983$     1,886,538$     1,960,770$     1,718,271$     4,287,753$     3,604,809$     
Operating grants and contributions 255,974          342,446          -                     -                     255,974          342,446          
Capital grants and contributions 950,089          835,217          -                     -                     950,089          835,217          

General revenues
Property taxes 4,157,046       3,546,133       -                     -                     4,157,046       3,546,133       
Tax increments 221,087          274,327          -                     -                     221,087          274,327          
State aid 72,713            53,512            -                     -                     72,713            53,512            
Unrestricted investment earnings 127,399          251,208          35,750            24,188            163,149          275,396          
Other general revenue 57,842            151,996          -                     -                     57,842            151,996          
Gain on sale of capital assets 50,082            -                     -                     -                     50,082            -                     

Total revenues 8,219,215       7,341,377       1,996,520       1,742,459       10,215,735     9,083,836       

Expenses
General government 1,203,368       919,818          -                     -                     1,203,368       919,818          
Public safety 1,490,469       1,664,733       -                     -                     1,490,469       1,664,733       
Public works 2,024,231       1,828,379       -                     -                     2,024,231       1,828,379       
Parks and recreation 181,322          166,715          -                     -                     181,322          166,715          
Economic development 54,435            59,879            -                     -                     54,435            59,879            
Interest on long-term debt 645,163          1,201,069       -                     -                     645,163          1,201,069       
Water -                     -                     689,748          759,474          689,748          759,474          
Sewer -                     -                     691,561          717,840          691,561          717,840          

Total expenses 5,598,988       5,840,593       1,381,309       1,477,314       6,980,297       7,317,907       

Change in net position before transfers 2,620,227       1,500,784       615,211          265,145          3,235,438       1,765,929       
Transfers 721,613          909,700          (721,613)        (909,700)        -                     -                     

Change in net position 3,341,840       2,410,484       (106,402)        (644,555)        3,235,438       1,765,929       
Net position - beginning of year 14,397,894     11,987,410     21,288,890     21,933,445     35,686,784     33,920,855     
Change in accounting principle 55,585            -                     5,768              -                     61,353            -                     
Net position - beginning as restated 14,453,479     11,987,410     21,294,658     21,933,445     35,748,137     33,920,855     

Net position - ending 17,795,319$   14,397,894$   21,188,256$   21,288,890$   38,983,575$   35,686,784$   

Changes in Net Position



City of Dayton 
Management's Discussion And Analysis 

 
 

10 

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED) 
 

Charges for Services
28.5%

Operating Grants and 
Contributions

3.1%

Capital Grants and 
Contributions

11.6%

Property Taxes
50.9%

Tax Increments
2.7%

State Aid
0.9%

Unrestricted 
Investment Earnings

1.6%

Other General 
Revenue

0.7%

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities

 

General
Government

Public Safety Public Works
Parks and
Recreation

Economic
Development

Interest on
Long-Term

Debt
Expenses $1,203,368 $1,490,469 $2,024,231 $181,322 $54,435 $645,163
Program Revenues 420,454 615,577 1,859,926 637,089 - -
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BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES 
 
Business-Type Activities - Business-type activities decreased the City's net position $106,402. 
 

Water Sewer
Expenses $689,748 $691,561
Program Revenues 1,120,671 840,099

 $-
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Expenses and Program Revenues - Business-Type Activities

 
 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS 
 
As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements. 
 
Governmental Funds - The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-
term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the 
City's financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a 
government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year 
 
As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund 
balances of $12,067,791 an increase of $1,187,253 in comparison with the prior year. Of this total 
amount, -$208,605 constitutes unassigned fund balance which is available for spending at the City's 
discretion. The remaining fund balance is made up of the following: 1) Nonspendable ($172,744), 2) 
Restricted ($6,925,470), 3) Committed ($356,183), and 4) Assigned ($4,821,999). 
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Governmental Funds (Continued) 
 
The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, the 
fund balance of the General Fund was $2,105,583. As a measure of the General Fund's liquidity, it may 
be useful to compare both total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Total fund balance represents 
60.3% of total General Fund expenditures. 
 
The fund balance of the City's General Fund increased $39,260 in 2018. 
 
Proprietary Funds - The City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the 
City's government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. Unrestricted net position of the 
enterprise funds at the end of the year amounted to $1,938,089. Other factors concerning the finances of 
this fund have already been addressed in the discussion of the City's business-type activities. 
 
GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 
 
The City's General Fund budget was not amended during the year and was approved as a balanced 
budget. Total revenues and transfers in were over budget by $457,343. Total expenditures and transfers 
out were over budget by $418,083. Some of the significant variances can be briefly summarized as 
follows: 
 

 Licenses and permits and charges for services were over budget by $176,724 and $118,287, 
respectively, due to more than anticipated development in the City.  
 

 Proceeds from sale of capital asset was over budget by $50,082 due to proceeds from sale of land 
and a police squad car. These proceeds were not budgeted. 
 

 Transfers in were over budget by $64,546 due to the closure of two governmental funds. These 
fund closures were not budgeted. 
 

 Transfers out of General fund surplus ($314,674) were not included in the budget but were 
approved by Council Resolution. 
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CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 
Capital Assets - The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities 
as of December 31, 2018, amounted to $47,411,282 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment 
in capital assets includes land, buildings and improvements, infrastructure, collection and distribution 
system, machinery and equipment, and construction in progress.  
 
The City's most significant capital activity during the year related to the completion of the Sundance 
Trunk Sewer and Balsam Lane Streetscape projects. 
 

 
Long-term Debt – At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total bonded debt outstanding of 
$24,930,000. While all of the City's bonds have revenue streams, they are all backed by the full faith and 
credit of the City. 
 

 
The City's total debt decreased $2,643,143 primarily due to scheduled principal payments. 
 
 

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

Land 2,925,462$      2,925,462$      113,767$         113,767$         3,039,229$      3,039,229$      
Buildings and improvements 5,424,461        5,166,841        -                       -                       5,424,461        5,166,841        
Infrastructure 25,946,382      24,531,367      -                       -                       25,946,382      24,531,367      
Collection and distribution system -                       -                       26,082,586      26,082,586      26,082,586      26,082,586      
Machinery and equipment 4,757,316        4,085,838        101,657           47,911             4,858,973        4,133,749        
Construction in progress 1,010,607        1,866,043        39,900             -                       1,050,507        1,866,043        

Total capital assets 40,064,228      38,575,551      26,337,910      26,244,264      66,402,138      64,819,815      
-                       -                       

Less accumulated depreciation (11,893,064)     (10,639,655)     (7,097,792)       (6,389,234)       (18,990,856)     (17,028,889)     

Net capital assets 28,171,164$    27,935,896$    19,240,118$    19,855,030$    47,411,282$    47,790,926$    

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

G.O. Bonds, net 24,740,955$    26,950,031$    -$                     -$                     24,740,955$    26,950,031$    
G.O. equipment certificates -                       105,000           -                       -                       -                       105,000           
PFA notes 885,000           1,107,000        -                       -                       885,000           1,107,000        
Compensated absences 188,653           146,189           19,957             14,488             208,610           160,677           
Contract for deed payable -                       155,000           -                       -                       -                       155,000           

Total 25,814,608$    28,463,220$    19,957$           14,488$           25,834,565$    28,477,708$    
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES 
 

The City has adopted a balanced budget for 2019. The General Fund revenue and expenditure budgets 
both total $3,781,751. The general portion of the property tax levy for 2019 increased by 12.73% to 
$2,840,362 while the debt service portion of the levy increased by 2.71% to $986,126. 
 
The City continues to emphasize the accumulation of resources for the acquisition, construction, or 
upgrade of the City's infrastructure, facilities, and equipment in the near future. The 2019 property tax 
levy includes $770,000 of property tax revenue for the capital funds. The City continues to review and 
update the long-term capital improvement planning process to improve infrastructure, facilities, and 
equipment. 
 
The City has experienced increases in tax capacity in recent years. The City attributes this improvement 
in the tax capacity to changes in market conditions along with increased growth and development. The 
City anticipates continued growth in the tax capacity. 
 
The City's tax rate has slightly decreased from 55.66% in 2018 to 55.00% in 2019. 
 
The City has experienced an increase in residential development in 2018 with this trend continuing into 
2019. The City also continues to move ahead with plans for the development of the Dayton Parkway 
Interchange in the southwest area of City. The City is seeking financial assistance from federal, state, 
county and other local sources.  
 
REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances for all those with 
an interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this 
report or requests for additional information should be addressed to the Finance Director, City of 
Dayton, 12260 South Diamond Lake Road, Dayton, Minnesota 55327. 
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 



Governmental 
Activities

Business-Type 
Activities Total

Assets
Cash and investments
  (including cash equivalents) 12,647,797$       1,633,787$         14,281,584$       
Taxes receivable - delinquent 63,519                -                         63,519                
Accounts receivable 13,490                146,449              159,939              
Interest receivable 4,170                  -                         4,170                  
Due from other governments 98,530                20,740                119,270              
Due from other funds (internal balances) (342,858)            342,858              -                         
Special assessments receivable

Current 875                     -                         875                     
Delinquent 10,582                2,161                  12,743                
Deferred 4,978,362           13,132                4,991,494           

Prepaid items 4,715                  16,154                20,869                
Net pension asset - fire relief association 72,038                -                         72,038                
Capital assets not being depreciated

Land 2,925,462           113,767              3,039,229           
Construction in progress 1,010,607           39,900                1,050,507           

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation)
Buildings and improvements 4,312,126           -                         4,312,126           
Infrastructure 17,252,580         -                         17,252,580         
Collection and distribution system -                         19,035,548         19,035,548         
Machinery and equipment 2,670,389           50,903                2,721,292           

Total assets 45,722,384         21,415,399         67,137,783         

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 1,026,920           25,517                1,052,437           

Total deferred outflows of resources

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 46,749,304$       21,440,916$       68,190,220$       

Liabilities
Accounts payable 247,307$            19,031$              266,338$            
Due to other governments 55,565                89,077                144,642              
Salaries and benefits payable 49,824                5,596                  55,420                
Interest payable 290,580              -                         290,580              
Bonds payable, net

Payable within one year 2,525,000           -                         2,525,000           
Payable after one year 22,215,955         -                         22,215,955         

Notes payable
Payable within one year 229,000              -                         229,000              
Payable after one year 656,000              -                         656,000              

Compensated absences payable
Payable within one year 18,865                1,996                  20,861                
Payable after one year 169,788              17,962                187,750              

Net other post employment benefits (OPEB) obligation 61,951                6,428                  68,379                
Net pension liability 1,109,320           90,926                1,200,246           

Total liabilities 27,629,155         231,016              27,860,171         

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 1,320,754           21,222                1,341,976           
Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB 4,076                  422                     4,498                  

Total deferred inflows of resources 1,324,830           21,644                1,346,474           

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 13,537,709         19,240,118         21,785,327         
Restricted for

Debt service 10,672,307         -                         10,672,307         
Other purposes 16,599                -                         16,599                
Park dedication 842,166              -                         842,166              
Tax increment 93,169                -                         93,169                
Infrastructure replacement -                         10,049                10,049                

Unrestricted (7,366,631)         1,938,089           5,563,958           
Total net position 17,795,319         21,188,256         38,983,575         

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position 46,749,304$       21,440,916$       68,190,220$       

See notes to financial statements. 16
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Program Revenue

Functions/Programs Expenses
Charges for 

Services

Operating 
Grants and 

Contributions

Capital Grants 
and 

Contributions
Governmental 

Activities
Business-Type 

Activities Total
Governmental activities

General government 1,203,368$        419,040$          1,414$             -$                     (782,914)$        -$                      (782,914)$         
Public safety 1,490,469          487,232            124,345           4,000               (874,892)          -                        (874,892)           
Public works 2,024,231          822,652            91,185             946,089           (164,305)          -                        (164,305)           
Parks and recreation 181,322             598,059            39,030             -                       455,767           -                        455,767             
Economic development 54,435               -                        -                      -                       (54,435)            -                        (54,435)             
Interest on long-term debt 645,163             -                        -                      -                       (645,163)          -                        (645,163)           

Total governmental activities 5,598,988          2,326,983         255,974           950,089           (2,065,942)       -                        (2,065,942)        

Business-type activities
Water 689,748             1,120,671         -                      -                       -                       430,923            430,923             
Sewer 691,561             840,099            -                      -                       -                       148,538            148,538             

Total business-type activities 1,381,309          1,960,770         -                      -                       -                       579,461            579,461             

Total governmental and
  business-type activities 6,980,297$        4,287,753$       255,974$         950,089$         (2,065,942)       579,461            (1,486,481)        

General revenues
Property taxes 4,157,046        -                        4,157,046          
Tax increments 221,087           -                        221,087             
State aids 72,713             -                        72,713               
Unrestricted investment earnings 127,399 35,750              163,149             
Other general revenue 57,842             -                        57,842               
Gain on sale of capital assets 50,082             -                        50,082               

Transfers 721,613           (721,613)           -                        
Total general revenues and transfers 5,407,782        (685,863)           4,721,919          

Change in net position 3,341,840        (106,402)           3,235,438          

Net position - beginning of year 14,397,894      21,288,890       35,686,784        
Change in accounting principle (see Note 11) 55,585             5,768                61,353               
Net position, beginning as restated 14,453,479      21,294,658       35,748,137        

Net position - end of year 17,795,319$    21,188,256$     38,983,575$      

17 See notes to financial statements.

City of Dayton
Statement of Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2018

Net (Expense) Revenue
 and Changes in Net Position



General Fund 
(101)

2014A and 2015A 
G.O. 

Improvement 
Bonds (342)

2009A G.O. 
Improvement 

Bond and 2010A 
Improvement 
Notes (348)

Assets
Cash and investments 442,752$            2,518,247$         3,003,207$         
Receivables

Taxes receivable - delinquent 63,519                -                          -                          
Accounts receivable 1,727                  -                          -                          
Interest receivable 3,763                  -                          -                          

Due from other governments 92,705                -                          -                          
Special assessments receivable

Current -                          654                     -                          
Delinquent -                          9,530                  -                          
Deferred 1,435                  3,582,869           746,318              

Due from other funds 1,560,346           -                          -                          
Advances to other funds 168,029              -                          -                          
Prepaid items 4,715                  -                          -                          

Total assets 2,338,991$         6,111,300$         3,749,525$         

Liabilities
Accounts payable 64,972$              -$                        -$                        
Due to other funds -                          -                          -                          
Advance from other funds -                          -                          -                          
Due to other governments 53,658                -                          -                          
Salaries and benefits payable 49,824                -                          -                          
Interest payable -                          -                          -                          

Total liabilities 168,454              -                          -                          

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 63,519                -                          -                          
Unavailable revenue - grants -                          -                          -                          
Unavailable revenue - special assessments 1,435                  3,592,399           746,318              

Total deferred inflows of resources 64,954                3,592,399           746,318              

Fund Balances
Nonspendable 172,744              -                          -                          
Restricted -                          2,518,901           3,003,207           
Committed -                          -                          -                          
Assigned -                          -                          -                          
Unassigned 1,932,839           -                          -                          

Total fund balances 2,105,583           2,518,901           3,003,207           

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,
  and fund balances 2,338,991$         6,111,300$         3,749,525$         

See notes to financial statements. 18                       

City of Dayton
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds

December 31, 2018

Debt Service



Capital Projects

Dayton Parkway 
(480)

Other 
Governmental 

Funds

Total 
Governmental 

Funds

-$                        6,683,591$         12,647,797$       

-                          -                          63,519                
-                          11,763                13,490                
-                          407                     4,170                  

5,825                  -                          98,530                

-                          221                     875                     
-                          1,052                  10,582                

504,000              143,740              4,978,362           
-                          -                          1,560,346           
-                          10,285                178,314              
-                          -                          4,715                  

509,825$            6,851,059$         19,560,700$       

82,668$              99,667$              247,307$            
1,560,346           -                          1,560,346           

-                          521,172              521,172              
-                          1,907                  55,565                
-                          -                          49,824                
-                          407                     407                     

1,643,014           623,153              2,434,621           

-                          -                          63,519                
5,825                  -                          5,825                  

504,000              144,792              4,988,944           
509,825              144,792              5,058,288           

-                          -                          172,744              
-                          1,403,362           6,925,470           
-                          356,183              356,183              
-                          4,821,999           4,821,999           

(1,643,014)          (498,430)             (208,605)             
(1,643,014)          6,083,114           12,067,791         

509,825$            6,851,059$         19,560,700$       

19                                                                                                 
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December 31, 2018

Total fund balances - governmental funds 12,067,791$     

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources
and, therefore, are not reported as assets in governmental funds.

Cost of capital assets 40,064,228       
Less accumulated depreciation (11,893,064)      

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable 
in the current period and, therefore, are not reported as liabilities in the funds.

Long-term liabilities at year-end consist of:
Bonds payable (24,045,000)      
Unamortized bond premium (695,955)           
Notes payable (885,000)           
Compensated absences payable (188,653)           
Unfunded OPEB liability (61,951)             
Net pension liability (1,109,320)        

Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources are
created as a  result of various differences related to pensions and OPEB that are 
not recognized in the governmental funds.

Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions (1,320,754)        
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 1,026,920         
Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB (4,076)               

Fire Relief Association net pension asset created through contributions
to a defined benefit pension plan which is not recognized in the
governmental funds. 72,038              

Delinquent receivables will be collected in subsequent years, but are not available
soon enough to pay for the current period's expenditures and, therefore, are 
deferred in the funds.

Delinquent taxes receivable 63,519              
Delinquent special assessments receivable 10,582              

Deferred receivables are not available to pay for current expenditures and,
therefore, are deferred in the funds.

Due from other governments - deferred grants 5,825                
Deferred special assessments receivable 4,978,362         

Governmental funds do not report a liability for accrued interest due and payable. (290,173)           

17,795,319$     

See notes to financial statements. 21                     

City of Dayton

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position 
are different because:

Total net position - governmental activities

the Statement of Net Position - Governmental Funds
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to



General Fund 
(101)

2014A and 2015A 
G.O. Improvement 

Bonds (342)

2009A G.O. 
Improvement 

Bond and 2010A 
Improvement 
Notes (348)

Revenues
Property taxes 2,506,888$          175,000$             -$                        
Tax increments -                          -                          -                          
Special assessments -                          764,855               106,774               
Licenses and permits 534,951               -                          -                          
Intergovernmental 249,876               -                          -                          
Charges for services 335,136               4,750                   -                          
Fines and forfeitures 35,639                 -                          -                          
Miscellaneous

Investment income 15,753                 17,977                 33,901                 
Contributions and donations 7,213                   -                          -                          
Other 42,914                 -                          -                          

Total revenues 3,728,370            962,582               140,675               

Expenditures
Current

General government 974,611               -                          -                          
Public safety 1,297,076            -                          -                          
Public works 1,066,039            -                          -                          
Parks and recreation 117,340               -                          -                          
Economic development -                          -                          -                          

Debt service
Principal -                          1,175,000            178,000               
Interest and other charges -                          478,287               93,876                 

Capital outlay
General government 14,607                 -                          -                          
Public safety 3,881                   -                          -                          
Public works 1,705                   -                          -                          
Parks and recreation 13,805                 -                          -                          

Total expenditures 3,489,064            1,653,287            271,876               

Excess of revenues over 
  (under) expenditures 239,306               (690,705)              (131,201)              

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from sale of capital asset 50,082                 -                          -                          
Transfers in 64,546                 882,142               -                          
Transfers out (314,674)              (634)                    (8,081)                 

Total other financing sources (uses) (200,046)              881,508               (8,081)                 

Net change in fund balances 39,260                 190,803               (139,282)              

Fund Balances
Beginning of year 2,066,323            2,328,098            3,142,489            

End of year 2,105,583$          2,518,901$          3,003,207$          

See notes to financial statements. 22                        

City of Dayton
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2018

Debt Service



Dayton Parkway 
(480)

Other 
Governmental 

Funds

 Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

-$                            1,475,077$          4,156,965$          
-                              221,087               221,087               

108,165                   53,743                 1,033,537            
-                              -                          534,951               

33,856                     25,000                 308,732               
-                              2,064,925            2,404,811            
-                              -                          35,639                 

2                             59,766                 127,399               
-                              14,130                 21,343                 
-                              29,507                 72,421                 

142,023                   3,943,235            8,916,885            

-                              158,191               1,132,802            
-                              -                          1,297,076            
-                              2,409                   1,068,448            
-                              -                          117,340               
-                              54,435                 54,435                 

155,000                   1,099,000            2,607,000            
7,750                       174,296               754,209               

-                              123,322               137,929               
-                              115,665               119,546               

269,189                   540,686               811,580               
-                              387,157               400,962               

431,939                   2,655,161            8,501,327            

(289,916)                 1,288,074            415,558               

-                              -                          50,082                 
44,060                     933,998               1,924,746            

(191,799)                 (687,945)              (1,203,133)           
(147,739)                 246,053               771,695               

(437,655)                 1,534,127            1,187,253            

(1,205,359)              4,548,987            10,880,538          

(1,643,014)$            6,083,114$          12,067,791$        

23                                                                                                           

Capital Projects



City of Dayton
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, 

Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances to 
the Statement of Activities - Governmental Funds

Year Ended December 31, 2018

1,187,253$      

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the 
Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

Capital outlays 1,112,091        
Depreciation expense (1,264,146)       
Loss on disposal (2,016)              
Contributed asset 389,339           

Compensated absences are recognized as paid in the governmental funds, but
recognized as the expense is incurred in the Statement of Activities. (42,464)            

OPEB costs are recognized as paid in the governmental funds but recognized
as the expense is incurred in the Statement of Activities. (9,870)              

Governmental funds recognized pension contributions as expenditures at the time of payment 
whereas the Statement of Activities factors in items related to pensions on a full accrual 
perspective.

Pension expense 3,359               
State aid related to pension expense 9,004               

Principal payments on long-term debt are recognized as expenditures in the
governmental funds, but have no effect on net position in the Statement of Activities. 2,607,000        

Governmental funds report the effects of bond discounts and premiums when debt is
first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the Statement of Activities. 84,076             

Interest on long-term debt in the Statement of Activities differs from the
amount reported in the governmental funds because interest is recognized
as an expenditure in the funds when it is due and, thus, requires use of current
financial resources. In the Statement of Activities, however, interest expense
is recognized as the interest accrues, regardless of when it is due. 24,970             

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds until measurable and available.

Due from other governments - deferred grants 5,825               
Deferred special assessments (762,086)          
Delinquent special assessments (576)                 

Delinquent property taxes receivable will be collected in subsequent years, 
and, therefore, are deferred in the funds. 81                    

3,341,840$      

See notes to financial statements. 24

Change in net position - governmental activities

Net change in fund balances - governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities 
are different because:



City of Dayton
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balance - 
Budget and Actual - General Fund

Year Ended December 31, 2018

Original and 
Final Budget

Actual 
Amounts

Revenues
Property taxes 2,540,276$    2,506,888$    (33,388)$       
Special assessments -                     -                     -                     
Licenses and permits 358,227         534,951         176,724         
Intergovernmental revenue 171,503         249,876         78,373           
Charges for services 216,849         335,136         118,287         
Fines and forfeitures 51,500           35,639           (15,861)         
Miscellaneous

Investment income 23,000           15,753           (7,247)            
Contributions and donations -                     7,213             7,213             
Other 24,300           42,914           18,614           

Total revenues 3,385,655      3,728,370      342,715         

Expenditures
Current

General government 895,107         974,611         79,504           
Public safety 1,355,573      1,297,076      (58,497)         
Public works 907,180         1,066,039      158,859         
Parks and recreation 117,295         117,340         45                  

Capital outlay
General government 20,000           14,607           (5,393)            
Public safety 9,500             3,881             (5,619)            
Public works 6,000             1,705             (4,295)            
Parks and recreation 75,000           13,805           (61,195)         

Total expenditures 3,385,655      3,489,064      103,409         

Excess of revenues
  over expenditures -                     239,306         239,306         

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets -                     50,082           50,082           
Transfers in -                     64,546           64,546           
Transfers out -                     (314,674)       (314,674)       

Total other financing sources (uses) -                     (200,046)       (200,046)       

Net change in fund balance -$                   39,260           39,260$         

Fund Balance
Beginning of year 2,066,323

End of year 2,105,583$    

See notes to financial statements. 25

Variance with 
Final Budget - 
Over (Under)



City of Dayton
Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Funds

December 31, 2018

Water (601) Sewer (602) Total
Assets
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 1,627,026$         6,761$                1,633,787$         
Accounts receivable 70,832                75,617                146,449              
Special assessments receivable 7,208                  8,085                  15,293                
Advances to other funds 171,429              171,429              342,858              
Due from other governments 3,585                  17,155                20,740                
Prepaid expenses -                         16,154                16,154                

Total current assets 1,880,080           295,201              2,175,281           

Noncurrent assets
Capital assets

Land 113,767              -                         113,767              
Collection and distribution system 11,789,361         14,293,225         26,082,586         
Machinery and equipment 52,398                49,259                101,657              
Construction in progress 39,900                -                         39,900                

Total capital assets 11,995,426         14,342,484         26,337,910         
Less accumulated depreciation (3,233,223)          (3,864,569)          (7,097,792)          

Net capital assets 8,762,203           10,477,915         19,240,118         

Total assets 10,642,283         10,773,116         21,415,399         

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 13,931                11,586                25,517                

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 10,656,214$       10,784,702$       21,440,916$       

Liabilities
Current liabilities

Accounts payable 13,244$              5,787$                19,031$              
Salaries and benefits payable 3,017                  2,579                  5,596                  
Due to other governments 53,481                35,596                89,077                
Current compensated absences 1,030               966                  1,996               

Total current liabilities 70,772                44,928                115,700              

Noncurrent liabilities
Compensated absences 9,270                  8,692                  17,962                
Unfunded OPEB liability 3,214                  3,214                  6,428                  
Net pension liability 49,641                41,285                90,926                

Total noncurrent liabilities 62,125                53,191                115,316              
Total liabilities 132,897              98,119                231,016              

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 11,586                9,636                  21,222                
Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB 211                     211                     422                     

Total deferred inflows of resources 11,797                9,847                  21,644                

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 8,762,203           10,477,915         19,240,118         
Restricted for infrastructure replacement -                         10,049                10,049                
Unrestricted 1,749,317           188,772              1,938,089           

Total net position 10,511,520         10,676,736         21,188,256         

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
  resources, and net position 10,656,214$       10,784,702$       21,440,916$       

See notes to financial statements. 26



Water (601) Sewer (602) Total
Operating Revenues

Charges for services 502,021$         386,737$         888,758$         
Permits, hookup fees, and penalties 56,356             3,095               59,451             
Other charges 6,897               6,897               13,794             

Total operating revenues 565,274           396,729           962,003           

Operating Expenses
Wages and salaries 71,756             59,485             131,241           
Employee benefits (3,215)             (5,762)             (8,977)             
Materials and supplies 84,639             586                  85,225             
Repairs and maintenance 15,030             12,150             27,180             
Contracted services 51,085             224,932           276,017           
Utilities 136,755           5,424               142,179           
Depreciation 322,766           385,792           708,558           
Equipment -                      1,815               1,815               
Miscellaneous 10,932             7,139               18,071             

Total operating expenses 689,748           691,561           1,381,309        

Operating loss (124,474)         (294,832)         (419,306)         

Nonoperating Revenues
Investment income 24,728             11,022             35,750             
Connection charges 555,397           443,370           998,767           

Total nonoperating revenue 580,125           454,392           1,034,517        

Income before transfers 455,651           159,560           615,211           

Transfers out (271,425)         (450,188)         (721,613)         

Change in net position 184,226           (290,628)         (106,402)         

Net Position
Beginning of year, as previously stated 10,324,410      10,964,480      21,288,890      
Change in accounting principle (Note 11) 2,884               2,884               5,768               
Beginning of year 10,327,294      10,967,364      21,294,658      

End of year 10,511,520$    10,676,736$    21,188,256$    

See notes to financial statements. 27                    

 Year Ended December 31, 2018
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City of Dayton
Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds

 Year Ended December 31, 2018

Water (601) Sewer (602) Total
Cash Flows - Operating Activities

Receipts from customers and users 547,895$     369,569$     917,464$     
Payments to suppliers (265,544)      (257,936)      (523,480)      
Payments to employees (92,464)        (76,670)        (169,134)      

Net cash flows - operating activities 189,887       34,963         224,850       

Cash Flows - Noncapital
  Financing Activities

Loan to/from other funds 42,857         (5,533)          37,324         
Transfer from other funds 286,174       -                   286,174       
Transfer to other funds (557,599)      (450,188)      (1,007,787)   

Net cash flows - noncapital
  financing activities (228,568)      (455,721)      (684,289)      

Cash Flows - Capital and Related
  Financing Activities

Connection charges 555,397       443,370       998,767       
Acquisition of capital assets (66,773)        (26,873)        (93,646)        

Net cash flows - capital and related
  financing activities 488,624       416,497       905,121       

Cash Flows - Investing Activities
Interest and dividends received 24,728         11,022         35,750         

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 474,671       6,761           481,432       

Cash and Cash Equivalents
January 1 1,152,355    -                   1,152,355    

December 31 1,627,026$  6,761$         1,633,787$  

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to
  Net Cash Flows - Operating Activities

Operating loss (124,474)$    (294,832)$    (419,306)$    
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss
  to net cash flows - operating activities

Depreciation expense 322,766       385,792       708,558       
Net pension expense (26,348)        (24,700)        (51,048)        
Accounts receivable (18,953)        (12,765)        (31,718)        
Special assessments receivable 1,571           (828)             743              
Due from other governments 3                  (13,567)        (13,564)        
Prepaid items 4,709           (1,947)          2,762           
Accounts payable 5,473           5,170           10,643         
Due to other governments 22,715         (9,113)          13,602         
Salaries payable 721              691              1,412           
Compensated absences payable 3,056           2,414           5,470           
Net OPEB payable (1,352)          (1,352)          (2,704)          

Total adjustments 314,361       329,795       644,156       

Net cash flows - operating activities 189,887$     34,963$       224,850$     

See notes to financial statements. 28                



City of Dayton
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position - Agency Funds

December 31, 2018

Agency Funds
Assets

Cash and investments 722,534$         

Other receivables 413,881           

     Total assets 1,136,415$      

Liabilities
Escrow payable  $      1,136,415 

See notes to financial statements. 29                    
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
A. Reporting Entity 
The City of Dayton is a statutory city governed by an elected mayor and four council members. The 
accompanying financial statements present the government entities for which the government is 
considered to be financially accountable. 
 
The financial statements present the City and its component units. The City includes all funds, account 
groups, organizations, institutions, agencies, departments, and offices that are not legally separate from 
such. Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the City are 
financially accountable and are included within the basic financial statements of the City because of the 
significance of their operational or financial relationships with the City. 
 
The City is considered financially accountable for a component unit if it appoints a voting majority of 
the organization's governing body and it is able to impose its will on the organization by significantly 
influencing the programs, projects, activities, or level of services performed or provided by the 
organization or there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to or 
impose specific financial burdens on, the City. 
 
As a result of applying the component unit definition criteria above, a certain organization has been 
defined and is presented in this report as follows: 
 

Blended Component Unit – Reported as if they were part of the City. 
 

For the category above the specific entity is defined as follows: 
 

1. Blended Component Unit 
The Dayton Economic Development Authority (EDA) is a legal entity separate from the City; 
however, the EDA is reported as if it were part of the primary government because the EDA Board 
is the same as the City Council and the City can impose its will on the EDA.  
 
The activity of the EDA is shown in the EDA Special Revenue Fund. No separate financial 
statements are issued for the EDA.  
 

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of 
Activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the City. The fiduciary funds are 
only reported in the Statement of Fiduciary Net Position at the fund financial statement level. 
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are 
reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges 
for support. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 
The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or 
segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a 
specific function or segment. Interest on general long-term debt is considered an indirect expense and is 
reported separately in the Statement of Activities. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or 
applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given 
function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or 
capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included 
among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. Internally dedicated revenues are 
reported as general revenues rather than program revenues. 
 
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major 
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in 
the fund financial statements. 
 
The Agency Funds are presented in the fiduciary fund financial statements. Since, by definition, these 
assets are being held for the benefit of a third party (other local governments, private parties, etc.) and 
cannot be used to address activities or obligations of the City, these funds are not incorporated into the 
government-wide statements.  
 
C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial 
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, 
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for 
which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility 
requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 
 
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both 
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the 
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the 
City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current 
period. However, revenues related to grants are considered to be available within 12 months of the end 
of the current period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual 
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated 
absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. 
 
Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current period are all 
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current period. 
Only the portion of special assessments receivable due within the current period is considered to be 
susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are considered to be 
measurable and available only when cash is received by the City. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued) 
 
Description of Funds: 
 
Major Governmental Funds: 
 

General Fund – This fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of 
the general City, except those accounted for in another fund. 
 
2014A and 2015A General Obligation (G.O.) Improvement Bonds – This fund accounts for costs 
and revenues associated with the 2006A and 2007A bond issuances and bond repayment. 

 
2009A G.O. Improvement Bond and 2010A Improvement Notes – This fund accounts for costs and 
revenues associated with the 2009A and 2010A bond issuances and bond repayment. 

 
Dayton Parkway Project – This fund accounts for the resources accumulated for the Dayton Parkway 
improvements. 

 
Major Proprietary Funds: 

 
Water Fund – This fund accounts for the operations of the City's water utility. 
 
Sewer Fund – This fund accounts for the operations of the City's sewer utility. 

 
Fiduciary Funds: 
 

Developer Escrow Agency Fund – This fund accounts for the amounts related to developer escrows 
held by the City in a custodial capacity. 
 
Landscaping Escrow Agency Fund – This fund accounts for the landscaping costs related to 
developer escrows held by the City in a custodial capacity.  
 
ROW Escrow Fund – This fund accounts for the amounts related to right-of-way escrows held in a 
custodial capacity. 

 
As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial 
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the City's utility functions and various 
other functions of the City. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program 
revenues reported for the various functions concerned. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued) 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in 
connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of 
the proprietary funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise 
funds include salaries and benefits, supplies, repairs, miscellaneous costs, and depreciation on capital 
assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and 
expenses. 
 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use 
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.  
 

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position or Equity 
 

1. Deposits and Investments 
Cash and investments include balances from all funds that are combined and invested to the extent 
available in various securities as authorized by state law. Earnings from the pooled investments are 
allocated in the individual funds based on the average month end cash and investment balances. 
 

The City's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short 
term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.  
 

Minnesota Statutes authorizes the City to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, agencies and 
instrumentalities, shares of investment companies whose only investments are in the aforementioned 
securities, obligations of the State of Minnesota or its municipalities, bankers' acceptances, future 
contracts, repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements, and commercial paper of the highest 
quality with a maturity of no longer than 270 days and in the Minnesota Municipal Investment Pool. 
 

Certain investments for the City are reported at fair value as disclosed in Note 3. The City 
categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally 
accepted accounting principles. The Hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the 
fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 
inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.  
 

2. Receivables and Payables 
All trade and property tax receivables are shown at a gross amount since both are assessable to the 
property taxes and are collectible upon the sale of the property. 
 

The City levies its property tax for the subsequent year during the month of December. December 28 
is the last day the City can certify a tax levy to the County Auditors for collection the following year. 
Such taxes become a lien on January 1 and are recorded as receivables by the City at that date. The 
property tax is recorded as revenue when it becomes measurable and available. Hennepin County 
and Wright County are the collecting agencies for the levy and remit the collections to the City three 
times a year. The tax levy notice is mailed in March with the first half of the payment due on 
May 15 and the second half due on October 15. Taxes not collected as of December 31 each year are 
shown as delinquent taxes receivable. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position or Equity 

  (Continued) 
 
2. Receivables and Payables (Continued) 
The County Auditors prepare the tax lists for all taxable property in the City, applying the applicable 
tax rate to the tax capacity of individual properties, to arrive at the actual tax for each property. The 
County Auditors also collect all special assessments, except for certain prepayments paid directly to 
the City. 
 
The County Auditors submit the lists of taxes and special assessments to be collected on each parcel 
of property to the County Treasurers in January of each year. 
 
3. Inventory and Prepaid Items 
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as 
prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. Prepaid items are recorded as 
an expenditure at the time of consumption. 
 
4. Capital Assets 
Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, intangible, and infrastructure assets (e.g., 
roads, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type 
activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the 
City as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in 
excess of three years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if 
purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the date of 
donation. 

 
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially 
extend assets lives are not capitalized. 
 
Property, plant, and equipment of the City are depreciated using the straight-line method over the 
following estimated useful lives: 

 
Years

Buildings 20-35
Improvements 10-35
Infrastructure 20-35
Utilities 25
Machinery and equipment 4-20
Vehicles 4-20

Assets
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position or Equity 

  (Continued) 
 

5. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents a consumption 
of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of 
resources (expense/expenditure) until that time. The City presents deferred outflows of resources on 
the Statement of Net Position for deferred outflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB for 
various estimate differences that will be amortized and recognized over future years.  
 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position and fund financial statements will 
sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial 
statement element represents an acquisition of net position that applies to future periods and so will 
not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City has two items that 
qualify for reporting in this category. The City presents deferred inflows of resources on the 
Governmental Fund Balance Sheet as unavailable revenue. The governmental funds report 
unavailable revenues from two sources: property taxes and special assessments. These amounts are 
deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available. 
The City presents deferred inflows of resources on the Statement of Net Position for deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB for various estimate differences that will be 
amortized and recognized over future years.  
 
6. Compensated Absences 
The City compensates employees who resign or retire in good standing for all unused vacation. 
 
Sick leave may be accumulated and banked to a maximum of 960 hours for full-time employees. 
Employees are allowed to put a portion of their monthly accrual toward their short and long-term 
disability insurance, which is required by the City. An employee leaving employment voluntarily, 
with five or more years of continuous service with the City and leaving on good standing, will be 
paid at the base rate of pay, a half or one-third of the accumulated sick leave hours into a post 
retirement health care savings fund, depending on the employee's contract.  
 
Vacation and sick pay are considered expenditures in the year paid in the governmental fund 
statements, while in the proprietary and government-wide statements, vacation and sick pay are 
charged to expense when earned. 
 
7. Long-Term Obligations 
In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial 
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the 
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities or proprietary fund type Statement of Net 
Position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bond.  
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position or Equity 

  (Continued) 
 
7. Long-Term Obligations (Continued) 
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, 
as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported 
as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing 
sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, 
whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service 
expenditures. 
 
8. Pensions  
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows/inflows of resources, and 
pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Public Employees Retirement 
Association (PERA) and the relief association and additions to/deductions from PERA's and the 
relief association's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are 
reported by PERA and the relief association except that PERA's fiscal year end is June 30. For this 
purpose, plan contributions are recognized as of employer payroll paid dates and benefit payments 
and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments 
are reported at fair value. 

 
9. Fund Equity 
 

a. Classification 
In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund classifications that comprise a 
hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to honor constraints on the 
specific purpose for which amounts in those funds can be spent.  
 

 Nonspendable Fund Balance – These are amounts that cannot be spent because they are not 
in spendable form.  

 

 Restricted Fund Balance – These are amounts that are restricted to specific purposes either 
by a) constraints placed on the use of resources by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws 
or regulations of other governments or b) imposed by law through enabling legislation. 

 

 Committed Fund Balance – These are amounts that can only be used for specific purposes 
pursuant to constraints imposed by the City Council (highest level of decision making 
authority) through resolution. Committed balances can only be removed or changed through 
council resolution. 

 

 Assigned Fund Balance – These are amounts that are constrained by the City's intent to be 
used for specific purposes but are neither restricted nor committed. Assignments are made by 
the City Administrator based on the City Council's direction.  
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position or Equity 

  (Continued) 
 

9. Fund Equity (Continued) 
 

a. Classification (Continued) 
 Unassigned Fund Balance – These are residual amounts in the General Fund not reported in 

any other classification. The General Fund is the only fund that can report a positive 
unassigned fund balance. Other funds would report a negative unassigned fund balance 
should the total of nonspendable, restricted and committed fund balances exceed the total net 
resources of that fund. 

 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to 
first use restricted resources and then use unrestricted resources as they are needed.  
 
When committed, assigned, or unassigned resources are available for use, it is the City's policy 
to use resources in the following order:  1) committed, 2) assigned, and 3) unassigned. 
 
b. Minimum Fund Balance 
The City's target General Fund balance is to maintain 40% of the subsequent year's budgeted 
expenditures. 

 
10. Net Position 
Net position represents the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources; and 
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources in the government-wide financial statements. Net 
investment in capital assets, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by 
the outstanding balance of any long-term debt used to build or acquire the capital assets. A 
reclassification of $10,992,500 was made between this net position class and unrestricted net 
position in the total column of the Statement of Net Position to recognize the portion of debt 
attributable to capital assets donated from governmental activities to business-type activities. Net 
position is reported as restricted in the government-wide financial statement when there are 
limitations on use through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations 
of other governments. 

 
11. Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the 
date of the financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
E. Budgetary Information 

1. In August of each year, City staff submits to the City Council, a proposed operating budget for 
the year commencing the following January 1. The operating budget includes proposed 
expenditures and the means of financing them for the upcoming year. 

2. Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments. 
3. The budget is legally enacted through passage of a resolution after obtaining taxpayer comments. 
4. The budget for the General Fund is adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles 

generally accepted in the United States of America. 
5. Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the department level. No fund's 

budget can be increased without City Council approval. The City Council may authorize transfer 
of budgeted amounts between departments within any fund. Management may amend budgets 
within a department level, so long as the total department budget is not changed. 

6. The annual appropriated budget is adopted during the year for the General Fund. Annual 
appropriated budgets are not adopted for Debt Service Funds because effective budgetary control 
is alternatively achieved through bond indenture provisions. Budgetary control for Capital 
Projects Funds is accomplished through the use of project controls and formal appropriated 
budgets are not adopted. 

7. Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted or as amended by the City Council. Individual 
amendments were not material in relation to the original amounts budgeted. Budgeted 
expenditure appropriations lapse at year-end. 

 
NOTE 2 – STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
 
A. Deficit Fund Balance 
 
The following Funds had a deficit fund balance at December 31, 2018: 
 
Dayton Parkway 1,643,014$  
TIF No. 16 Sand Companies 11,232         
TIF No. 15 French Lake Industrial Park 1,484           
Sundance Sewer Truck 485,714       

 
NOTE 3 – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 
 
Cash balances of the City's funds are combined (pooled) and invested to the extent available in various 
investments authorized by Minnesota Statutes. Each fund's portion of this pool (or pools) is displayed in 
the financial statements as "cash and cash equivalents" or "investments". For purposes of identifying 
risk of investing public funds, the balances and related restrictions are summarized as follows. 
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NOTE 3 – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
A. Deposits 
Custodial Credit Risk – Deposits:  For deposits, this is the risk that in the event of bank failure, the 
City's deposits, and investments may not be returned to it. The City has a policy in place to address 
custodial credit risk for deposits, stating all deposits will be insured or collateralized in accordance with 
Minnesota Statutes 118A. As of December 31, 2018, the City's bank balance of $4,391,798 was not 
exposed to custodial credit risk as the amount was insured through FDIC insurance and secured with 
pledged collateral. 
 
As of December 31, 2018, the City's book balance for deposits was as follows: 
 
Deposits 4,148,262$     
Petty cash 396                 

Total deposits 4,148,658$     

B. Investments 
 

As of December 31, 2018, the City had the following investments: 
 

Fair Less than Greater than
Investment Type Value One Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years Five Years

Municipal bonds 299,109$        -$                   299,109$        -$                   -$                   
Brokered certificates of deposit 2,421,184       1,370,020       819,415          231,749          -                     
Brokered money market account 8,135,167       8,135,167       -                     -                     -                     

Total 10,855,460$   9,505,187$     1,118,524$     231,749$        -$                   

Investment Maturities

Credit Risk:  This is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its 
obligations. Minnesota Statutes 118A.04 and 118A.05 limit investments in the top two ratings issued by 
nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. The City's investment policy limits investments to 
the following:  government securities, certificates of deposit fully covered by FDIC insurance, 
repurchase agreements, reverse repurchase agreements, prime commercial paper, and general 
obligations of the State of Minnesota or any of its municipalities and bankers' acceptances. The City's 
investments in municipal bonds were rated A to AAA by Standard & Poor's (S&P). The remaining 
investments were unrated. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk:  This is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of an investment in a 
single issuer. The City's investment policy states the City will attempt to diversify its investments 
according to type and maturity. As of December 31, 2018, no investments exceeded 5% of the City's 
total investments.  
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NOTE 3 – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
B. Investments (Continued) 
 
Custodial Credit Risk – Investments:  For an investment, this is the risk that in the event of the failure of 
the counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities 
that are in the possession of an outside party. The City's investment policy states all financial institutions 
and broker/dealers qualified for investment transactions with the City must comply with Minnesota 
Statutes 118A. The policy further states all investment securities will be held by brokers only to the 
extent SIPC and excess SIPC coverage is available. The City's investments held by the broker-dealer 
were insured by Securities Investor Protection Corporation (SIPC) or other supplemental insurance as of  
December 31, 2018. However, each investment brokerage firm may have a limit to their supplemental 
insurance and because of the size of the City's portfolio in relation to the brokerage firm's excess SIPC 
coverage limits, the portion of the supplemental policy applicable to the City's portfolio is unknown. 
The City accepts the risk due to the controls in place at the broker-dealer. 
 
Interest Rate Risk:  This is the risk that market values of securities in a portfolio would decrease due to 
changes in market interest rates. The City's investment policy states the City will minimize interest rate 
risk by diversifying their portfolio according to type and maturity and as much as possible, contain both 
short-term and long-term investments. 
 
The City has the following recurring fair value measurements as of December 31, 2018: 

 $299,109 of investments are valued using a quoted market prices (Level 1 inputs) 
 $2,421,184 of investments are valued using a matrix pricing model (Level 2 inputs) 

 
The following is a summary of total deposits and investments: 
 
Deposits 4,148,658$        
Investments 10,855,460        

Total deposits and investments 15,004,118$      

 
Deposits and investments are presented in the December 31, 2018, basic financial statements as follows: 
 
Statement of Net Position

Cash and investments (including cash equivalents) 14,281,584$        
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Cash and investments 722,534               

Total deposits and investments 15,004,118$        
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NOTE 4 – INTERFUND ACTIVITY 
 
A. Transfers 

2014A and 2015A Other 
General G.O. Improvement Dayton Governmental

Fund Bonds Parkway Funds Total
Transfers out

General Fund -$                        -$                        -$                         314,674$             314,674$             
2014A and 2015A G.O. Improvement Bonds -                          -                          -                           634                      634                      
2009A G.O. Improvement Bond -                          -                          -                           8,081                   8,081                   
Dayton Parkway -                          -                          -                           191,799               191,799               
Other governmental funds 64,545                 430,379               44,060                 148,961               687,945               
Water Fund -                          271,425               -                           -                          271,425               
Sewer Fund -                          180,338               -                           269,850               450,188               

Total 64,545$               882,142$             44,060$               933,999$             1,924,746$          

Transfers In

The transfers were done to fund revolving capital project funds, and to subsidize operations. 
 
B. Interfund Balances 

 
The following amounts are due from other funds to cover temporary deficit cash balances and internal 
financing of projects: 
 

Due from 
Other Funds
General Fund

Due to other funds
Dayton Parkway 1,560,346$       

Total 1,560,346$       

 
The following amounts are advances to other funds for interfund loans to finance various projects: 
 

Advances from 
Other Funds

Other 
Governmental 

Funds
Advances to other funds

General Fund 168,029$          
Other governmental funds 10,285              
Water Fund 171,429            
Sewer Fund 171,429            

Total 521,172$          

 
Interfund loans for the Sewer Trunk and Tax Increment Funds are payable over more than one year. 
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NOTE 5 – CAPITAL ASSETS  
 
Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2018 was as follows: 
 

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Governmental activities
Capital assets not being depreciated

Land 2,925,462$   -$                  -$                  2,925,462$   
Construction in progress 1,866,043     1,017,996     1,873,432     1,010,607     

Total capital assets
  not being depreciated 4,791,505     1,017,996     1,873,432     3,936,069     

Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings and improvements 5,166,841     257,620        -                    5,424,461     
Infrastructure 24,531,367   1,415,015     -                    25,946,382   
Machinery and equipment 4,085,838     684,230        12,752          4,757,316     

Total capital assets
  being depreciated 33,784,046   2,356,865     12,752          36,128,159   

Less accumulated depreciation for
Buildings and improvements 964,766        147,569        -                    1,112,335     
Infrastructure 7,850,478     843,324        -                    8,693,802     
Machinery and equipment 1,824,411     273,253        10,737          2,086,927     

Total accumulated
depreciation 10,639,655   1,264,146     10,737          11,893,064   

Total capital assets being
  depreciated, net 23,144,391   1,092,719     2,015            24,235,095   

Governmental activities capital
  assets, net 27,935,896$ 2,110,715$   1,875,447$   28,171,164$ 
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NOTE 5 – CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 
 

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Business-type activities
Capital assets not being depreciated

Land 113,767$      -$                  -$                  113,767$      
Construction in progress -                    39,900          -                    39,900          

Total capital assets
  not being depreciated 113,767        39,900          -                    153,667        

Capital assets being depreciated
Collection and distribution system 26,082,586   -                    -                    26,082,586   
Machinery and equipment 47,911          53,746          -                    101,657        

Total capital assets being
  depreciated 26,130,497   53,746          -                    26,184,243   

Less accumulated depreciation for
Collection and distribution system 6,342,846     704,193        -                    7,047,039     
Machinery and equipment 46,388          4,365            -                    50,753          

Total accumulated
depreciation 6,389,234     708,558        -                    7,097,792     

Total capital assets being
  depreciated, net 19,741,263   (654,812)       -                    19,086,451   

Business-type activities,
  capital assets, net 19,855,030$ (614,912)$     -$                  19,240,118$ 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the City as follows: 
 
Governmental activities

General government 39,828$           
Public safety 183,868           
Public works 1,009,201        
Parks and recreation 31,249             

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities 1,264,146$      

Business-type activities
Water 322,766$         
Sewer 385,792           

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities 708,558$         
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NOTE 6 – LONG-TERM DEBT 
 
A. Components of Long-Term Liabilities 
 

Issue Interest Original Final Principal Due Within 
Date Rates Issue Maturity Outstanding One Year

Long-term liabilities
Governmental activities

Bonds payable
2009A G.O. Improvement 11/19/09 2.25%-4.55% 3,060,000$      02/01/30 1,970,000$      145,000$         
2014A G.O. Refunding 09/09/14 2.0%-3.0% 9,685,000        02/01/30 9,060,000        705,000           
2015A G.O. Refunding 01/08/15 2.25%-3.0% 7,430,000        02/01/27 6,880,000        590,000           
2016A G.O. CIP 09/01/16 2.00%-2.75% 3,610,000        02/01/37 3,450,000        200,000           

Street reconstruction
2015B G.O. Street Reconstruction 05/13/15 2.000% 2,325,000        02/01/23 1,690,000        325,000           

Utility revenue
2013A G.O. Utility Revenue 11/20/13 3.0% 2,335,000        02/01/24 995,000           560,000           

PFA notes payable
2000A G.O. Improvement Notes 08/20/01 3.25% 1,137,000        08/20/21 124,000           40,000             
2010A Improvement Notes 05/06/10 1.65% 750,449           08/20/29 461,000           39,000             
2012B G.O. Refunding Notes 08/16/12 0.35%-1.25% 1,170,000        08/01/20 300,000           150,000           

Unamortized premium 695,955           -                      
Compensated absences 188,653           18,865             

Total government activities 25,814,608      2,772,865        

Business-type activities
Compensated absences 19,957             1,996               

 Total long-term liabilities 25,834,565$    2,774,861$      

 
Long-term bonded indebtedness listed above were issued to finance acquisition and construction of 
capital infrastructure or facilities or to refinance (refund) previous bond issues.  
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NOTE 6 – LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 
 
B. Changes in Long-Term Liabilities 

 
Long-term liability activity for the year ended December 31, 2018, was as follows: 
 

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Reductions Balance

Governmental activities
Bonds payable

G.O. Improvement Bonds 5,720,000$    -$                   300,000$       5,420,000$    
G.O. Equipment Certificates 105,000         -                     105,000         -                     
G.O. Refunding Bonds 17,115,000    -                     1,175,000      15,940,000    
G.O. Utility Revenue 1,325,000      -                     330,000         995,000         
G.O. Street Construction 2,010,000      -                     320,000         1,690,000      
Unamortized premium 780,031         -                     84,076           695,955         

Notes payable 1,107,000      -                     222,000         885,000         
Contract for deed payable 155,000         -                     155,000         -                     
Compensated absences 146,189         69,708           27,244           188,653         

Total governmental
activities 28,463,220    69,708           2,718,320      25,814,608    

Compensated absences 14,488           7,696             2,227             19,957           

Total long-term
  liabilities 28,477,708$  77,404$         2,720,547$    25,834,565$  

The General Fund typically liquidates the liability related to compensated absences. 
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NOTE 6 – LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 
 
C. Long-Term Debt 
 
The annual requirements to amortize all bonded debt outstanding follows: 
 

Year Ended G.O. Improvement Bonds
December 31, Principal Interest Principal Interest

2019 345,000$       154,455$       229,000$       15,030$         
2020 340,000         145,297         230,000         11,585           
2021 350,000         135,945         83,000           7,732             
2022 365,000         126,028         40,000           5,673             
2023 305,000         116,199         41,000           5,012             

2024-2028 1,675,000      426,976         217,000         14,605           
2029-2033 1,250,000      173,842         45,000           744                
2034-2038 790,000         43,900           -                     -                     

Total 5,420,000$    1,322,642$    885,000$       60,381$         

Year Ended
December 31, Principal Interest Principal Interest

2019 325,000$       30,550$         1,295,000$    443,938$       
2020 330,000         24,000           1,225,000      412,637         
2021 340,000         17,300           1,170,000      382,163         
2022 345,000         10,450           1,205,000      346,587         
2023 350,000         3,500             1,240,000      305,087         

2024-2028 -                    -                    6,830,000      951,319         
2029-2033 -                    -                    2,975,000      90,075           

Total 1,690,000$    85,800$         15,940,000$  2,931,806$    

Governmental Activities
PFA - Notes Payable

G.O. Street Reconstruction G.O. Refunding Bonds
Governmental Activities
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NOTE 6 – LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 
 

C. Long-Term Debt (Continued) 
 

Year Ended
December 31, Principal Interest Principal Interest

2019 560,000$       21,450$         2,754,000$    665,423$       
2020 85,000           11,775           2,210,000      605,294         
2021 85,000           9,225             2,028,000      552,365         
2022 85,000           6,675             2,040,000      495,413         
2023 90,000           4,050             2,026,000      433,848         

2024-2028 90,000           1,350             8,812,000      1,394,250      
2029-2033 -                    -                    4,270,000      264,661         
2034-2038 -                    -                    790,000         43,900           

2037 -                    -                    -                 -                     

Total 995,000$       54,525$         24,930,000$  4,455,154$    

Total Governmental ActivitesG.O. Utility Revenue
Governmental Activities

 
NOTE 7 – FUND BALANCE DETAIL  
 

Fund equity balances are classified as follows to reflect the limitations and restrictions of the respective 
funds: 

2009A G.O.
2006A and 2007A Improvement Bond Brockton / Other

General G.O. Improvement and 2010A Transportation Governmental
Fund Bonds Improvement Notes Fund Funds Total

Nonspendable
Advances to other funds 168,029$     -$                        -$                        -$                      -$                 168,029$      
Prepaid items 4,715           -                          -                          -                        -                   4,715            

Total nonspendable 172,744       -                          -                          -                        -                   172,744        

Restricted
Debt service -                   2,518,901            3,003,207            -                        451,428       5,973,536     
Police forfeitures -                   -                          -                          -                        16,599         16,599          
TIF districts -                   -                          -                          -                        93,169         93,169          
Park dedication -                   -                          -                          -                        842,166       842,166        

Total restricted -                   2,518,901            3,003,207            -                        1,403,362    6,925,470     

Committed
Cable Fund -                   -                          -                          -                        126,075       126,075        
EDA -                   -                          -                          -                        118,047       118,047        
Park development -                   -                          -                          -                        112,061       112,061        

Total restricted -                   -                          -                          -                        356,183       356,183        

Assigned
Park trails -                   -                          -                          -                        421,770       421,770        
Capital projects -                   -                          -                          -                        4,400,229    4,400,229     

Total unassigned -                   -                          -                          -                        4,821,999    4,821,999     

Unassigned 1,932,839    -                          -                          (1,643,014)        (498,430)      (208,605)       

Total fund balance 2,105,583$  2,518,901$          3,003,207$          (1,643,014)$      6,083,114$  12,067,791$ 
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NOTE 8 – RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The City purchases commercial insurance coverage through the League of Minnesota Cities Insurance 
Trust (LMCIT) with other cities in the state which is a public entity risk pool currently operating as a 
common risk management and insurance program. The City pays an annual premium to the LMCIT for 
its insurance coverage. The LMCIT is self-sustaining through commercial companies for excess claims. 
The City is covered through the pool for any claims incurred but unreported, however, retains the risk 
for the deductible portion of its insurance policies. The amount of these deductibles is considered 
immaterial to the financial statements. 
 
There were no significant reductions in insurance from the previous year or settlements in excess of 
insurance coverage for any of the past three years. 
 
The City's workers' compensation insurance policy is retrospectively rated. With this type of policy, 
final premiums are determined after loss experience is known. The amount of premium adjustment for 
2018 was estimated to be immaterial based on workers' compensation rates and salaries for the year. 
 
At December 31, 2018, there were no other claims liabilities reported in the Fund based on the 
requirements of GASB Statement No. 10, which requires a liability for claims be reported if information 
prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates it is probable a liability has been incurred at 
the date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. 
 
NOTE 9 – PENSION PLANS  
 
The City participates in various pension plans, total pension expense for the year ended December 31, 
2018, was $153,864. The components of pension expense are noted in the following plan summaries. 
 
Public Employees' Retirement Association 
 
A. Plan Description 
The City participates in the following cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans 
administered by PERA. PERA's defined benefit pension plans are established and administered in 
accordance with Minnesota Statutes, Chapters 353 and 356. PERA's defined benefit pension plans are 
tax qualified plans under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. 
 
General Employees Retirement Plan (General Employees Plan, accounted for in the General Employees 
Fund) 
 
All full-time and certain part-time employees of the City are covered by the General Employees Plan. 
General Employees Plan members belong to the Coordinated Plan. Coordinated Plan members are 
covered by Social Security. 
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NOTE 9 – PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 
 
Public Employees' Retirement Association (Continued) 
 
A. Plan Description (Continued) 
Public Employees Police and Fire Plan (Police and Fire Plan, accounted for in the Police and Fire Fund) 
 
The Police and Fire Plan, originally established for police officers and firefighters not covered by a local 
relief association, now covers all police officers and firefighters hired since 1980. Effective July 1, 
1999, the Police and Fire Plan also covers police officers and firefighters belonging to a local relief 
association that elected to merge with and transfer assets and administration to PERA. 
 
B. Benefits Provided 
PERA provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit provisions are established by state 
statute and can only be modified by the state legislature. Vested, terminated employees who are entitled 
to benefits but are not receiving them yet are bound by the provisions in effect at the time they last 
terminated their public service.  
 
General Employees Plan Benefits 
 
General Employees Plan benefits are based on a member's highest average salary for any five successive 
years of allowable service, age, and years of credit at termination of service. Two methods are used to 
compute benefits for PERA's Coordinated Plan members. Members hired prior to July, 1 1989, receive 
the higher of Method 1 or Method 2 formulas. Only Method 2 is used for members hired after June 30, 
1989. Under Method 1, the accrual rate for a Coordinated member is 1.2% for each of the first ten years 
of service and 1.7% for each additional year. Under Method 2, the accrual rate for Coordinated members 
is 1.7% for all years of service. For members hired prior to July 1, 1989, a full annuity is available when 
age plus years of service equal 90 and normal retirement age is 65. For members hired on or after July 1, 
1989, normal retirement age is the age for unreduced Social Security benefits capped at 66.  
 
Benefit increases are provided to benefit recipients each January. Increases are related to the funding 
ratio of the plan. If the General Employees Plan is at least 90% funded for two consecutive years, 
benefit recipients are given a 2.5% increase. If the plan has not exceeded 90% funded, or have fallen 
below 80%, benefit recipients are given a one percent increase. A benefit recipient who has been 
receiving a benefit for at least 12 full months as of June 30, will receive a full increase. Members 
receiving benefits for at least one month but less than 12 full months as of June 30, will receive a pro 
rata increase. 
 
Police and Fire Plan Benefits 
 
Benefits for the Police and Fire Plan members first hired after June 30, 2010, but before July 1, 2014, 
vest on a prorated basis from 50% after five years up to 100% after ten years of credited service. 
Benefits for Police and Fire Plan members first hired after June 30, 2014, vest on a prorated basis from 
50% after ten years up to 100% after twenty years of credited service. The annuity accrual rate is 3% of 
average salary for each year of service. For Police and Fire Plan who were first hired prior to July 1, 
1989, a full annuity is available when age plus years of service equal at least 90. 
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NOTE 9 – PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 
 

Public Employees' Retirement Association (Continued) 
 

B. Benefits Provided (Continued) 
Benefit increases are provided to benefit recipients each January. Police and Fire Plan benefit recipients 
receive a future annual 1.0% increase. An annual adjustment will equal 2.5% any time the plan exceeds 
a 90% funded ratio for two consecutive years. If the adjustment is increased to 2.5% and the funded 
ratio falls below 80% for one year or 85% for two consecutive years, the post-retirement benefit 
increase will be lowered to one percent. A benefit recipient who has been receiving a benefit for at least 
12 full months as of June 30 will receive a full increase. Members receiving benefits for at least one 
month but less than 12 full months as of June 30 will receive a pro rata increase. For retirements after 
May 31, 2014, the first increase will be delayed two years. 
 

C. Contributions 
Minnesota Statutes Chapter 353 sets the rates for employer and employee contributions. Contribution 
rates can only be modified by the state legislature.  
 

General Employees Fund Contributions 
 

Coordinated Plan members were required to contribute 6.5%, of their annual covered salary in calendar 
year 2018. The City was required to contribute 7.50% for Coordinated Plan members in calendar year 
2018. The City's contributions to the General Employees Fund for the year ended December 31, 2018, 
were $64,295. The City's contributions were equal to the required contributions as set by state statute. 
 

Police and Fire Fund Contributions 
 

Plan members were required to contribute 10.8% of their annual covered salary and the City was 
required to contribute 16.20% of pay for members in fiscal year 2018. The City's contributions to the 
Police and Fire Fund for the year ended December 31, 2018, were $94,135. The City's contributions 
were equal to the required contributions as set by state statute.  
 

D. Pension Costs 
 

General Employees Fund Pension Costs 
 

At December 31, 2018, the City reported a liability of $615,782 for its proportionate share of the 
General Employees Fund's net pension liability. The City's net pension liability reflected a reduction due 
to the State of Minnesota's contribution of $16 million to the fund in 2018. The State of Minnesota is 
considered a non-employer contributing entity and the State's contribution meets the definition of a 
special funding situation. The State of Minnesota's proportionate share of the net pension liability 
associated with the City totaled $20,262. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2018, 
and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of that date. The City's proportion of the net pension liability was based on the City's 
contributions received by PERA during the measurement period for employer payroll paid dates from 
July 1, 2017, through June 30, 2018, relative to the total employer contributions received from all of 
PERA's participating employers. At June 30, 2018, the City's proportion share was 0.0111%, which was 
an increase of 0.0012% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2017. 
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NOTE 9 - PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 
 
Public Employees' Retirement Association (Continued) 
 
General Employees Fund Pension Costs (Continued) 
 
D. Pension Costs (Continued) 
 
City's proportionate share of the net pension liability 615,782$         

State of Minnesota's proportionate share of the net pension
  liability associated with the City 20,262             

Total 636,044$         

 
For the year ended December 31, 2018, the City recognized pension expense of $67,289 for its 
proportionate share of General Employees Plan's pension expense. Included in the amount the City 
recognized $4,725 as pension expense (and grant revenue) for its proportionate share of the State of 
Minnesota's contribution of $16 million to the General Employees Fund.  
 
At December 31, 2018, the City reported its proportionate share of the General Employees Plan's 
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources, related to pensions from the following 
sources: 
 

Differences between expected and actual economic experience 14,615$        15,695$        
Changes in actuarial assumptions 51,404          64,071          
Difference between projected and actual investment earnings -                   63,956          
Changes in proportion 74,645          -                   
Contributions paid to PERA subsequent
  to the measurement date 32,148          -                   

172,812$      143,722$      

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources
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NOTE 9 - PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 
 
Public Employees' Retirement Association (Continued) 
 
D. Pension Costs (Continued) 
$32,148 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from City contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the 
year ended December 31, 2019. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

Year Ending Pension Expense
December 31, Amount

2019 46,587$               
2020 (9,230)                  
2021 (27,563)                
2022 (12,852)                

Total (3,058)$                

 
Police and Fire Fund Pension Costs  
 
At December 31, 2018, the City reported a liability of $584,464 for its proportionate share of the Police 
and Fire Fund's net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2018, and 
the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of that date. The City's proportion of the net pension liability was based on the City's 
contributions received by PERA during the measurement period for employer payroll paid dates from 
July 1, 2017, through June 30, 2018, relative to the total employer contributions received from all of 
PERA's participating employers. At June 30, 2018, the City's proportion was 0.0553%, which was an 
increase of 0.0043% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2017. The City also recognized $4,977 
for the year ended December 31, 2018, as revenue and an offsetting reduction of the net pension liability 
for its proportionate share of the State of Minnesota's on-behalf contributions to the Police and Fire 
Fund. Legislation passed in 2013 required the State of Minnesota to begin contributing $9 million to the 
Police and Fire Fund each year, starting in fiscal year 2014. 
 
For the year ended December 31, 2018, the City recognized pension expense of $68,761 for its 
proportionate share of the Police and Fire Fund pension expense.  
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NOTE 9 - PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 
 
Public Employees' Retirement Association (Continued) 
 
D. Pension Costs (Continued) 
 
Police and Fire Fund Pension Costs (Continued) 
 
At December 31, 2018, the City reported its proportionate share of the Police and Fire Plan's deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the sources below and 
on the following page. 
 

Differences between expected and actual economic experience 22,690$         136,379$      
Changes in actuarial assumptions 702,342         801,795        
Difference between projected and actual investment earnings -                     117,602        
Changes in proportion 65,423           71,508          
Contributions paid to PERA subsequent
   to the measurement date 47,067           -                   

837,522$       1,127,284$   

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources

 
$47,067 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from City contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the 
year ended December 31, 2019. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources 
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

Pension
Year Ending Expense

December 31, Amount

2019 (12,558)$      
2020 (37,304)        
2021 (71,352)        
2022 (223,348)      
2023 7,733            

Total (336,829)$    
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NOTE 9 - PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 
 
Public Employees' Retirement Association (Continued) 
 
E.  Actuarial Assumptions 
 
The total pension liability in the June 30, 2018, actuarial valuation was determined using the entry age 
normal actuarial cost method and the following actuarial assumptions: 

Inflation 2.50 % Per year
Active member payroll growth 3.25 % Per year
Investment rate of return 7.50 %

 
Salary increases were based on a service-related table. Mortality rates for active members, retirees, 
survivors, and disabilitants for all plans were based on RP 2014 tables for males or females, as 
appropriate, with slight adjustments to fit PERA’s experience. Cost of living benefit increases after 
retirement for retirees are assumed to be 1.25% per year for the General Employees Plan, 1.0% per year 
for the Police and Fire Plan, and 2.0% per year for the Correctional Plan. 
 
Actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 valuation were based on the results of actuarial 
experience studies. The most recent six-year experience study in the General Employees Plan was 
completed in 2015. The most recent four-year experience study for Police and Fire Plan was completed 
in 2016. The five-year experience study for the Correctional Plan, prepared by a former actuary, was 
completed in 2012. The mortality assumption for the Correctional Plan is based on the Police and Fire 
Plan experience study completed in 2016. Economic assumptions were updated in 2017 based on a 
review of inflation and investment return assumptions. 
 
The following changes in actuarial assumptions occurred in 2018: 
 
General Employees Fund 

 The mortality projection scale was changed from MP-2015 to MP-2017.  
 The assumed benefit increase was changed from 1.0% per year through 2044 and 2.5% per year 

thereafter to 1.25% per year. 
 
Police and Fire Fund 

 The mortality projection scale was changed from MP-2016 to MP-2017. 
 As set by statute, the assumed post-retirement benefit increase was changed from 1.0% per year 

through 2064 and 2.5% per year, thereafter, to 1.0% for all years, with no trigger. 
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NOTE 9 - PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 
 
Public Employees' Retirement Association (Continued) 
 
E. Actuarial Assumptions (Continued) 
The State Board of Investment, which manages the investments of PERA, prepares an analysis of the 
reasonableness on a regular basis of the long-term expected rate of return using a building-block method 
in which best-estimate ranges of expected future rates of return are developed for each major asset class. 
These ranges are combined to produce an expected long-term rate of return by weighting the expected 
future rates of return by the target asset allocation percentages. The target allocation and best estimates 
of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table: 
 

Domestic stocks 36 % 5.10 %
International stocks 17 5.30
Bonds 20 0.75
Alternative assets 25 5.90
Cash 2 0.00

Total 100 %

Asset Class

Long-Term 
Expected Real 
Rate of Return

Target 
Allocation

F. Discount Rate 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability in 2018 was 7.5%. The projection of cash 
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from Plan members and employers 
will be made at rates set in Minnesota Statutes. Based on those assumptions, the fiduciary net position of 
the General Employees Fund and the Police and Fire Fund was projected to be available to make all 
projected future benefit payments of current Plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of 
return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine 
the total pension liability. 
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NOTE 9 - PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 
 
Public Employees' Retirement Association (Continued) 
 
G. Pension Liability Sensitivity 
The following table presents the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability for all plans it 
participates in, calculated using the discount rate disclosed in the preceding paragraph, as well as what 
the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount 
rate 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current discount rate: 
 

1% Decrease in 1% Increase in 

City's proportionate share of
  the General Employees Fund
  net pension liability 1,000,725$    615,782$       298,023$       

1% Decrease in 1% Increase in 

City's proportionate share of
  the Police and Fire Fund
  net pension liability 1,258,822$    584,464$       26,798$         

Discount Rate 
(6.5%)

Discount Rate 
(7.5%)

Discount Rate 
(8.5%)

Discount Rate 
(6.5%)

Discount Rate 
(7.5%)

Discount Rate 
(8.5%)

 
H. Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
Detailed information about each pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in a separately-issued 
PERA financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That 
report may be obtained on the Internet at www.mnpera.org. 
 
Defined Benefit Pension Plan – Volunteer Fire Fighter's Relief Association  
 
A. Plan Description 
The Dayton Firefighter's Relief Association is the administrator of a single employer defined benefit 
pension plan established to provide benefits for members of the Dayton Fire Department per Minnesota 
State Statutes. 
 
The Association issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to Dayton Firefighter's 
Association, 12260 South Diamond Lake Road, Dayton, MN 55327 or by calling 612-251-5935 or 
763-242-7001. 
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NOTE 9 - PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 
 
Defined Benefit Pension Plan – Volunteer Fire Fighter's Relief Association (Continued) 
 
B. Benefits Provided 
Volunteer firefighters of the City are members of the Dayton Fire Fighter's Relief Association. Full 
retirement benefits are payable to members who have reached age 50 and have completed 20 years of 
service for lump sum service pension. Partial benefits are payable to members who have reached 50 
and have completed 5 years of service. Disability benefits and widow and children's survivor benefits 
are also payable to members or their beneficiaries based upon requirements set forth in the bylaws. 
These benefit provisions and all other requirements are consistent with enabling state statutes. 
 
C. Employees Covered by Benefit Terms 

 
At December 31, 2016, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms: 
 

Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 9
Active employees 20

Total 29

 
D. Contributions 
Minnesota Statutes Chapter 424A.092 specifies minimum support rates required on an annual basis. The 
minimum support rates from the municipality and from State aids are determined as the amount required 
to meet the normal cost plus amortizing any existing prior service costs over a ten year period. The 
City's obligation is the financial requirement for the year less state aids. Any additional payments by the 
City shall be used to amortize the unfunded liability of the relief association. The Association is 
comprised of volunteers: therefore, there are no payroll expenditures (i.e. there are no covered payroll 
percentage calculations). During the year, the City recognized as revenue and as an expenditure an on 
behalf payment of $39,362 made by the State of Minnesota for the Relief Association.  
 
E. Net Pension Liability 
The City's net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2017, and the total pension liability 
used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. 
 
Actuarial assumptions 
The total pension liability in the December 31, 2017, actuarial valuation was determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 
 
Inflation 2.50 %
Investment rate of return 6.25 % net of pensions plan investment expense:

including inflation  
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NOTE 9 - PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 
 
Defined Benefit Pension Plan – Volunteer Fire Fighter's Relief Association (Continued) 
 
E. Net Pension Liability (Continued) 
 
Actuarial assumptions (Continued) 
The value of death benefits is similar to the value of the retirement pension. Because of low retirement 
ages, the plan assumes no pre-retirement mortality. Post-retirement mortality does not apply as the 
benefit structure and form of payment do not reflect lifetime benefits. 
 
The long-term return on assets has been set based on the plan's target investment allocation along with 
long-term return expectations by asset class. When there is sufficient historical evidence of market 
outperformance, historical average returns may be considered. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of 
return for each major asset class included in the pension plan's target asset allocation as of the 
measurement date are summarized in the table below. 
 

Asset Class

Cash 24.26 % 0.58 %
Fixed income 12.78 1.99
International equity 20.53 5.24
Domestic equity 42.43 4.19

Total 100.00 %

Target Allocation
Long-Term Expected
Real Rate of Return

 
Discount rate 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.25%. Assets were projected using 
expected benefit payments and expected asset returns. Expected benefit payments by year were 
discounted using the expected asset return assumption for years in which the assets were sufficient to 
pay all benefit payments. Any remaining benefit payments after the trust fund is exhausted are 
discounted at the municipal bond rate. The equivalent single rate is the discount rate. 
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NOTE 9 - PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 
 
Defined Benefit Pension Plan – Volunteer Fire Fighter's Relief Association (Continued) 
 
F. Changes in the Net Pension Liability 
 

Total Plan Fiduciary Net
Pension Net Pension 
Liability Position Liability

(a)  (b) (a) - (b)

Balances at December 31, 2017 520,443$         537,566$         (17,123)$          

Changes for the year
Service cost 17,214             -                       17,214             
Interest 33,453             -                       33,453             
Difference between expected and actual
  experience -                       -                       -                       
Changes in assumptions 3,224               -                       3,224               
State and municipal contributions -                       48,403             (48,403)            
Projected investment return -                       -                       -                       
Gain or loss -                       71,389             (71,389)            
Benefit payments, including refunds of -                       
  employee contributions (46,000)            (46,000)            -                       
Administrative expense -                       (10,986)            10,986             

Net charges 7,891               62,806             (54,915)            

Balances at December 31, 2018 528,334$         600,372$         (72,038)$          

Increase (Decrease)

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the net 
pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 6.25%, as well as what the City's net 
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower 
(5.25%) or 1-percentage-point higher (7.25%) than the current rate: 
 

1% Current 1%
 Decrease Discount Increase
(5.25%) Rate (6.25%) (7.25%)

City's net pension liability (64,901)$      (72,038)$       (78,718)$      

Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position 
is available in the separately issued relief association financial report.  
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NOTE 9 - PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 
 
Defined Benefit Pension Plan – Volunteer Fire Fighter's Relief Association (Continued) 
 
G. Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources  
   Related to Pensions 
For the year ended December 31, 2018, the City recognized pension expense of $(17,634). At  
December 31, 2017, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions from the following sources: 
 

Outflows of Inflows of 
Resources Resources

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 

  pension plan investments -$                     19,712$           
Change of assumptions 2,740               30,797             
Difference between expected and actual liability -                       20,461             
Contributions paid to Relief subsequent to the measurement date 39,363             -                       

Total 42,103$           70,970$           

$39,363 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from City contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the 
year ended December 31, 2018. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources 
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as shown on the following page: 
 

(11,106)$          
(10,785)            
(17,418)            
(16,795)            
(9,098)              

Thereafter (3,028)              

Total (68,230)$          

2019
2020
2021
2022
2023

 
H. Payable to the Pension Plan 
At December 31, 2018, the City reported a payable of $0 for the outstanding amount of contributions to 
the pension plan required for the year ended December 31, 2018. 
 
NOTE 10 – POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE PLAN 
 
A. Plan Description 
The City provides a single-employer defined benefit health care plan to eligible retirees and their 
spouses. The plan offers medical coverage. Medical coverage is administered by BlueCross BlueShield. 
It is the City's policy to periodically review its medical coverage and to obtain requests for proposals in 
order to provide the most favorable benefits and premiums for City employees and retirees. 
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NOTE 10 – POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE PLAN (CONTINUED) 
 
B. Benefits Provided 
Retirees and their spouses contribute to the health care plan at the same rate as City employees. This 
results in the retirees receiving an implicit rate subsidy.  
 
C. Contributions 
Contribution requirements are established by the City, based on the contract terms with BlueCross 
BlueShield. The required contributions are based on projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements. 
For year 2018, the City contributed $0 to the plan. As of December 31, 2018, there were no retirees 
receiving health benefits from the City's health plan. 
 
D. Members 
 
As of December 31, 2018, the following were covered by the benefit terms: 
 
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits -                 
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefit payments -                 
Active employees 14

Total 14

E. Actuarial Assumptions 
The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2017, using the 
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise 
specified: 
 

Investment rate of return 4.09%, net of investment expenses
Salary increases 3.50%, including inflation
Inflation 2.75%
Healthcare cost trend increases 8.5% initially, decreasing 0.5% per year 

to an ultimate rate of 5.0%

Mortality assumption RP-2014 with MP-2016 generational inputs

Key Methods and Assumptions Used in Valuation of Total OPEB Liability

 
The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2018, valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study for the period January 1, 2017– December 31, 2017.  
 
The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 4.09% based on 20 year municipal bond 
index.  
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NOTE 11 – POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE PLAN (CONTINUED) 
 
F. Total OPEB Liability  
The City's total OPEB liability of $68,379 was measured as of December 31, 2018, and was determined 
by an actuarial valuation as of that date. 
 
Changes in the total OPEB liability are as follows: 
 

Total 
OPEB

Liability 

Balances at January 1, 2018 65,711$        

Changes for the year
Service cost 5,100            
Interest 2,436            
Changes of assumptions (4,868)          

Net changes 2,668            

Balances at December 31, 2018 68,379$        

  
Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect a change in the discount rate from 3.44% in 2017 to 
4.09% in 2018.  
 
G. OPEB Liability Sensitivity  
The following presents the City's total OPEB liability calculated using the discount rate of 4.09% as 
well as the liability measured using 1% lower and 1% higher than the current discount rate. 
 

1% decrease Current 1% increase
(3.09%) (4.09%) (5.09%)

76,005$               68,379$               61,506$               

Total OPEB Liability/(Asset)
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NOTE 11 – POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE PLAN (CONTINUED) 
 
G. OPEB Liability Sensitivity (Continued) 
The following presents the total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City's total OPEB 
liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1% lower and 1% higher 
than the current healthcare cost trend rates.  
 

1% decrease Current 1% increase

58,677$               68,379$               79,877$               

Total OPEB Liability/(Asset)

(7.5% decreasing 
to 4.0%)

(8.5% decreasing 
to 5.0%)

(9.5% decreasing 
to 6.0%)

 
H. OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources  
   Related to OPEB 
For the year ended December 31, 2018, the City recognized OPEB expense of $(6,493). At  
December 31, 2018, the Distract reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to OPEB from the following sources: 
 

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of 
Resources Resources

Changes of assumptions -$                  4,499$         

Total -$                  4,499$         
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NOTE 11 – POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE PLAN (CONTINUED) 
 
H. OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources  
   Related to OPEB (Continued) 
 
Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB 
will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 
 
December 31, Total

2019 (369)$           
2020 (369)             
2021 (369)             
2022 (369)             
2023 (369)             

Thereafter (2,654)          

Total (4,499)$        

NOTE 12  TAX INCREMENT FINANCING 
 
The City has entered into three Tax Increment Financing agreements which meet the criteria for 
disclosure under Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 77 Tax Abatement 
Disclosures. The City's authority to enter into these agreements comes from Minnesota Statute 469. The 
City entered into these agreements for the purpose of economic development. 
 
Under each agreement, the City and developer agree on an amount of development costs to be 
reimbursed to the developer by the City though tax revenues from the additional taxable value of the 
property generated by the development (tax increment). A "pay-as-you-go" note is established for this 
amount, on which the City makes payments for a fixed period of time with available tax increment 
revenue after deducting for certain administrative costs. 
 
During the year ended December 31, 2018, the City generated $221,087 in tax increment revenue and 
made $194,782 in payments to developers. 
 
NOTE 13 – CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE 
 
For the year ended December 31, 2018, the City implemented GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions. This resulted in an adjustment to 
the beginning net position on the Statement of Activities of $61,353 to subtract from the beginning total 
OPEB liability.  
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NOTE 14 – NEW STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET IMPLEMENTED 
 
GASB Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations establishes criteria for determining the 
timing and pattern of recognition of a liability and a corresponding deferred outflow of resources for 
Asset Retirement Obligations (AROs). This statement requires that recognition occur when the liability 
is both incurred and reasonably estimable. The determination of when the liability is incurred should be 
based on the occurrence of external laws, regulations, contracts, or court judgments, together with the 
occurrence of an internal event that obligates a government to perform asset retirement activities. Laws 
and regulations may require governments to take specific actions to retire certain tangible capital assets 
at the end of the useful lives of those capital assets, such as decommissioning nuclear reactors and 
dismantling and removing sewage treatment plants. Other obligations to retire tangible capital assets 
may arise from contracts or court judgments. Internal obligating events include the occurrence of 
contamination, placing into operation a tangible capital asset that is required to be retired, abandoning a 
tangible capital asset before it is placed into operation, or acquiring a tangible capital asset that has an 
existing ARO. This statement will be effective for the year ending December 31, 2019. 
 
GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of 
all state and local governments. The focus of the criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is 
controlling the assets of the fiduciary activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary 
relationship exists. Separate criteria are included to identify fiduciary component units and 
postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary activities. This statement will be effective for 
the year ending December 31, 2019. 
 
GASB Statement No. 87, Leases establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the 
foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this 
statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and 
a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing 
the relevance and consistency of information about governments' leasing activities. This statement will 
be effective for the year ending December 31, 2020.  
 
GASB Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, Including Direct Borrowings and Direct 
Placements improves the information that is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. It also 
clarifies which liabilities governments should include when disclosing information related to debt. This 
statement will be effective for the year ending December 31, 2019.  
 
GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred Before the End of a Construction Period 
enhances the relevance and comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing 
for a reporting period and simplifies accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of a 
construction period. This statement will be effective for the year ending December 31, 2020.   
 
GASB Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests improves the consistency and comparability of 
reporting a government's majority equity interest in a legally separate organization and to improve the 
relevance of financial statement information for certain component units. This statement will be 
effective for the year ending December 31, 2019. 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 



December 31, 2018
Total OPEB Liability 

Service cost 5,100$                    
Interest 2,436                      
Changes of assumptions (4,868)                    

Net change in total OPEB liability 2,668                      

Beginning of year 65,711                    

End of year 68,379$                  

900,000$                

7.60%

Note: Schedule is intended to show ten year trend. Additional years will be reported as they become available.
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City of Dayton
Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability 

and Related Ratios

Covered-employee payroll

Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll



City's 
Covered 
Payroll 

2015 0.0090% 466,427$       -$                   466,427$          518,613$     89.9% 78.2%
2016 0.0097% 787,592         10,258           797,850            599,760       131.3% 68.9%
2017 0.0099% 632,009         7,914             639,923            635,107       99.5% 75.9%
2018 0.0111% 615,782         20,262           636,044            746,387       82.5% 79.5%

Note: Schedule is intended to show ten year trend. Additional years will be reported as they become available

For 
Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 
June 30,

City's 
Proportion of 

the Net 
Pension 
Liability 
(Asset)

City's 
Proportionate 
Share of the 
Net Pension 

Liability 
(Asset) 

City's Covered 
Payroll

City's 
Proportionate 

Share of the Net 
Pension 

Liability (Asset) 
as a Percentage 
of its Covered 

Payroll 

Plan 
Fiduciary 

Net Position 
as a 

Percentage of 
the Total 
Pension 
Liability

2015 0.0500% 568,117$       442,198$       128.5% 86.6%
2016 0.0530% 2,126,982      512,105         415.3% 63.9%
2017 0.0510% 683,971         527,062         129.8% 85.4%
2018 0.0553% 584,464         583,309         100.2% 88.8%

Note: Schedule is intended to show ten year trend. Additional years will be reported as they become available.
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City of Dayton
Schedule of City's Proportionate Share

of Net Pension Liability 

Last Ten Years

Schedule of City's Proportionate Share
of Net Pension Liability

General Employees Retirement Fund

City's 
Proportionate 

Share 
(Percentage) 

of the Net 
Pension 
Liability 
(Asset)

City's 
Proportionate 

Share 
(Amount) of 

the Net 
Pension 
Liability 
(Asset) 

City's 
Proportionate 
Share of the 
Net Pension 

Liability 
(Asset) as a 

Percentage of 
its Covered 

Payroll 

Plan 
Fiduciary Net 
Position as a 
Percentage of 

the Total 
Pension 
Liability

Last Ten Years

For 
Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 
June 30,

State's 
Proportionate 

Share 
(Amount) of 

the Net 
Pension 
Liability 

Associated 
with the City

City's 
Proportionate 

Share of the Net 
Pension 

Liability and the 
State's 

Proportionate 
Share of the Net 

Pension 
Liability 

Associated with 
the City

Public Employees Police and Fire Retirement Fund



2015 37,484$          37,484$          -$                    499,787$         7.5%
2016 39,581            39,581            -                      527,747           7.5%
2017 42,931            42,931            -                      572,413           7.5%
2018 64,295            64,295            -                      857,267           7.5%

2015 79,181$          79,181$          -$                    488,772$         16.2%
2016 87,135            87,135            -                      537,870           16.2%
2017 96,777            96,777            -                      597,389           16.2%
2018 94,135            94,135            -                      581,080           16.2%

70

City's Covered 
Payroll

Contributions 
as a Percentage 

of Covered 
Payroll

Note: Schedule is intended to show ten year trend. Additional years will be reported as they 
become available.

Contributions 
in Relation to 
the Statutorily 

Required 
Contributions

Statutorily 
Required 

Contribution

Note: Schedule is intended to show ten year trend. Additional years will be reported as they 
become available.

Schedule of City Contributions -
Public Employees Police and Fire Retirement Fund

Fiscal Year 
Ending 

December 31,

Statutorily 
Required 

Contribution

Last Ten Years

Contribution 
Deficiency 
(Excess)

Fiscal Year 
Ending 

December 31,

Contributions 
in Relation to 
the Statutorily 

Required 
Contributions

City's Covered 
Payroll

City of Dayton
Schedule of City Contributions -

General Employees Retirement Fund
Last Ten Years

Contribution 
Deficiency 
(Excess)

Contributions 
as a Percentage 

of Covered 
Payroll



2014 2015 2016 2017
Total Pension Liability (TPL)

Service cost 18,149$         18,648$         20,406$         17,214$         
Interest 38,117           37,818           38,745           33,453           
Differenced between expected and actual experience -                     -                     (28,111)         -                    
Changes of assumptions -                     -                     (42,311)         3,224             
Changes of benefit terms -                     -                     -                    -                    
Benefit payments, including refunds or member contributions (122,750)        -                     (87,913)         (46,000)         

Net change in total pension liability (66,484)          56,466           (99,184)         7,891             

Beginning of year 629,645         563,161         619,627         520,443         

End of year 563,161$       619,627$       520,443$       528,334$       

Plan Fiduciary Net Pension (FNP)
Contributions - employer 6,762$           -$                   -$                  -$                  
Contributions - non-employer 31,242           30,529           33,212           48,403           
Net investment income 37,200           1,754             36,637           71,389           
Loss on investments -                     -                     -                    -                    
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (122,750)        -                     (87,913)         (46,000)         
Administrative expense (7,285)            (6,035)            (8,365)           (10,986)         

Net change in plan fiduciary net position (54,831)          26,248           (26,429)         62,806           

Beginning of year 592,578         537,747         563,995         537,566         

End of year 537,747$       563,995$       537,566$       600,372$       

Net Pension Liability (NPL) 25,414$         55,632$         (17,123)$       (72,038)$       

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 
pension liability 95.5% 91.0% 103.3% 113.6%

Covered employee payroll n/a n/a n/a n/a

Net pension liability as a percentage of covered payroll n/a n/a n/a n/a
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The City implemented the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68 for the year ended 
December 31, 2015. The schedules within the Required Supplementary Information section required a ten-year 
presentation, but does not required retroactive reporting. Information prior to 2014 is not available. Additional years will 
be reported as they become available. 

Measurement Date

City of Dayton
Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability 
and Related Ratios - Fire Relief Association



2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Employer

Statutorily determined contribution (SDC) 6,762$           -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
Contribution in relation to the SDC 6,762             -                     -                     -                     -                     

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Non-employer
2% aid 34,832$         33,529$         31,212$         38,803$         39,363$         

Covered employee payroll n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

Contributions as a percentage of covered employee payroll n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
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The City implemented the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68 for the year ended December 31, 
2015. The schedules within the Required Supplementary Information section required a ten-year presentation, but does not required 
retroactive reporting. Information prior to 2014 is not available. Additional years will be reported as they become available. 

City of Dayton
Schedule of Employer Contributions

and Non-Employer Contributing 
Entities - Fire Relief Association
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GENERAL EMPLOYEES FUND 
 
2018 Changes  
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions 

 The mortality projection scale was changed from MP-2015 to MP-2017. 
 The assumed benefit increase was changed from 1.0% per year through 2044 and 2.5% per year 

thereafter to 1.25% percent per year. 
 
2017 Changes 
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions 

 The CSA loads were changed from 0.8% for active members and 60% for vested and non-vested 
deferred members. The revised CSA loads are now 0.0% for active member liability, 15% for 
vested deferred member liability and 3% for non-vested deferred member liability. 

 The assumed post-retirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.0% per year for all years 
to 1.0% per year through 2044 and 2.5% per year thereafter. 

 
2016 Changes 
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions 

 The assumed post-retirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.0% per year through 2035 
and 2.5% per year thereafter to 1.0% per year for all future years. 

 The assumed investment return was changed from 7.9% to 7.5%. The single discount rate was 
changed from 7.9% to 7.5%. 

 Other assumptions were changed pursuant to the experience study dated June 30, 2015. The 
assumed future salary increases, payroll growth, the inflation were decreased by 0.25% to 3.25% 
for payroll growth and 2.50% for inflation. 

 
2015 Changes 
Changes in Plan Provisions 

 On January 1, 2015, the Minneapolis Employees Retirement Fund was merged into the General 
Employees Fund, which increased the total pension liability by $1.1 billion and increased the 
fiduciary plan net position by $892 million. Upon consolidation, state and employer 
contributions were revised. 

 
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions 

 The assumed post-retirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.0% per year through 2030 
and 2.5% per year thereafter to 1.0% per year through 2035 and 2.5% per year thereafter. 
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POLICE AND FIRE FUND 
 
2018 Changes  
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions 

 The mortality projection scale was changed from MP-2016 to MP-2017. 
 As set by statute, the assumed post-retirement benefit increase was changed from 1.0% per year 

through 2064 and 2.5% per year, thereafter, to 1.0% for all years, with no trigger. 
 
2017 Changes 
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions 

 Assumed salary increases were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2016, experience study. 
The net effect is proposed rates that average 0.34% lower than the previous rates. 

 Assumed rates of retirement were changed, resulting in fewer retirements. 
 The CSA load was 30% for vested and non-vested deferred members. The CSA has been 

changed to 33% for vested members and 2% for non-vested members. 
 The base mortality table for healthy annuitants was changed from the RP-2000 fully generational 

table to the RP-2014 fully generational table (with a base year of 2006), with male rates adjusted 
by a factor of 0.96. The mortality improvement scale was changed from Scale AA to Scale MP-
2016. The base mortality table for disabled annuitants was changed from the RP-2000 disabled 
mortality table to the mortality tables assumed for healthy retirees. 

 Assumed termination rates were decreased to 3% for the first three years of service. Rates 
beyond the select period of three years were adjusted, resulting in more expected terminations 
overall. 

 Assumed percentage of married female members was decreased from 65% to 60%. 
 Assumed age difference was changed from separate assumptions for male members (wives 

assumed to be three years younger) and female members (husbands assumed to be four years 
older) to the assumption that males are two years older than females. 

 The assumed percentage of female members electing Joint and Survivor annuities was increased. 
 The assumed post-retirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1% for all years to 1% per 

year through 2064 and 2.5% thereafter. 
 
2016 Changes 
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions 

 The assumed post-retirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.0% per year through 2037 
and 2.5% thereafter to 1.0% per year for all future years. 

 The assumed investment return was changed from 7.9% to 7.5%. The single discount rate 
changed from 7.9% to 5.6%. 

 The assumed future salary increases, payroll growth, and inflation were decreased by 0.25% to 
3.25% for payroll growth and 2.50% for inflation. 

 
2015 Changes 
Changes in Plan Provisions 

 The post-retirement benefit increase to be paid after attainment of the 90% funding threshold 
was changed, from inflation up to 2.5%, to a fixed rate of 2.5%. 
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POLICE AND FIRE FUND 
 
2015 Changes (Continued) 
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions 

 The assumed post-retirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.0% per year through 2030 
and 2.5% per year thereafter to 1.0% per year through 2037 and 2.5% per year thereafter. 

 
Other Post Employment Benefits 
 
There are no assets accumulated in a trust. 
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



City of Dayton
Detailed Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balance - 
Budget and Actual - General Fund

Year Ended December 31, 2018

Original and 
Final Budget

Actual 
Amounts

Revenues
Property taxes 2,540,276$   2,506,888$  (33,388)$       

Licenses and permits 358,227        534,951       176,724        

Intergovernmental
Local government aid 5,387            5,387           -                    
Market value homestead credit -                    11,768         11,768          
PERA aid 1,456            1,414           (42)                
Fire aid 22,660          42,363         19,703          
Police aid 36,050          55,101         19,051          
Federal grants 15,450          26,781         11,331          
Other grants and aids 90,500          107,062       16,562          

Total intergovernmental 171,503        249,876       78,373          

Charges for services
General government 198,849        311,609       112,760        
Public safety 11,500          13,173         1,673             
Public works 5,200            9,223           4,023             
Parks and recreation 1,300            1,131           (169)              

Total charges for services 216,849        335,136       118,287        

Fines and forfeitures 51,500          35,639         (15,861)         

Miscellaneous
Investment income 23,000          15,753         (7,247)           
Contributions and Donations -                    7,213           7,213             
Other 24,300          42,914         18,614          

Total miscellaneous 47,300          65,880         18,580          
Total revenues 3,385,655     3,728,370    342,715        

Expenditures
General government

Mayor and council 64,206          65,451         1,245             
Administrative and finance 424,946        446,629       21,683          
Other general government 405,955        462,531       56,576          
Capital outlay 20,000          14,607         (5,393)           

Total general government 915,107        989,218       74,111          
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Variance with 
Final Budget - 
Over (Under)



City of Dayton
Detailed Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balance - 
Budget and Actual - General Fund

Year Ended December 31, 2018

Original and 
Final Budget

Actual 
Amounts

Expenditures
Public safety

Police
Current 1,109,773$   1,039,212$  (70,561)$       
Capital outlay 9,500            3,881           (5,619)           

Total police 1,119,273     1,043,093    (76,180)         
Fire

Current 245,800        257,864       12,064          
Total public safety 1,365,073     1,300,957    (64,116)         

Public works
Streets and highways

Street maintenance and storm sewers 756,770        917,518       160,748        
Street lighting 42,010          32,175         (9,835)           
Street construction capital outlay 6,000            -                   (6,000)           

Total streets and highways 804,780        951,398       146,618        
Sanitation

Recycling 108,400        116,346       7,946             
Total public works 913,180        1,067,744    154,564        

Parks and recreation
Current 117,295        117,340       45                  
Capital outlay 75,000          13,805         (61,195)         

Total parks and recreation 192,295        131,145       (61,150)         
Total expenditures 3,385,655     3,489,064    103,409        

Excess of revenues
  over expenditures -                    239,306       239,306        

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from sale of capital asset -                    50,082         50,082          
Transfers in -                    64,546         64,546          
Transfers out -                    (314,674)     (314,674)       

Total other financing sources (uses) -                    (200,046)     (200,046)       

Net change in fund balance -$                  39,260         39,260$        

Fund Balance
Beginning of year 2,066,323

End of year 2,105,583$  
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Variance with 
Final Budget - 
Over (Under)



Debt Service

Cable Fund 
(226) EDA (225)

Police 
Forfeiture 

(235)

2000A G.O. 
Improvement- 

H.V., PFA 
Sewer and 

Water (332)
Assets

Cash and investments 114,612$        107,355$        16,599$          177,370$        
Accounts receivable 11,763            -                     -                     -                     
Interest receivable -                     407                 -                     -                     
Special assessments receivable

Current -                     -                     -                     221                 
Delinquent -                     -                     -                     1,052              
Deferred -                     -                     -                     143,740          

Advances to other funds -                     10,285            -                     -                     

Total assets 126,375$        118,047$        16,599$          322,383$        

Liabilities
Accounts payable 300$               -$                   -$                   -$                   
Advance from other funds -                     -                     -                     -                     
Due to other governments -                     -                     -                     -                     
Interest payable -                     -                     -                     -                     

Total liabilities 300                 -                     -                     -                     

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue - special assessments -                     -                     -                     144,792          

Fund Balances
Restricted -                     -                     16,599            177,591          
Committed 126,075          118,047          -                     -                     
Assigned -                     -                     -                     -                     
Unassigned -                     -                     -                     -                     

Total fund balances 126,075          118,047          16,599            177,591          

Total liabilities, deferred inflows
  of resources, and fund balances 126,375$        118,047$        16,599$          322,383$        

80                  

City of Dayton
Combining Balance Sheet -

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
December 31, 2018

Special Revenue



2016A G.O. 
Bonds (355)

2013A 
Territorial 

Road Revenue 
Bond (360)

2015B G.O. 
Street 

Reconstruction 
Bonds (376)

Capital 
Equipment 
Fund (401)

Park 
Development 
Fund (404)

Park 
Dedication 
Fund (405)

267,104$        6,733$            151,575$            149,251$        112,061$        842,166$        
-                     -                     -                         -                     -                     -                     
-                     -                     -                         -                     -                     -                     

-                     -                     -                         -                     -                     -                     
-                     -                     -                         -                     -                     -                     
-                     -                     -                         -                     -                     -                     
-                     -                     -                         -                     -                     -                     

267,104$        6,733$            151,575$            149,251$        112,061$        842,166$        

-$                   -$                   -$                       84,322$          -$                   -$                   
-                     -                     -                         -                     -                     -                     
-                     -                     -                         -                     -                     -                     
-                     -                     -                         -                     -                     -                     
-                     -                     -                         84,322            -                     -                     

-                     -                     -                         -                     -                     -                     

267,104          6,733              -                         -                     -                     842,166          
-                     -                     -                         -                     112,061          -                     
-                     -                     151,575              64,929            -                     -                     
-                     -                     -                         -                     -                     -                     

267,104          6,733              151,575              64,929            112,061          842,166          

267,104$        6,733$            151,575$            149,251$        112,061$        842,166$        
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Debt Service Capital Projects



Pavement 
Management 

and 
Improvements 

Fund (414)
Stormwater 

(415)

Capital 
Facilities Fund 

(410)

Temporary 
Financing 
Fund (409)

Assets
Cash and investments 600,665$          998,084$        276,824$        676,644$        
Accounts receivable -                       -                     -                     -                     
Interest receivable -                       -                     -                     -                     
Special assessments receivable

Current -                       -                     -                     -                     
Delinquent -                       -                     -                     -                     
Deferred -                       -                     -                     -                     

Advances to other funds -                       -                     -                     -                     

Total assets 600,665$          998,084$        276,824$        676,644$        

Liabilities
Accounts payable -$                     1,242$            -$                   -$                   
Advance from other funds -                       -                     -                     -                     
Due to other governments -                       -                     -                     -                     
Interest payable -                       -                     -                     -                     

Total liabilities -                       1,242              -                     -                     

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue - special assessments -                       -                     -                     -                     

Fund Balances
Restricted -                       -                     -                     -                     
Committed -                       -                     -                     -                     
Assigned 600,665           996,842          276,824          676,644          
Unassigned -                       -                     -                     -                     

Total fund balances 600,665           996,842          276,824          676,644          

Total liabilities, deferred inflows
  of resources, and fund balances 600,665$          998,084$        276,824$        676,644$        
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Capital Projects

City of Dayton
Combining Balance Sheet -

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
December 31, 2018



TIF No. 14 - 
Liberty Fund 

(438)

TIF No. 16 
Sand 

Companies 
(435)

TIF No. 15 
French Lake 

Industrial Park 
(477)

City Wide 
Transportation 
Project (485)

Sundance 
Sewer Trunk 

(479)

93,911$          -$                   24,314$          1,646,553$       -$                   
-                     -                     -                     -                       -                     
-                     -                     -                     -                       -                     

-                     -                     -                     -                       -                     
-                     -                     -                     -                       -                     
-                     -                     -                     -                       -                     
-                     -                     -                     -                       -                     

93,911$          -$                   24,314$          1,646,553$       -$                   

-$                   -$                   -$                   13,803$            -$                   
-                     10,285            25,173            -                       485,714          

742                 540                 625                 -                       -                     
-                     407                 -                     -                       -                     

742                 11,232            25,798            13,803              485,714          

-                     -                     -                     -                       -                     

93,169            -                     -                     -                       -                     
-                     -                     -                     -                       -                     
-                     -                     -                     1,632,750         -                     
-                     (11,232)          (1,484)            -                       (485,714)        

93,169            (11,232)          (1,484)            1,632,750         (485,714)        

93,911$          -$                   24,314$          1,646,553$       -$                   
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Capital Projects



 

84 

(THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY) 



Capital Projects

Park Trail 
Development 

(408)

Total Other 
Governmental 

Funds
Assets

Cash and investments 421,770$          6,683,591$      
Accounts receivable -                       11,763             
Interest receivable -                       407                  
Special assessments receivable

Current -                       221                  
Delinquent -                       1,052               
Deferred -                       143,740           

Advances to other funds -                       10,285             

Total assets 421,770$          6,851,059$      

Liabilities
Accounts payable -$                     99,667$           
Advance from other funds -                       521,172           
Due to other governments -                       1,907               
Interest payable -                       407                  

Total liabilities -                       623,153           

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue - special assessments -                       144,792           

Fund Balances
Restricted -                       1,403,362        
Committed -                       356,183           
Assigned 421,770            4,821,999        
Unassigned -                       (498,430)          

Total fund balances 421,770            6,083,114        

Total liabilities, deferred inflows
  of resources, and fund balances 421,770$          6,851,059$      
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds
December 31, 2018



Cable Fund 
(226)

Donation Fund 
(231) EDA (225)

Revenues
Property taxes -$                     -$                     50,000$           
Tax increments -                       -                       -                       
Special assessments -                       -                       -                       
Intergovernmental -                       -                       -                       
Charges for services 54,821             -                       -                       
Miscellaneous

Investment income 1,188               87                    1,325               
Contributions and donations -                       100                  -                       
Other -                       -                       -                       

Total revenues 56,009             187                  51,325             

Expenditures
Current

General government 4,208               -                       -                       
Public works -                       -                       -                       
Economic development -                       1,465               2,199               

Debt service
Principal -                       -                       -                       
Interest and other charges -                       -                       -                       

Capital outlay
General government 23,200             -                       -                       
Public safety -                       -                       -                       
Public works -                       -                       -                       
Parks and recreation -                       -                       -                       

Total expenditures 27,408             1,465               2,199               

Excess of revenues over
  (under) expenditures 28,601             (1,278)              49,126             

Other Financing
   Sources (Uses)

Transfers in -                       -                       -                       
Transfers out -                       (61,538)            -                       

Total other financing
  sources (uses) -                       (61,538)            -                       

Net change in fund balances 28,601             (62,816)            49,126             

Fund Balances
Beginning of year 97,474             62,816             68,921             

End of year 126,075$         -$                     118,047$         
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Special Revenue

City of Dayton
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 

in Fund Balances - Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2018



Special
Revenue

Police 
Forfeiture (235)

2000A G.O. 
Improvement- 

H.V., PFA 
Sewer and 

Water (332)
2016A G.O. 
Bonds (355)

2012A G.O. 
Equipment 
Certificate 

(357)

2013A 
Territorial Road 
Revenue Bond 

(360)

2015B G.O. 
Street 

Reconstruction 
Bonds (376)

-$                     55,000$           290,076$         -$                     115,000$         325,000$           
-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                         
-                       53,743             -                       -                       -                       -                         
-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                         
-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                         

-                       2,256               2,406               5                      11                    257                    
-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                         
-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                         
-                       110,999           292,482           5                      115,011           325,257             

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       5,000                 
-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                         
-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                         

-                       184,000           160,000           105,000           330,000           320,000             
-                       10,355             78,338             735                  35,275             37,450               

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                         
245                  -                       -                       -                       -                       -                         

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                         
-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                         

245                  194,355           238,338           105,735           365,275           362,450             

(245)                 (83,356)            54,144             (105,730)          (250,264)          (37,193)              

-                       -                       -                       8,081               -                       -                         
-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                         

-                       -                       -                       8,081               -                       -                         

(245)                 (83,356)            54,144             (97,649)            (250,264)          (37,193)              

16,844             260,947           212,960           97,649             256,997           188,768             

16,599$           177,591$         267,104$         -$                     6,733$             151,575$           
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Debt Service



Capital 
Equipment 
Fund (401)

Park 
Development 
Fund (404)

Park Dedication 
Fund (405)

Revenues
Property taxes 325,000$         -$                     -$                     
Tax increments -                       -                       -                       
Special assessments -                       -                       -                       
Intergovernmental -                       -                       25,000             
Charges for services -                       5,561               386,390           
Miscellaneous:

Investment income 892                  1,018               8,554               
Contributions and donations -                       -                       14,030             
Other 4,000               -                       -                       

Total revenues 329,892           6,579               433,974           

Expenditures
Current

General government -                       -                       -                       
Public works -                       -                       -                       
Economic development -                       -                       -                       

Debt service
Principal -                       -                       -                       
Interest and other charges -                       -                       -                       

Capital outlay
General government 40,203             -                       -                       
Public safety 115,419           -                       -                       
Public works 312,756           -                       -                       
Parks and recreation 15,767             -                       371,390           

Total expenditures 484,145           -                       371,390           

Excess of revenues over
  (under) expenditures (154,253)          6,579               62,584             

Other Financing
   Sources (Uses)

Transfers in 49,112             44,863             -                       
Transfers out -                       -                       -                       

Total other financing
  sources (uses) 49,112             44,863             -                       

Net change in fund balances (105,141)          51,442             62,584             

Fund Balances
Beginning of year 170,070           60,619             779,582           

End of year 64,929$           112,061$         842,166$         

City of Dayton
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 
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Capital Projects

Year Ended December 31, 2018
in Fund Balances - Nonmajor Governmental Funds



Municipal 
Development 

(407)

Pavement 
Management 

and 
Improvements 

Fund (414)
Stormwater 

(415)

TIF No. 13 - 
Cemstone Fund 

(444)

Brockton 
Interchange 

Project Design 
(454)

So. Diamond 
Lake Road 

Project (460)

-$                     250,000$         -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
-                       -                       748,391           -                       -                       -                       

72                    5,370               10,561             1                      -                       55                    
-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

72                    255,370           758,952           1                      -                       55                    

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
-                       -                       -                       24                    -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
-                       25,128             12,660             -                       95,230             -                       
-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
-                       25,128             12,660             24                    95,230             -                       

72                    230,242           746,292           (23)                   (95,230)            55                    

-                       -                       -                       634                  191,799           -                       
(54,985)            -                       (384,729)          -                       -                       (40,770)            

(54,985)            -                       (384,729)          634                  191,799           (40,770)            

(54,913)            230,242           361,563           611                  96,569             (40,715)            

54,913             370,423           635,279           (611)                 (96,569)            40,715             

-$                     600,665$         996,842$         -$                     -$                     -$                     
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Capital 
Facilities Fund 

(410)

Temporary 
Financing Fund 

(409)

CDAA Park 
Improvement 
Fund (406)

Revenues
Property taxes 65,001$           -$                     -$                     
Tax increments -                       -                       -                       
Special assessments -                       -                       -                       
Intergovernmental -                       -                       -                       
Charges for services -                       -                       -                       
Miscellaneous

Investment income 2,773               1,711               288                  
Contributions and donations -                       -                       -                       
Other -                       -                       -                       

Total revenues 67,774             1,711               288                  

Expenditures
Current

General government -                       -                       -                       
Public works -                       -                       -                       
Economic development -                       -                       -                       

Debt service
Principal -                       -                       -                       
Interest and other charges -                       -                       -                       

Capital outlay
General government -                       -                       -                       
Public safety -                       -                       -                       
Public works 69,159             -                       -                       
Parks and recreation -                       -                       -                       

Total expenditures 69,159             -                       -                       

Excess of revenues over
  (under) expenditures (1,385)              1,711               288                  

Other Financing
   Sources (Uses)

Transfers in 54,985             314,674           -                       
Transfers out -                       -                       (44,863)            

Total other financing
  sources (uses) 54,985             314,674           (44,863)            

Net change in fund balances 53,600             316,385           (44,575)            

Fund Balances
Beginning of year 223,224           360,259           44,575             

End of year 276,824$         676,644$         -$                     
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Capital Projects



TIF No. 14 - 
Liberty Fund 

(438)

Territorial Road 
Improvement 
Project (402)

TIF No. 16 
Sand 

Companies 
(435)

TIF No. 15 
French Lake 

Industrial Park 
(477)

City Wide 
Transportation 
Project (485)

-$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                      
163,844           -                       1,485               55,758             -                        

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                        
-                       -                       -                       -                       -                        
-                       -                       -                       -                       668,001            

228                  65                    245                  82                    16,872              
-                       -                       -                       -                       -                        
-                       -                       -                       -                       -                        

164,072           65                    1,730               55,840             684,873            

146,464           -                       2,519               -                       -                        
-                       -                       -                       -                       -                        
-                       -                       -                       50,747             -                        

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                        
-                       -                       -                       -                       -                        

-                       -                       -                       -                       40,124              
-                       -                       -                       -                       -                        
-                       -                       -                       -                       -                        
-                       -                       -                       -                       -                        

146,464           -                       2,519               50,747             40,124              

17,608             65                    (789)                 5,093               644,749            

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                        
-                       (4,880)              -                       -                       (44,060)             

-                       (4,880)              -                       -                       (44,060)             

17,608             (4,815)              (789)                 5,093               600,689            

75,561             4,815               (10,443)            (6,577)              1,032,061         

93,169$           -$                     (11,232)$          (1,484)$            1,632,750$       
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FEMA - Storm 
Shelter (851)

Sundance 
Sewer Trunk 

(479)

Public Works 
Facility 

Construction 
Project (455)

Revenues
Property taxes -$                     -$                     -$                     
Tax increments -                       -                       -                       
Special assessments -                       -                       -                       
Intergovernmental -                       -                       -                       
Charges for services -                       -                       -                       
Miscellaneous

Investment income -                       10                    39                    
Contributions and donations -                       -                       -                       
Other -                       -                       25,507             

Total revenues -                       10                    25,546             

Expenditures
Current

General government -                       -                       -                       
Public works -                       2,409               -                       
Economic development -                       -                       -                       

Debt service
Principal -                       -                       -                       
Interest and other charges -                       12,143             -                       

Capital outlay
General government -                       -                       19,795             
Public safety 1                      -                       -                       
Public works -                       25,753             -                       
Parks and recreation -                       -                       -                       

Total expenditures 1                      40,305             19,795             

Excess of revenues over
  (under) expenditures (1)                     (40,295)            5,751               

Other Financing
   Sources (Uses)

Transfers in -                       269,850           -                       
Transfers out (3,007)              -                       (49,113)            

Total other financing
  sources (uses) (3,007)              269,850           (49,113)            

Net change in fund balances (3,008)              229,555           (43,362)            

Fund Balances
Beginning of year 3,008               (715,269)          43,362             

End of year -$                     (485,714)$        -$                     
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Capital Projects

Park Trail 
Development 

(408)

Total Other 
Governmental 

Funds

-$                     1,475,077$      
-                       221,087           
-                       53,743             
-                       25,000             

201,761           2,064,925        

3,395               59,766             
-                       14,130             
-                       29,507             

205,156           3,943,235        

-                       158,191           
-                       2,409               
-                       54,435             

-                       1,099,000        
-                       174,296           

-                       123,322           
-                       115,665           
-                       540,686           
-                       387,157           
-                       2,655,161        

205,156           1,288,074        

-                       933,998           
-                       (687,945)          

-                       246,053           

205,156           1,534,127        

216,614           4,548,987        

421,770$         6,083,114$      
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City of Dayton
Statement of Changes in

Agency Fund Assets and Liabilities
 Year Ended December 31, 2018

January 1, December 31, 
2018 Additions Deductions 2018

Assets
Cash and investments (203,020)$       274,766$     485,627$     (413,881)$       
Other receivables 203,020 (274,766)      (485,627)      413,881          

     Total assets -$                -$             -$             -$                    

Liabilities
Escrow payable -$                    485,627$     485,627$     -$                    

January 1, December 31, 
2018 Additions Deductions 2018

Assets
Cash and investments 963,665$        468,250$     321,500$     1,110,415$     

Liabilities
Escrow payable 963,665$        468,250$     321,500$     1,110,415$     

January 1, December 31, 
2018 Additions Deductions 2018

Assets
Current

Cash and investments -$                    26,000$       -$                 26,000$          

Liabilities
Escrow payable -$                    26,000$       -$                 26,000$          

January 1, December 31, 
2018 Additions Deductions 2018

Assets
Cash and investments 760,645$        769,016$     807,127$     722,534$        
Other receivables 203,020          (274,766)      (485,627)      413,881          

     Total assets 963,665$        494,250$     321,500$     1,136,415$     

Liabilities
Escrow payable 963,665$        979,877$     807,127$     1,136,415$     
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Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of 

Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards 

 
 

Independent Auditor's Report 
 
 
Honorable Mayor and Members 
  of the City Council 
City of Dayton 
Dayton, Minnesota 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
the City of Dayton, Minnesota as of and for the year ended December 31, 2018, and the related notes to 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements, and have issued 
our report thereon dated April 11, 2019. 
 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting  
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control.  
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the City's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those 
charged with governance. 
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Internal Control over Financial Reporting (Continued) 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies 
may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. We did identify a certain 
deficiency in internal control, described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Responses on 
Internal Control as Audit Finding 2018-001 to be a significant deficiency. 
 
Compliance and Other Matters  
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards.  
 
City's Response to Findings 
The City's response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying Schedule of 
Findings and Responses on Internal Control. The City's responses were not subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.  
 
Purpose of this Report  
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's 
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City's internal control and compliance. 
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
 
Minneapolis, Minnesota 
April 11, 2019 

sheryl.griffiths
Matt M - BKDV
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Minnesota Legal Compliance 
 

Independent Auditor's Report 
 
 
 
Honorable Mayor and Members 
  of the City Council 
City of Dayton 
Dayton, Minnesota 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Dayton, Minnesota as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 2018, and the related notes to financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's 
basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated April 11, 2019. 
 
The Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Cities/Towns, promulgated by the State Auditor 
pursuant to Minnesota Statutes § 6.65, contains seven categories of compliance to be tested:  contracting 
and bidding, deposits and investments, conflicts of interest, public indebtedness, claims and 
disbursements, miscellaneous provisions and tax increment financing.  
 
In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the City of 
Dayton failed to comply with the provisions of the Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for 
Cities/Other Political Subdivisions/Towns. However, our audit was not directed primarily toward 
obtaining knowledge of such noncompliance. Accordingly, had we performed additional procedures, 
other matters may have come to our attention regarding the City's noncompliance with the above 
referenced provisions.  
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of compliance and the results of 
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
Minneapolis, Minnesota 
April 11, 2019 

sheryl.griffiths
Matt M - BKDV
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City of Dayton 
Schedule of Findings and Responses on 
Legal Compliance and Internal Control  

 
 
CURRENT AND PRIOR YEAR INTERNAL CONTROL FINDING 
 
Significant Deficiency: 

 
Audit Finding 2018-001 – Lack of Segregation of Accounting Duties 
The City had a lack of segregation of accounting duties due to a limited number of office employees. 
The lack of adequate segregation of accounting duties could adversely affect the City's ability to 
initiate, record, process, and report financial data consistent with the assertions of management in 
the financial statements. 

 
During our audit, the following access, verification and implementation issues were noted: 
 

 The Accounting Clerk is the individual who prepares the deposits, enters deposits into 
accounting software, and is responsible for delivering them to the bank.  

 The Accounting Clerk is responsible for check stock and is the one preparing the checks. 
 The Accounting Clerk duties related to payroll include custody, recording, and 

reconciliation. This is mitigated to a certain extent by separate authorization and monitoring 
of the reconciliation process. 

 
Management and the City Council are aware of these conditions and have taken certain steps to 
compensate for the lack of segregation, but due to the small staff needed to handle all accounting 
duties, the costs of obtaining desirable segregation of accounting duties can often exceed benefits 
which could be derived. However, management and the City Council must remain aware of these 
situations and should continually monitor the accounting system, including changes that occur.  

 
City's Response: 
City staff are aware of the often lack of segregation of accounting duties and make every effort to 
ensure that transactions are separated and monitored to the extent possible. Staff will continue to 
examine and implement methods and processes that will address this issue.  
 



Meeting Date: 04-23-2009 
Item Number: 

PRESENTER: 

Jason Quisberg 

ITEM: 

Northwest Area Well – Well Improvements 

PREPARED BY: 

Jason Quisberg, Engineering 

Steve Hegland, Engineering 

POLICY DECISION / ACTION TO BE CONSIDERED: 

Approve Plan and Specifications. Authorize Advertisement for bids. 

BACKGROUND: 

Council previously authorized the preparation of plans and specifications for the construction of 
a second well and well house in northwest Dayton to serve as a redundant source to the single 

existing well supplying this part of the city (generally what is known as the Historic Village). 

Plans and specifications for the well have been completed; with the next step being the 

advertisement for bids from contractors to construct the improvements. 

Some general information about the Northwest Dayton Well project: 

This component of the project includes the drilling and testing of the well only. That is, 

construction of a well house (or well house improvements) will be, assuming positive test 
results, will be designed and bid under a separate project.  

This project originally included a new structure to house this well, along with all related 

treatment and dosing equipment. The option of instead modifying the existing wellhouse 
(#1) to accommodate both wells is being explored. After initial analysis, it appears this 

can be accommodated, with anticipated savings to the project, which could be retained 

(for future projects) or could be considered for use towards improvements providing 

storage of waters in northwest Dayton. This will be further explored and evaluated with 
the next steps of the project. 

The well drilling and testing will be completed over the summer of 2019 with the well being 

completed no later than August of 2019. This would allow the wellhouse modification project, to 
be bid as the new well is being installed and test pumping.  

Once the well and pump are determined to be a viable source, the modification project can be 

awarded with an expected construction during the fall of 2019.  

M



CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  Page 2 
 
 

 

CRITICAL ISSUES: 

 

 

COMMISSION REVIEW / ACTION (IF APPLICABLE): 

 

 

60/120-DAY RULE (IF APPLICABLE): 

 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO COUNCIL GOALS: 

 

Maintain and Enhance Infrastructure 

 

BUDGET IMPACT: 

 

Costs associated with the well drilling and testing portion of the project are currently estimated 

at $425,000 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Approve Plan and Specifications and Authorize Advertisement for Bides for the Well 

Improvement Project.  
 

ATTACHMENT(S):  

 

Well Improvement Plans 
Advertisement for Bids 
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ENERGY DISSIPATION DEVICE AT

END OF DISCHARGE LINE

ANTICIPATED FUTURE

TRANSFORMER LOCATION
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TEMPORARY DISCHARGE PIPE

FOR DEWATERING

CONCRETE BOLLARD SEE DETAIL
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1'-0" MINIMUM

CEMENT GROUT

EX. GROUND - EL: 897.38

PROPOSED WELL

NOT TO SCALE

SECTION - PROPOSED PRODUCTION WELL

F & I PITLESS ADAPTOR "MONITOR"

WITH WELDED CONNECTION (SEE

SPECIFICATIONS)

F & I 60 hp SUBMERSIBLE PUMP

BOTTOM OF CASING AT APPROX. 190'

DEPTH. (15' INTO AQUIFER)

BOTTOM OF 12" BORE HOLE

APPROX. 380' DEPTH

F & I DISCONNECT

& METER

20' - 8" D.I. PIPE & PLUG

PROVIDE BLOCKING AND

RODS TO WELL AND UPPER

ELBOW

12" STEEL CASING

F & I WELL CONTROL PANEL

8" RAW WATER MAIN TO WATER TREATMENT FACILITY

MINIMUM 8' BURY TO TOP OF PIPE

WELL NOTES:

DESIRED FLOW = 600 gpm

ELEVATION OF TOWER 1050'

ELEVATION OF WELL 900'

DIFFERENCE IN ELEV  150'

PUMPING LEVEL  100'

ELEVATION HEAD           250'

FRICTION LOSS IN PIPE = 25'

TOTAL HEAD LOSS = 275'

USE GRUNDFOS PUMP 625S-600 OR EQUIVALENT

(FINAL PUMP SELECTION WILL NOT BE MADE UNTIL

AFTER AQUIFER TESTING IS COMPLETED)

PROPOSED BENCH - EL: 900.38

18" BORE HOLE

-0'
GROUND

-130'

ROCK AND CLAY

PRAIRIE DU CHIEN

-175'

-340'

-380'

WONEWOC

FUTURE TELEMETRY CONTROL - PANELS AND

SUPPORTS SHALL ACCOMMODATE FOR

FUTURE INSTALLATION

NOTE: GEOLOGIC DEPTHS LISTED ON

SHEET ARE FROM DAYTON WELL #1

AND ARE FOR INFORMATIONAL

PURPOSES AND NOT REPRESENTED

TO SCALE. THE FIRST BEDROCK

ENCOUNTERED IN THE DOMESTIC

WELLS TO THE SOUTHEAST WAS

JORDAN WITH THE DEPTH TO

BOTTOM OF JORDAN AT APPROX.

135'-140'

INSTALL 6" DROP PIPE

APPROX. 160'

NOTE: CONTROL PANEL TO BE MOUNTED ON SUPPORT

PANEL PROVIDED BY CONTRACTOR. SUPPORT PANEL

SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED WITH 4X4 TREATED TIMBERS

WITH 2X12 TREATED SUPPORT MEMBERS

POWER WIRES TO TRANSFORMER -

BY LICENSED ELECTRICIAN

CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE

WITH ELECTRIC COMPANY TO

PROVIDE TRANSFORMER

-140'

-150'

JORDAN

ST. LAWRENCE

TUNNEL CITY GROUP

EAU CLAIRE

PROPOSED 18" DIA. BORE HOLE

NOT TO SCALE

PLAN VIEW - PRODUCTION WELL (SURFACE TO APPROXIMATELY 190')

PROPOSED 6" DIA. DROP PIPE

PROPOSED CEMENT GROUT

PROPOSED 12" DIA. STEEL CASING

CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE

1) DRILL 18" BORE HOLE 15' INTO TOP OF

TUNNEL CITY GROUP

2) PLACE 12" STEEL CASING

3) GROUT CASING IN-PLACE

4) DRILL THROUGH TUNNEL CITY GROUP

AND WONEWOC TO TOP OF EAU CLAIRE

WITH 12" BORE HOLE

NOT TO SCALE

PLAN VIEW - PRODUCTION WELL (190' TO END OF BORING APPROXIMATELY 380')

PROPOSED 12" DIA. OPEN BORE HOLE

0.5DIA

6"

D+12" MIN.

0.5D

D

COMPACTED BACKFILL

2000# CONCRETE

LOAD FACTOR 2.3

"D" DENOTES OUTSIDE

DIAMETER OF PIPE

CONCRETE BACKFILL TO 0.5

OF OUTSIDE DIAMETER WITH

SHAPED BEDDING.

COMPACTED BACKFILL

COARSE FILTER AGGREGATE

MNDOT SPEC. 3149H

"D" DENOTES OUTSIDE

DIAMETER OF PIPE

HAND SHAPED FROM

ANGULAR BEDDING MATERIAL

LOAD FACTOR 1.9

D/4 BUT NOT

LESS THAN 6"

12"

D

0.5D

D+12" MIN.

6"

D+12" MIN.

0.5D

D

"D" DENOTES OUTSIDE

DIAMETER OF PIPE

COMPACTED BACKFILL

LOAD FACTOR 1.5

HAND SHAPED FROM FIRM

UNDISTURBED SOIL

COMPACTED BACKFILL

COARSE FILTER AGGREGATE

MNDOT SPEC. 3149H

LOAD FACTOR 1.5

HAND SHAPED FROM

ANGULAR BEDDING MATERIAL

"D" DENOTES OUTSIDE

DIAMETER OF PIPE

D+12" MIN.

D/4 BUT NOT

LESS THAN 6"

6"

D

0.5D

PLATE NO.

LAST REVISION:

JAN 2019

DATE:
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PROPOSED 4" DIA. STEEL CASING

NOT TO SCALE

PLAN VIEW - MONITORING WELL (FROM SURFACE TO APPROXIMATELY 190')

PROPOSED CEMENT GROUT

PROPOSED 8" DIA. BORE HOLE

CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE

1) DRILL 8" BORE HOLE 15' INTO TOP OF TUNNEL CITY

GROUP

2) PLACE 4" CASING

3) GROUT CASING IN-PLACE

4) DRILL THROUGH TUNNEL CITY GROUP AND WONEWOC

TO TOP OF EAU CLAIRE WITH 4" BORE HOLE

-0'GROUND

130'

ROCK AND CLAY

4" STEEL CASING

PROPOSED MONITORING WELL #1 SURFACE ELEV. 901.47

NOT TO SCALE

SECTION - PROPOSED MONITORING WELL

CEMENT GROUT 

8" BORE HOLE

-175'

WONEWOC

-380'

EAU CLAIRE

4" DIA. GUARD POST

FILLED WITH CONCRETE

(120° SPACING)

CONCRETE

LOCKING CAP

3' ABOVE GROUND

8" DIA. WELL HEAD PROTECTION CASING

4' BELOW GROUND

PROPOSED 4" DIA.

STEEL CASING

NOTE: GEOLOGIC DEPTHS LISTED ON

SHEET ARE FROM DAYTON

MUNICIPAL WELL #1 AND ARE FOR

INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES AND

NOT REPRESENTED TO SCALE. THE

FIRST BEDROCK ENCOUNTERED IN

THE DOMESTIC WELLS TO THE

SOUTHEAST WAS JORDAN WITH THE

DEPTH TO BOTTOM OF JORDAN AT

APPROX 135'-140' DEPTH

PROPOSED MONITORING WELL #2 SURFACE ELEV. 878.36

NOT TO SCALE

PRAIRIE DU CHIEN

-340'

-140'

-150'

JORDAN

ST. LAWRENCE

TUNNEL CITY GROUP

BOTTOM OF 4" BORE HOLE APPROX.

380' DEPTH

BOTTOM OF CASING AT APROX 190'

DEPTH. (15' INTO AQUIFER)

PROPOSED 4" DIA. OPEN BORE HOLE

NOT TO SCALE

PLAN VIEW - MONITORING WELL (FROM APPROXIMATELY 190' TO APPROXIMATELY 380')

4" DIA. GUARD POST FILLED WITH CONCRETE (120°

SPACING 6')

6'

3'-5

1

2

"

8" DIA. WELL HEAD PROTECTION CASING

w/ LOCKING CAP

3' ABOVE GROUND &

4' BELOW GROUND

NOTE: 0.063" THICK ALUMINUM SIGN.

WHITE HIGH INTENSITY REFLECTORIZED

BACKGROUND. U-CHANNEL POST

MINIMUM 3LB/FT 6-6" LONG.  PLACED AS

DIRECTED BY CITY ENGINEER

NOT TO SCALE

POST WITH REFLECTOR

NOT TO SCALE

MONITORING/PRODUCTION WELL BOLLARDS

DATE:
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Proposed Well Location with CWI and Contaminated Sites (MPCA) Figure 1
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 SECTION 00020 

 

 ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS 
 
WELL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 

CITY OF DAYTON, MN 

 

Class of Work:  Well Improvements, Instrument Controls, Piping, Well Pumping 
Bid Close At: 11:00 am May 20rd, 2019 
 
 
NOTICE TO CONTRACTORS   

 
Sealed Bid Proposals for work indicated above will be received at the City of Dayton Offices, 
12260 S Diamond Lake Road, Dayton, Minnesota 55327-9655, until 11:00 am May 20rd, 2019, 
after which time such bids will be publicly opened and read aloud by the City Engineer and 
Public Works Director at the Dayton City Hall. 
 
The “work”, in accordance with drawings and specifications prepared by Wenck, 1800 Pioneer 
Creek Center, Maple Plain MN 55359, consists of all labor, materials, tools, permits, bonds, 
machinery, equipment, and services necessary for project completion.  
 
In general, the “work” consists of the drilling and construction of two 4-inch diameter monitoring 
wells approximately 380 ft deep; one 12-inch diameter production well approximately 380 ft deep 
with submersible pump, pitless adapter, and local control panel; electrical service; and installation 
of 20 LF 8” DIP watermain. 
  
Each bid proposal shall be accompanied by a "Bid Security" in the form of a certified check made 
payable to “CITY OF DAYTON” (OWNER) in the amount not less than five percent (5%) of the 
total bid, or a surety bond in the same amount, running to the OWNER, with the surety company 
thereon duly authorized to do business in the State of Minnesota, such Bid Security to be a 
guarantee that the bidder will not, without the consent of the OWNER, withdraw his bid for a 
period of sixty (60) days after the opening of bids, and, if awarded a contract, will enter into a 
contract with CITY OF DAYTON and the amount of the certified check will be retained or the 
bond enforced by the OWNER in case the bidder fails to do so.  All bid securities except those of 
the three lowest bidders will be returned within fifteen days after the opening of bids. 
 
Lowest Eligible Bidders for this project must meet the Minimum Criteria as defined in the 

Responsible Contractor Requirement in accordance with Minnesota Statutes § 16C.285, 

subdivision 3, and additional criteria required by the City of Dayton. Submitted Bids must be 

accompanied by a completed Responsible Contractor form provided in these materials.  
 
Bid Proposals shall be submitted on forms furnished for that purpose. Bids shall be submitted in 
sealed envelopes with the following clearly inscribed on the outside: “Bids for City of Dayton 
Well Improvements.”  No bidder shall withdraw his bid, without the consent of the OWNER, for 
a period of sixty (60) days after the date for the opening thereof.   The OWNER, however, 
reserves the right to reject any or all bids and to wave any minor irregularities, informalities or 
discrepancies. A work history detailing qualifications and past experience must be provided upon 
request. 
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Plans and specifications are on file for inspection at the City of Dayton; and the office of Wenck 
Associates Inc., 1800 Pioneer Creek Center, Maple Plain MN 55359. 
 
The Project Manual is available on QuestCDN (www.questcdn.com).  You may download the 
digital plan documents for $15.00 by inputting Quest project # ______ on the website’s Project 
Search page.  Please contact QuestCDN.com at 952-233-1632 or info@questcdn.com for 
assistance in free membership registration, downloading, and working with this digital project 
information.  The Project Manual is also on file for inspection at City of Dayton City Hall at, 
12260 S Diamond Lake Road, Dayton, Minnesota 55327-9655; and the office of Wenck 
Associates, Inc.  Project Manual/Plan Set available with non-refundable deposit of $75.00 check 
per set payable to "Wenck Associates, Inc." at: 

 
     Wenck Associates, Inc. 
     1800 Pioneer Creek Center 
     P.O. Box 249 
     Maple Plain, Minnesota 55359-0249 
     Telephone:   (763) 479-4200 
     Facsimile:   (763) 479-4242 

 

Direct inquiries to City Engineer Jason Quisberg at (763) 252-6873.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

***END OF SECTION*** 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Date: 04-23-2009 
Item Number: 

PRESENTER: 

Jason Quisberg 

ITEM: 

Wellhead Protection Plan Public Hearing and Plan Approval 

PREPARED BY: 

Jason Quisberg, Engineering 

Steve Hegland, Engineering 

POLICY DECISION / ACTION TO BE CONSIDERED: 

A public hearing shall be held to take public comments on Part 2 of the Wellhead Protection 

Plan. After the public hearing, the council should provide any additional input on the plan and 

may choose to adopt Part 2 of the Wellhead Protection Plan.  

BACKGROUND: 

The Minnesota Department of Health (MDH) requires that the City update their WHPP every  

ten years.  Dayton’s previous WHPP was completed in 2007, and The City began working with 

MDH to update their plan in 2017 

The plan is separated into two portions, with the first being approved in 2016 with the assistance 

of MDH staff.  

The WHPP is composed of two separate parts: 

Part 1- Completed and approved in 2016. This portion of the WHPP delineates the 

drinking water supply management area and wellhead protection area through significant data 

gathering, review, modeling, and analysis.  From that analysis, a vulnerability level is assigned 

to the drinking water supply area based on geological conditions.     

Part 2-  Part 2 of the WHPP details the actual wellhead protection plan that will be 

implemented to protect the water supply area that is defined in Part 1.  Part 2 includes goals, 

objectives, plan of action, evaluation program, as well as a contingency action plan.  Part 2 of 

the plan was completed by staff and presented to the council at the January 23rd City Council 

meeting.  

A draft version of Part 2 of the WHPP was then sent to local government units (LGU’s) to allow 

them the chance to provide comments on the plan during the 60-day comment period. Two 

comments on the plan were received by the Metropolitan Council and the Minnesota 

Department of Health. Copies of the comments received at attached to this packet.  

N
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Revisions to the plan were made based on the comments received and a final draft of the 

Wellhead Protection Plan has been provided.  

 

The city is required to hold a public information meeting to share comments received from 

LGU’s and receive additional comments from the public. Once the public information meeting is 

held, all comments to the plan are evaluated and the plan is updated if necessary. The City 

Council shall make a motion on the plan whether to accept the report and approval submittal to 

MDH.  The final plan is then submitted to the MDH for approval.   

  

CRITICAL ISSUES: 

 

There are no outstanding critical issues 

 

COMMISSION REVIEW / ACTION (IF APPLICABLE): 

 

 

60/120-DAY RULE (IF APPLICABLE): 

 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO COUNCIL GOALS: 

 

 

BUDGET IMPACT: 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Staff recommends a public hearing be held on Part 2 of the Wellhead Protection Plan. After the 

public hearing is held we recommend council adopt Part 2 of the Wellhead Protection Plan with 

any edits as determined on the outcome of the hearing.   

 

ATTACHMENT(S):  

 

Comments received from Metropolitan Council and MDH 

Part 2 of City of Dayton Wellhead Protection Plan. 
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Steve K. Hegland

From: Freitag, John (MDH) <john.freitag@state.mn.us>

Sent: Tuesday, February 26, 2019 11:13 AM

To: Marty Farrell

Cc: Steve K. Hegland

Subject: Wellhead Protection plan 60 day draft

Hi Marty, 

 

I have a few questions and comments regarding the Wellhead Protection plan 60 day draft I received for the City of 

Dayton.   

 

Chapter 5.0 has an activity to research wells but it is not clear what the action is if an unsealed well is found.  There 

should be an activity that talks about properly sealing abandoned wells if any are found within the DWSMA.  The City 

would be eligible for grant funding for this activity as well. 

 

The electronic data submitted for the PCSI looked good, however in the hard copy the table for the PCSI was missing.  Be 

sure to include the PCSI table associated with the PCSI maps in the final plan submittal.  Also be sure that the PCSI maps 

and tables in the final plan match with the electronic PCSI data.   

 

Lastly, the IWMZ Inventories still need to be updated to be included in the final plan.  I responded to an inquiry in 

December about this and have not heard back.  To complete the inventories I need to meet with someone who knows 

the area around the wells, review aerial photos, and visit the well sites if necessary.  I have availability this week 

Wednesday afternoon, Thursday, or Friday. 

 

Otherwise things look good, but the if the items mentioned above are not addressed in the final plan it would be cause 

for disapproval. 

 

Let me know if you have any questions, thanks, 

 

JOHN FR EITAG  

Pr in cipal  P lann er  

Minn esota Department  of  H ealth  

Source Water  Protect ion Un it  

p 651-201-4669  |   m  651-216-9439   

To help protect you r priv acy, Microsoft Office prevented automatic download of this picture from the Internet.
http://www.health.state.mn.us/images/iconmdhemail.gif
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1.0 Data Elements and Assessments 

1.1 DATA ELEMENTS AND ASSESSMENTS 

 

The Data elements that were assessed in the Part 2 portion of the City of Dayton Wellhead 

Protection Plan (WHPP) were detailed in the Scoping 2 Decision Notice which was provided to 

the City of Dayton on August 7, 2017 (Appendix A). The data elements were compiled and will 

be assessed in terms of the present and future implications on the 1) use of the wells, 2) 

quality and quantity of water supplying the public water supply wells, and 3) land and 

groundwater uses in the drinking water supply management area. During the Part 2 Scoping 

Decision notice it was determined that the Drinking Water Supply Management Area (DWSMA) 

was of low vulnerability.  

 

1.2 PHYSICAL ENVIRONMENT DATA ELEMENTS  

 

1.2.1 Geology  

 

The geological conditions of the Dayton Wellhead Protection Area are described in detail in the 

Amendment to the Part I of the Wellhead Protection Plan which was submitted on April 27, 

2016 and approved and is presented in Appendix B.  

 

As detailed in the Part I Report, the geology below Dayton consists of primarily the Tunnel City 

– Wonowoc (formerly the Franconia-Ironton-Galesville) aquifer which is present along the 

northern portion of Dayton. The aquifer is the water source for both City of Dayton wells. A 

Drinking Water Supply Management Area (DWSMA) was established for both of these wells as 

part of the Part I report and is shown in Appendix C. The study area, as defined by MN 

Statutes, Section 103H.005 was determined to have no sensitive areas.  

 

The geological conditions within these management areas have significant upper confining 

layers and provide adequate protection to the aquifer from a hydraulic inflow perspective. 

Because of these conditions, the DWSMA was identified as having a low vulnerability. 

 

 

1.3 LAND USE DATA ELEMENTS  

 

1.3.1 Land Use  

 

The land use data within the City of Dayton was obtained via the existing city of Dayton 

comprehensive plan. The plan provides the 2030 land use of the areas within the DWSMA’s.  A 

copy of the Future Land Use Map is included in Appendix D. When analyzing the land uses 

within the DWSMA, the majority of the future land uses are residential with a small amount of 

mixed use within the DWSMA for City Well #1. Included in appendix E are the current zoning 

maps which show the existing zoning and land uses within these areas. The current land uses 

within these areas also includes agriculture at this time but is expected to transition to the 

residential and mixed uses identified in the plan.   

 

The majority of the existing and proposed land uses within the DWSMA present low level risks 

to the drinking water supply. Residential neighborhood pose the most significant risk to the 

water sources via fertilizer and yard care chemicals. Because of the significant confining layers 
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and low vulnerability of the aquifer, these risks are not applicable to the City of Dayton water 

supply. The mixed use which is included in the DWSMA for well 1 is anticipated to be a mix of 

small scale commercial and residential uses, of which neither would involve activities which 

would be expected to pose significant risk to water supply quantity. 

 

The only issues these uses bring to the water supply is the demand they generate for irrigation. 

 

In the fall of 2018 a Potential Contaminant Source Inventory, (PCSI) was performed on the 

DWSMA to create a composite inventory of the potential point sources that are present within 

boundary. The PCSI is included in Appendix F. 

 

Initially data was obtained from the previous Wellhead Protection Plan as submitted in 2007.  

That information was then updated with information obtained from the EPA Class V well index, 

the MDA WIMN Search, the MDH County well index, and the MPCA WIMN.  

 

The information was then cross referenced with the MDH sealed well inventory to eliminate any 

data sources that had been previously sealed.  All wells which were shallower than the depths 

as listed in the Scoping Decision Notice were then eliminated from the table. Those wells in 

which well log information was not available were left within the table. 

 

City Staff was also included in discussions for potential source locations which may not have 

been present on the databases. In addition to searching the aforementioned databases,  

staff also compared the composite source table inventory to existing city infrastructure maps to 

determine potential well and septic sites (for class V injection well status) which did not appear 

on the database searches. After identifying several possible additional sources, City Staff 

searched property files and visited property owners to gather the needed information on wells 

and septic to determine status and classifications. Several wells within the Well #1 DWSMA 

were identified during field visits. City staff looked through property files and contacted local 

well drilling companies to gather additional information. No well identification information was 

obtained during these searches but additional data collection will be included in the wellhead 

protection plan. 

 

A test well from a Hennepin County landfill scoping exploration was identified in the review of 

the well records and is identified in this report. City staff attempted to find any historical 

information related to this well to identify sealing records and were unable to locate any files. 

Additional effort in locating test well and its status will be part of the Wellhead Protection Plan.  

 

City staff also is worked with MDH staff to perform the inner wellhead management zone 

surveys (IWMZ). The results of this survey are included in Appendix G. 

 

While the PCSI did show the presence of some point sources for contamination to the 

groundwater source, the number of point sources is relatively low. Because the existing zoning 

and proposed land use within the DWSMA is residential and primarily served by city water and 

sewer, there are relatively few well and septic systems which would pose a larger threat to both 

the quality and quantity of the groundwater source. 
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1.4 WATER QUANTITY DATA ELEMENTS 

 

1.4.1 Groundwater Quantity 

 

Groundwater is the exclusive source of municipal water for the City of Dayton with the 

groundwater used from deep sandstone aquifer which is present through the northern portion 

of Dayton and is approximately 200’ thick. The aquifer is overlain with low permeability depots 

which provide confinement. 

  

The city currently operates two wells both located in northern Dayton. In 2017 the City pumped 

57.5 million gallons (MGal). The projected 2040 water use for the city is 262 MGal as was 

updated in the Water Supply Plan completed in 2017.  

 

Groundwater levels are adequate for the amounts that the City of Dayton currently is permitted 

for under the groundwater appropriations program that is administered by the Minnesota 

Department of Natural Resources (DNR).  There are currently are no other high capacity wells 

within or near the DWSMAs for which well interference complaints with the City wells have been 

documented.  At this time, there appears to be sufficient groundwater quantity based upon 

existing pumping capacity of all wells completed in the aquifer used by the City. During the 

process of developing the PCSI no state environmental boreholes were identified within the   

DWSMA. 

 

1.5 WATER QUALITY DATA ELEMENTS 

 

1.5.1 Groundwater Quality 

 

Groundwater quality is measured routinely in the public water system as required by the 

Minnesota Drinking Water protection program, and the Safe Drinking Water Act. Groundwater 

quality is generally very high. Routine sampling is for bacteriological indicators, inorganic 

chemicals, and organic chemicals indicates stable water quality with no historical results 

exceeding the limits set forth in the Safe Water Drinking Act. In addition to a quality 

groundwater source, the city has a chemical injection system present at each well house which 

treats the water with chlorine, fluoride, and polyphosphates to ensure the water is safe for 

consumption.  

 

A water sample was collected in December of 2009 from Well 1 (611054), and was tested for 

tritium. No tritium was detected in the sample. Based on this there does not appear to be a 

presence of young (post 1953) water within the aquifer which is being drawn through the wells.  

of human caused contaminants have been noted to date in the city’s drinking water. 

 

The City has been working to eliminate secondary water quality issues of odor and 

discoloration. Additional water sampling has been conducted to monitor free Chlorine, 

Manganese, Ammonia, pH, Sulfate, Ortho Phosphate, and Iron. Additional chemical feed 

equipment has been installed at Well House 2 to try and manage the amount of Iron in the 

water system. 
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2.0 Expected Land and Water Use Changes 

 

2.1 LAND USE AND WATER USE CHANGES  

 

2.1.1 Land Use Changes  

 

The City of Dayton continues to experience aggressive residential growth throughout the city. 

Growth in the commercial and industrial areas continues to be steady. As shown on the Future 

Land Use Map provided in Appendix D for the City, it is anticipated that much of the agricultural 

portions of the city will transition into residential housing of various types as the growth 

continues. By 2040 projected population serviced via the water system is expected to be 

10,400.  

 

 

 

2.1.2 Water Use Changes  

 

As development grows within the city limits the increased demand on the water within the city 

is continuously evaluated to determine what potential needs would be required to adequately 

support growth.  With the Water Supply Plan submitted in 2017, the city analyzed the current 

water supply system and the adequacy of it compared to projected growth.  

 

Growth in Dayton will eventually require expansion of the current water supply system, which 

would may require the addition of more wells in the future. Additional wells are projected to be 

installed in 2019 and 2020 to provide additional capacity for the growth.  As wells are added to 

the system, updates to the wellhead protection plan may be necessary.  
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3.0 Issues, Problems and Opportunities 

 

 

3.1 ISSUES, PROBLEMS AND OPPORTUNITIES  

 

The City of Dayton identified issues, problems and opportunities from multiple sources in 

preparing the wellhead protection plan. The sources used to compile this information include; 

preparing the PCSI, the Scoping 2 Decision Notice, previous wellhead protection plans, 

Chapters 1 and 2 of this report and preparation of the 2017 Water Supply Plan.  

 

There have also been opportunities for local governments, state agencies, and the general 

public to identify issues and comment on the city’s WHP Plan. A public information meeting was 

held to review the results of the Part 1 report including the results of the delineation of the WHP 

area, DWSMA, and the vulnerability assessments. The meetings were open to the public and 

held alongside regular council meetings. Local state agencies assisted with the preparation of 

this plan though the preparation of Part I of this report and various meetings as the plan 

progressed.  

 

The issues, problems and opportunities are presented in the following table. 
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Table 3.1: Issues, Problems, and Opportunities 

 

Issue Identified Impacted Feature 
Problem Associated with the 

Identified Issue 
Opportunity Associated with the 

Identified Issue 
Adequacy of Existing Controls to 

Address the Issue 

The status of the Hennepin County 
landfill scoping well is unknown. In 
addition, 4 residential wells were 
identified in NW Dayton within the 
DWSMA in which records are not 
found. 

Aquifer 
DWSMA 
Water Quality 

If the wells were not 
abandoned properly after 
drilling, they could present a 
potential point source for 
pollution to the Aquifer 

The city may be able to seek MDH 
assistance to assess the level of 
priority. There may be the possibility 
to explore grant assistance to locate 
records. 

Finding records or location of wells 
could be a demand of additional city 
staff time and resources beyond what 
has currently been put into resolving 
issue.  

The city has limited staff and financial 
resources to address WHP issues 
within the DWSMA 

Aquifer 
DWSMA 
Water Quality 

DWSMA 

Limited staff and financial resources 
will create a challenge for city staff 
when attempting to implement the 
WHP plan. 

The city will explore grant programs 
available for public water supply 
systems with approved WHP plans for 
implementation assistance. 

There are several types of land uses 
occurring within the DWSMA 

DWSMA 
Aquifer 
Water Quality 

Land uses occurring within 
the DWSMA may have the 
ability to impact the water 
quality of activities or 
operations are conducted 
inappropriately or 
excessively  

The city provides several 
informational publications available 
to the public related to the potential 
contamination of the city’s 
groundwater source. Also the 
majority of the undeveloped areas 
within the DWSMA are zoned for 
residential land uses which would be 
less likely to be point sources for 

pollution as they wouldn’t have 
residential wells or class V injection 
wells associated with them.  

The city can utilize existing materials 
for distributions and can work with local 
authorities to determine if additional 
educational information would be 
appropriate.  

Other Municipality DWSMA’s extend 
into Dayton’s border 

DWSMA 
Management areas of other 
communities interact with 
our boundaries 

There are opportunities to work with 
other municipalities to 
collaboratively protect resources 

City is currently working with adjacent 
cities on exploring alternative water 
supply methods and could foster that 
relationship into a wellhead protection 
partnership if it is discovered to be 
beneficial.  
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4.0 Wellhead Protection Plan Goals 

 

The following goals have been developed based on the results of the vulnerability analysis, the 

results of the potential contaminant source inventory, and local geologic conditions. In general, 

goals were created with one goal in mind to maintain and improve the current level of water 

quality and quantity which meets or exceeds all state and federal standards.  

 

4.1 GOALS 

 

The following goals form the framework within which the information generated during 

delineation and source inventory activities is evaluated and upon which the planning activities 

are based: 

 

1. To continue to provide high quality water that meets state and federal drinking water 

standards. 

2. To educate public officials, landowners and the general public about the importance of 

wellhead protection to the public drinking water supply. 

3. To promote the collection of data which would assist in maintaining the high-quality 

water supply to the City of Dayton.  

4. Maintain an active, community wide, water conservation program. 
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5.0 Wellhead Protection Plan Objectives and Plans of 

Action 

To meet the goals set forth in the previous chapter, the Well head Protection Planning Team 

would like to concentrate management efforts on the following factors to create awareness of 

groundwater protection and help prevent future contamination of the aquifer: 

 

1. Educate the public about water quality issues related to wells, lawn and garden care, 

and household hazardous waste (Public Education) 

2. Manage wells and high quality projection(Well Management) 

3. Collect qualitative and quantitative data needed to address local groundwater issues 

(Data Collection and Operations)  

4. Collect data on unverified test wells drilled during installation of the city well field. 

(Well Data Collection) 

 

Publish the Drinking Water Consumer Confidence Report: 

 

The city will continue distributing the Drinking Water Consumer Confidence Report to all users 

of the Dayton public water supply via the City’s website and other media. The report provides 

information regarding the quality of City’s water supply. 

Source of Action: 

• City of Dayton    

Cooperators: 

• MDH   

Time Frame: 

• Ongoing, annually distributed as required by federal regulations.  

Estimated Cost: 

• No new additional costs are expected for this activity. Staff time and costs associated 

with this task are already allocated through existing city budgets.  

Objective(s) Achieved: 

• Public Education 

• Data Collection and operations 

Success Criteria: 

• Publishing annually 

 

Provide Webpage Informational Data 

The city intends to post wellhead and water related information on its website.  Information will 

include articles and information related to wellhead and source water protection, as well as 

potential contaminant source management strategies for such features as private wells, 

hazardous waste disposal, turf management, and other relevant subjects.   

Source of Action: 

• City of Dayton  

Cooperators: 

• City staff; MDH; Hennepin County; Wright County   

Time Frame: 

• Beginning in 2019 and as appropriate thereafter.  

Estimated Cost: 

• No new or additional costs are anticipated for this task. Staff time and costs 

associated with completing this action are already allocated through other city 

programs, projects, and budgets.   
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Objective(s) Achieved: 

• Public Education 

• Well Management 

Success Criteria: 

• Feedback from public that resource acknowledged 

 

 

Monitoring Static and Pumping Levels in Municipal Wells 

The City will continue to routinely monitor and record the static and pumping levels of the 

groundwater in the municipal wells. Water levels in all the municipal wells will be recorded at 

least monthly.   

Source of Action: 

• City of Dayton   

Cooperators: 

• None   

Time Frame: 

• Ongoing   

Estimated Cost: 

• No new or additional costs are anticipated for this task. City staff time and costs 

associated with this activity are already allocated through existing city budgets.   

Objective(s) Achieved: 

• Well Management 

• Data Collection and Operations 

Success Criteria: 

• Timely completion 

 

Geologic and Hydrogeologic Studies and Data Gathering  

The city intends to obtain general chemistry data and tritium data from all active city wells at 

the time of sampling. The City will coordinate with the MDH the collection of samples to be 

tested.  This sampling will happen between 2023 and 2025.  The city will also cooperate and 

collaborate with various groups conducting geologic or hydrogeologic studies as feasible and 

applicable within the DWSMA area.      

Source of Action: 

• City of Dayton  

Cooperators: 

• MDH, agencies or groups conducting geologic or hydrogeologic studies, well drilling 

companies, and others.   

Time Frame: 

• Summer and Fall sampling events will occur over the 10-year life of this plan.   

• Collaboration on other projects as they occur and as appropriate.   

Estimated Cost: 

• Staff time to coordinate, minimal. 

Objective(s) Achieved: 

• Data Collection and Operations 

Success Criteria: 

• Samples collected 

 

Research Unverified or Unidentified Wells Within DWSMA 

Research and identify unverified wells installed as part of Hennepin County Landfill Scoping 

Investigation. This may include file research as well as visual field investigations to locate any 

surficial indications of well presence. Also includes researching and identifying the four 
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unidentified wells located within the DWSMA of Well #1. The wells are located and documented 

but well construction/abandonment information should be documented.  

Source of Action: 

• City of Dayton and consultants 

Cooperators: 

• DNR, Hennepin County, Local Well Drilling Contractors 

Time Frame: 

• Within two years. 

Estimated Cost: 

• Staff time and consulting time 

Objective(s) Achieved: 

• Well Management 

• Data Collection and Operations 

Success Criteria: 

• Both wells identified and abandoned.  

 

Promoting the Sealing of Unused, Poorly‐Maintained, Damaged, or Abandoned Wells  

If wells are identified, the city will promote any well sealing or cost‐sharing programs available 

through the MDH or Hennepin County that may assist or reimburse the costs and administration 

of sealing unused, poorly‐maintained, damaged or abandoned private wells located within the 

DWSMA area.     

Source of Action: 

• City of Dayton    

Cooperators: 

• MDH, Hennepin County     

Time Frame: 

• Beginning in 2019 and every two years after 

Estimated Cost: 

• Staff time 

Objective(s) Achieved: 

• Well Management 

• Public Education 

Success Criteria: 

• Identify two wells to be abandoned  

 

Identify High Capacity Wells around the DWSMA 

Identify new high-capacity wells proposed for construction or changes in pumping rates for 

existing high-capacity wells within one mile of the WHPAs to determine if increased pumping 

will a) alter the current boundaries of the WHPA(s), or b) impact water quality for existing 

water supply wells within the current WHPA boundaries. Obtain by requesting to the DNR that 

they inform the City of Dayton of any proposed high capacity wells or changes in appropriations 

to existing wells that may impact the well head protection areas for public water supply wells. 

Source of Action: 

• City of Dayton  

Cooperators: 

• DNR 

Time Frame: 

• Within two years. 

Estimated Cost: 

• Staff time 

Objective(s) Achieved: 

• Well Management 
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• Data Collection and Operations 

Success Criteria: 

• completed 

 

    Monitor IWMZ Setbacks 

Continue to monitor setback distances for all new potential sources of contamination located 

within the IWMZs. 

Source of Action: 

• City of Dayton  

Cooperators: 

• City staff 

Time Frame: 

• Annual inspection, in addition to daily visual checks of the area around the city wells. 

Estimated Cost: 

• Staff Time 

Objective(s) Achieved: 

• Well Management 

Success Criteria: 

• If completed 

 

     Regulated Groundwater Data Collection 

Continue collecting groundwater samples for analysis of regulated contaminants and provide 

the data to the MDH.  

Source of Action: 

• City of Dayton  

• MDH 

Cooperators: 

• City staff coordinate with MDH  

• Sample Collection and analysis done by MDH 

Time Frame: 

• As required by permits 

Estimated Cost: 

• Staff time. Sampling and analysis performed by MDH 

Objective(s) Achieved: 

• Data collection and operations 

Success Criteria: 

• Completed as required by permits  
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6.0 Evaluation Program 

 

The success of the city’s Wellhead Protection Program must be evaluated every 2 ½ years in 

order to determine whether the plan is actually accomplishing the intentions of the city. Some 

of the goals while evaluating the plan:   

 

• Track the implementation of the objectives and plan of action identified in Chapter 5 

of this Plan.    

• Determine the effectiveness of specific management strategies regarding the 

protection of the public water supply.  

• Identify possible changes to these strategies which may improve their effectiveness.   

 

By reviewing the Wellhead Protection Program every 2 ½ years, the wellhead protection 

manager can evaluate what is working, what is not, what changes need to be made.  

The city will prepare a written report which will be distributed to the city council for their review 

after which it will be submitted to the MDH.
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7.0 Alternative Water Supply and Contingency 

Strategy 

A Water Supply Contingency plan is included in Appendix H of this report.  
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8.0 Local Government Review and Public Hearing 

 

The draft WHPP was submitted to local units of government for their review and comments on 

January 25th, 2019. The required 60-day review period ended on March 26th, 2019 with the 

comments received from the following local units of government; Metropolitan Council and 

Minnesota Department of Health. 

 

From, April 1st , 2019 to April 23rd , 2019, a copy of the WHPP was kept on file for public review 

at city hall. A public hearing was held the evening of April 23rd, 2019 at the Dayton City Hall as 

part of the regular city council meeting. At the hearing, the following comments were received 

by the public: _______________________.  
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Scoping 2 Decision Notice 



 

 

 

 

August 7, 2017 

 

 

 

Mr. Marty Farrell, Public Works Director 

City of Dayton 

12260 South Diamond Lake Road 

Dayton, Minnesota 55237 

 

Dear Mr. Farrell: 

 

Subject: Scoping 2 Decision Notice and Meeting Summary – City of Dayton – PWSID 1270073       

This letter provides notice of the results of a scoping meeting held with you, Steve Hegland and Jason Quisberg 

(Wench Engineering) and I on June 26, 2017, at Dayton City Hall regarding wellhead protection (WHP) 

planning.  During the meeting, we discussed the data elements that must be compiled and assessed to prepare 

the part of the WHP plan related to the management of potential contaminants in the approved drinking 

water supply management area.  The enclosed Scoping 2 Decision Notice lists the data elements discussed at 

the meeting.  The data elements must be compiled and assessed in terms of their present and future 

implications on the 1) use of the well(s), 2) quality and quantity of water supplying the public water supply 

wells(s), and 3) land and groundwater uses in the drinking water supply management areas.  We also discussed 

a summary of planning issues that were identified during the Part I WHP Plan development process which 

should be considered for inclusion in your Part II WHP Plan. 

 

The city of Dayton has met the requirements to distribute copies of the first part of the WHP plan to local units 

of government and hold an informational meeting for the public.  The city of Dayton will have until November 

7, 2017, to complete its WHP plan. 

 

If a data element is marked on the enclosed notice as a data element that must be used and it does not exist, it 

is helpful if your plan notes this.  MDH will be working with you to develop a draft of the remainder of the 

WHP plan.  I will be contacting you to review the progress of the development of Part II of your plan.  If you 

have any questions regarding the enclosed notice, contact me by email at john.freitag@state.mn.us or by 

phone at (651) 201-4669. 

 

Sincerely, 

 
John Freitag, Planner 

Source Water Protection Unit 

Environment Health Division 

P.O. Box 64975 

St. Paul, Minnesota 55164-0975 

 

JF:ds-b 

Enclosures 

cc:    Brian Noma, MDH Engineer, Metro District Office 

         Tina Goodroad, City Administrator, City of Dayton  

 Ron Struss, Minnesota Department of Agriculture 
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SCOPING 2 DECISION NOTICE  
Low Vulnerability DWSMA 

 

Remainder of the Wellhead Protection Plan 

 

Name of Public Water Supply:  

 

City of Dayton                      PWSID 1270073 

Date:   

 

August 7, 2017 

Name of the Wellhead Protection Manager:    

 

Mr. Marty Farrell, Public Works Director 

Address:   

 

12260 South Diamond Lake Road 

City:   

 

Dayton 

Zip:   

 

55237 

Unique Well Numbers:   

 

611054 (Well #1), 752128 (Well #2) 

Phone:   

 

(763) 427-3224 

 

 

Instructions for Completing the Scoping 2 Form 

 

N R S N = Not required. 

If this box is checked, this data element is NOT necessary for your wellhead protection plan because it is 

not needed or it has been included in the first scoping decision notice.  Please go to the next data 

element. X   

 

 

 

 

 

 

N R S R = Required for the remainder of the plan. 

If this box is checked, this data MUST be used for the "remainder of the plan." 

 X  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

N R S S = Submit to MDH.  If this box is checked, this data element MUST be included in your wellhead 

protection plan and submitted to MDH. 

If there is NO check mark in the "S" box but there is an “X” in the “R” box, this data element MUST be 

included in your plan, but should NOT be submitted to MDH.  This box will only be checked if MDH 

does not have access to this data element.  This will help to reduce the cost by reducing the amount of 

paper and time to reproduce the data element. 

  X 
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DATA ELEMENTS ABOUT THE PHYSICAL ENVIRONMENT 

 

PRECIPITATION 

N R S An existing map or list of local precipitation gauging stations. 
 

X 
 
 

 
 

 
Technical Assistance Comments:    
 

N R S An existing table showing the average monthly and annual precipitation in inches for the preceding five 

years.  
X 

 
 

 
  

Technical Assistance Comments:    
 

GEOLOGY 
 

N 
 

R 
 

S 
 
An existing geologic map and a description of the geology, including aquifers, confining layers, recharge 

areas, discharge areas, sensitive areas as defined in Minnesota Statutes, section 103H.005, subdivision 13, 

and groundwater flow characteristics. 
 
 

 
X 

 
  

Technical Assistance Comments:  The management of all the Drinking Water Supply Management 

Area(s) must reflect what is known about these data elements. 

N R S Existing records of the geologic materials penetrated by wells, borings, exploration test holes, or excavations, 

including those submitted to the department. 
 
 

 
X 

 
  

Technical Assistance Comments:  The management of all the Drinking Water Supply Management 

Area(s) must reflect what is known about these data elements. 

N R S Existing borehole geophysical records from wells, borings, and exploration test holes. 
 
 

 
X 

 
  

Technical Assistance Comments:  The management of all the Drinking Water Supply Management 

Area(s) must reflect what is known about these data elements. 

N R S Existing surface geophysical studies. 
 
 

 
X 

 
  

Technical Assistance Comments:  The management of all the Drinking Water Supply Management 

Area(s) must reflect what is known about these data elements. 

SOILS 

N R S Existing maps of the soils and a description of soil infiltration characteristics. 
 

X 
 
 

 
 

 
Technical Assistance Comments:    
 

N R S A description or an existing map of known eroding lands that are causing sedimentation problems. 
 

X 
 
 

 
  

Technical Assistance Comments:     
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WATER RESOURCES 

N R S An existing map of the boundaries and flow directions of major watershed units and minor watershed units. 

X   
 
Technical Assistance Comments:    
 

N R S An existing map and a list of public waters as defined in Minnesota Statutes, section 103G.005, 

subdivision 15, and public drainage ditches.  
X 

 
 

 
 

 
Technical Assistance Comments:     
 

N R S The shoreland classifications of the public waters listed under subitem (2), pursuant to part 6120.3000 and 

Minnesota Statutes, sections 103F.201 to 103F.221. 
X   

Technical Assistance Comments:     
 

N R S An existing map of wetlands regulated under chapter 8420 and Minnesota Statutes, section 103G.221 to 

103G.2373. 
 

X 
 
 

 
  

Technical Assistance Comments:     

N R S An existing map showing those areas delineated as floodplain by existing local ordinances.  
X 

 
 

 
  

Technical Assistance Comments:      

 

DATA ELEMENTS ABOUT THE LAND USE  

 

LAND USE 

N R S An existing map of parcel boundaries. 

 X X 
 

Technical Assistance Comments:  The management of all the Drinking Water Supply Management 

Area(s) must reflect what is known about this data element. 

N R S An existing map of political boundaries. 

 X X 
 

Technical Assistance Comments:  The management of all the Drinking Water Supply Management 

Area(s) must reflect what is known about this data element. 

N R S An existing map of public land surveys including township, range, and section. 

 X  
 

Technical Assistance Comments:  The management of all the Drinking Water Supply Management 

Area(s) must reflect what is known about this data element.  
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N R S A map and an inventory of the current and historical agricultural, residential, commercial, industrial, 

recreational, and institutional land uses and potential contaminant sources.  
 

 
X 

 
X  

Technical Assistance Comments:  The inventory, mapping, and management of land uses and potential 

sources of contamination for all the Drinking Water Supply Management Area(s) must reflect what 

is known about these data elements, as follows: 

Low Vulnerability  
1) All potential contaminant sources as listed on the attachment [inventory wells:  Near Well #1: 

178 feet in depth of the bottom of the well and deeper; Near Well #2: 200 feet in depth of the bottom 

of the well and deeper) and wells of undocumented or unknown depths for the potential 

contaminant source inventory];  
2) a land use/land cover map and table; and  
3) an inventory of the Inner Wellhead Management Zone (IWMZ). 

As a starting point, MDH will provide a land cover map and table from federal data bases.  This 

data set must be used unless an alternative electronic data set that is more current and detailed is 

available. 

Management strategies must be developed for all land uses and potential sources of contamination. 

N R S An existing comprehensive land-use map. 

 X X  
Technical Assistance Comments:  The management of all the Drinking Water Supply Management Area(s) 

must reflect what is known about this data element.  Include any urban fringe planning areas. 

N R S Existing zoning map. 

 X X  
Technical Assistance Comments:  The management of all the Drinking Water Supply Management Area(s) 

must reflect what is known about this data element. 

PUBLIC UTILITY SERVICES 

N R S An existing map of transportation routes or corridors. 

X    
Technical Assistance Comments: 

 

N R S An existing map of storm sewers, sanitary sewers, and public water supply systems. 

X    
Technical Assistance Comments:      
 

N R S An existing map of the gas and oil pipelines used by gas and oil suppliers. 

X    
Technical Assistance Comments:     
 

N R S An existing map or list of public drainage systems. 

X   
Technical Assistance Comments:      
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N R S An existing record of construction, maintenance, and use of the public water supply well(s) and other wells 

within the drinking water supply management area.  
 

 
X 

 
  

Technical Assistance Comments:  The management of all the Drinking Water Supply Management Area(s) 

must reflect what is known about these data elements.    

 

DATA ELEMENTS ABOUT WATER QUANTITY 

 

SURFACE WATER QUANTITY 

N R S An existing description of high, mean, and low flows on streams. 
 

X 
 
 

 
 

 
Technical Assistance Comments:       
 

N R S An existing list of lakes where the state has established ordinary high water marks. 
 

X 
 
 

 
 

 
Technical Assistance Comments:     
 

N R S An existing list of permitted withdrawals from lakes and streams, including source, use, and amounts 

withdrawn. 
 

X 
 
 

 
  

Technical Assistance Comments:        
 

N R S An existing list of lakes and streams for which state protected levels or flows have been established. 
 

X 
 
 

 
  

Technical Assistance Comments:       
 

N R S An existing description of known water-use conflicts, including those caused by groundwater pumping. 
 

X 
 
 

 
  

Technical Assistance Comments:   
 

GROUNDWATER QUANTITY 

N R S An existing list of wells covered by state appropriation permits, including amounts of water appropriated, type 

of use, and aquifer source.  
 

 
X 

 
 

 

Technical Assistance Comments:  The management of all the Drinking Water Supply Management Area(s) 

must reflect what is known about these data elements. 

N R S An existing description of known well interference problems and water use conflicts. 
 
 

 
X 

 
X 

 

Technical Assistance Comments:  The management of all the Drinking Water Supply Management Area(s) 

must reflect what is known about these data elements. 

N R S An existing list of state environmental bore holes, including unique well number, aquifer measured, years of 

record, and average monthly levels.  
 

 
X 

 
 

 

Technical Assistance Comments:  The management of all the Drinking Water Supply Management Area(s) 

must reflect what is known about this data element. 
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DATA ELEMENTS ABOUT WATER QUALITY  

 
 

SURFACE WATER QUALITY 

N R S An existing map or list of the state water quality management classification for each stream and lake. 
 

X 
 
 

 
  

Technical Assistance Comments:      
 

N R S An existing  summary of lake and stream water quality monitoring data, including: 

1.  bacteriological contamination indicators; 4.  sedimentation; 

2.  inorganic chemicals; 5.  dissolved oxygen; and 

3.  organic chemicals; 6.  excessive growth or deficiency of aquatic plants. 

 
X 

 
 

 
 

 
Technical Assistance Comments:     
 

 
GROUNDWATER QUALITY 

N R S An existing summary of water quality data, including:  1. bacteriological contamination indicators; 

2. inorganic chemicals; and 3. organic chemicals. 

 X  
 

Technical Assistance Comments:  The management of all the Drinking Water Supply Management 

Area(s) must reflect what is known about these data elements. 

N R S An existing list of water chemistry and isotopic data from wells, springs, or other groundwater sampling 

points.  
 

 
X 

 
  

Technical Assistance Comments:  The management of all the Drinking Water Supply Management 

Area(s) must reflect what is known about these data elements. 

N R S An existing report of groundwater tracer studies. 
 
 

 
X 

 
 

 

Technical Assistance Comments:  The management of all the Drinking Water Supply Management 

Area(s) must reflect what is known about this data element. 

N R S An existing site study and well water analysis of known areas of groundwater contamination. 

X   
 
Technical Assistance Comments:   

N R S An existing property audit identifying contamination. 

X   
 
Technical Assistance Comments:   

N R S 

 

An existing report to the Minnesota Department of Agriculture and the Minnesota Pollution Control 

Agency of contaminant spills and releases.  
X    

Technical Assistance Comments:   
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Scoping 2 Meeting  

Wellhead Protection (WHP) Planning Issues Summary 

PWSID: Dayton (1270073) 

 

DWSMA Vulnerability: 

 

  Very Low     Low   Moderate    High    Very High  

 

 

Drinking Water Protection Issues Identified to Date: 

  The clay-rich geologic materials covering the aquifer are thin, discontinuous, or leaky. 

 

 

Old Municipal Well Information: 

  The Minnesota Department of Health has compiled historical information for use in the planning 

process. 

 

Sanborn Maps: 

  Sanborn Maps are available for this area 

  Sanborn Maps are not available for this area 

 

Recommended WHP Measures: 

  Consult with area hydro. 

• Collect general chemistry data and tritium from Wells #1 and #2.  Timeframe: between 

year five and year seven, during the summer, and fall for one year.  Responsibilities: the 

city of Dayton staff to schedule with MDH; sample collection and analysis done by MDH. 

 

• Continue collecting groundwater samples for analysis of regulated contaminants and 

provide the data to MDH.  Responsibilities: MDH staff to schedule with the city of Dayton 

staff; sample collection and analysis done by MDH. 
 

 

This document is intended to be a summary of issues identified to date and is not intended to replace 

the required data elements identified in the Scoping 2 Decision Notice nor is it intended to be an 

exhaustive list of all potential drinking water issues. 
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Part I of the Wellhead Protection Plan 
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Drinking Water Supply Management Area 
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Future Land Use Map 
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Zoning Map 
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Potential Contaminant Source Index 

 

 



Technical 
Memo 

 

 

 

 

Wenck Associates, Inc.  |  1800 Pioneer Creek Center  |  P.O. Box 249  |  Maple Plain, MN 55359-0249 

Toll Free  800-472-2232     Main  763-479-4200     Email  wenckmp@wenck.com     Web  wenck.com 

 

To: Michael Baker, Minnesota Department of Health 

 

From: Jason Quisberg, Wenck Associates, Inc.  

  

Copy: Martin Farrell, City of Dayton 

    

Date: December 17, 2018 

 

Subject: Potential Contaminant Source Inventory 

 

     

As part of the City of Dayton Wellhead Protection Plan development process, a scoping 

meeting was held with representatives from the Minnesota Department of Health, as well as 

City or Dayton staff. A Scoping 2 Decision Notice was received by the MDH as a result of 

this meeting to help define specific requirements of the plan. After the notice was received 

the city began developing an inventory of potential sources which could have an impact on 

well water. The steps the city took in compiling a composite inventory of the contaminant 

sources is described below. 

 

Initially data was obtained from the previous Wellhead Protection Plan as submitted in 2007.  

That information was then updated with information obtained from the EPA Class V well 

index, the MDA WIMN Search, the MDH County well index, and the MPCA WIMN.  

 

All of the data obtained from the searches above was merged into one composite table and 

the information was cross referenced with one another to ensure that duplicate data was 

not presented. Parameters that according to the Scoping Decision Notice were not identified 

to be required on the PCSI were eliminated from the table. The table was then cross 

referenced with the MDH sealed well inventory to eliminate any data sources that had been 

previously sealed.  All wells which were shallower than the depths as listed in the Scoping 

Decision Notice were then eliminated from the table. Those wells in which well log 

information was not available were left within the table. 

 

City Staff was also included in discussions for potential source locations which may not have 

been present on the databases. In addition to searching the aforementioned databases,  

staff also compared the composite source table inventory to existing city infrastructure 

maps to determine potential well and septic sites (for class V injection well status) which did 

not appear on the database searches. After identifying several possible additional sources, 

City Staff searched property files and visited property owners to gather the needed 

information on wells and septic to determine status and classifications.  

 

A test well from a Hennepin County landfill scoping exploration was identified in the review 

of the well records and is identified in this report. City staff attempted to find any historical 

information related to this well to identify sealing records and were unable to locate any 

files. Additional effort in locating test well and its status will be part of the Wellhead 

Protection Plan.  

 



City of Dayton

Wellhead Protection Plan

PCSI Attribute Table

PCSI_ID PIN FAC_NAME ADDRESS CITY ZIP_CODE PCS_C STATUS_C MAT_C PROGRAM_ID TOTAL COMMENT
1 612022210001 City of Dayton NA Dayton 55327 WEL A X100 611054 City of Dayton Well #1

2 3112122340085 Michael & Cheryl McAlpine 15721 Shadyview Lane Dayton 55327 WEL A X100 146058 Domestic Well

3 3112122340093 Lary & Laura Gau 15701 Shadyview Lane Dayton 55327 WEL A X100 146269 Domestic Well

4 3112122340098 Bruce & Mary Graffunder 15720 Brockton Lane North Dayton 55327 WEL A X100 421771 Domestic Well

5 3112122340096 Jeffrey Johnson 15720 Maria St Dayton 55327 WEL A X100 199116 Domestic Well

6 3112122340089 James & Kathleen Fisher 18271 Johnson St Dayton 55327 WEL A X100 NA Domestic Well

7 3112122340088 Neil Engstrom 15781 Shadyview Lane Dayton 55327 WEL A X100 NA Domestic Well

8 612022220003 Patrick & Mary McNeil 15601 Brockton Lane North Dayton 55327 WEL A X100 NA Domestic Well

9 3112122340075 Joseph Frank & Ariane Lalonde 18181 Dayton River Road Dayton 55327 WEL A X100 NA Domestic Well

10 1512022220003 J & J Kranz 14261 Diamond Lake Rd Dayton 55327 WEL A X100 149823 Domestic Well

11 1512022220002 Orville Packer 14211 Diamond Lake Rd Dayton 55327 WEL A X100 160039 Domestic Well

12 NA Dayton - D1017 NA Dayton 55327 WEL U X100 242253 Monitoring well from Hennepin County Landfill Siting Project

T:\3164 Dayton\75 Wellhead Protection Plan\Part 2 Report\Report\PCSI\PCSI Table.xlsx
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Inner Wellhead Management Zone Survey 



INNER WELLHEAD MANAGEMENT ZONE (IWMZ) -
POTENTIAL CONTAMINANT SOURCE INVENTORY (PCSI) REPORT

PUBLIC WATER SYSTEM INFORMATION

COMMUNITYPWS ID

NAME

ADDRESS

1270073

Dayton

Marti Farrell, Water Superintendent, Dayton City Hall, 12260 S Diamond Lake Rd, Dayton, MN  
553279655

FACILITY (WELL) INFORMATION

NAME

FACILITY ID

UNIQUE WELL NO.

COUNTY

Well #1

S01

611054

Hennepin

IS THERE A WELL LOG OR 

ADDITIONAL CONSTRUCTION 

INFORMATION AVAILABLE?

YES

UNDETERMINEDNO

(Please attach a copy)

Environmental Health Division
Drinking Water Protection Section
P.O. Box 64975
St. Paul, Minnesota  55164-0975

Community Non- 

community

Dist. 

from 

Well

PWS ID  /  FACILITY ID UNIQUE WELL NO.

PCSI 

CODE

ACTUAL OR POTENTIAL 

CONTAMINATION SOURCE

ISOLATION DISTANCES (FEET) LOCATION

Minimum Distances
Sensitive 

Well¹

Within 

200 Ft.  

Y / N / U

Est. 

(?)

1270073 S01 611054

Agricultural Related
*AC1 Agricultural chemical buried piping 50 50 N

*AC2 Agricultural chemical multiple tanks or containers for residential retail sale 

or use, no single tank or container exceeding, but aggregate volume 

exceeding 56 gal. or 100 lbs. dry weight

50 50 N

ACP Agricultural chemical tank or container with 25 gal. or more or 100 lbs. or 

more dry weight, or equipment filling or cleaning area without safeguards

150 150 N

ACS Agricultural chemical storage or equipment filling or cleaning area with 

safeguards

100 100 N

ACR Agricultural chemical storage or equipment filling or cleaning area with 

safeguards and roofed

50 50 N

ADW Agricultural drainage well² (Class V well - illegal³) 50 50 N

AAT Anhydrous ammonia tank (stationary tank) 50 50 N

AB1 Animal building, feedlot, confinement area, or kennel, 0.1 to 1.0 animal unit 

(stockyard)

50 20 100/40 N

AB2 Animal building or poultry building, including a horse riding area, more than 

1.0 animal unit

50 50 100 N

ABS Animal burial area, more than 1.0 animal unit 50 50 N

FWP Animal feeding or watering area within a pasture, more than 1.0 animal unit 50 50 100 N

AF1 Animal feedlot, unroofed, 300 or more animal units (stockyard) 100 100 200 N

AF2 Animal feedlot, more than 1.0, but less than 300 animal units (stockyard) 50 50 100 N

AMA Animal manure application use discretion use discretion N

REN Animal rendering plant 50 50 N

MS1 Manure (liquid) storage basin or lagoon, unpermitted or noncertified 300 300 600 N

MS2 Manure (liquid) storage basin or lagoon, approved earthen liner 150 150 300 N

MS3 Manure (liquid) storage basin or lagoon, approved concrete or composite 

liner

100 100 200 N

MS4 Manure (solid) storage area, not covered with a roof 100 100 200 N

OSC Open storage for crops use discretion use discretion N

SSTS Related
AA1 Absorption area of a soil dispersal system, average flow greater than 

10,000 gal./day

300 300 600 N

AA2 Absorption area of a soil dispersal system serving a facility handling 

infectious or pathological wastes, average flow 10,000 gal./day or less

150 150 300 N

AA3 Absorption area of a soil dispersal system, average flow 10,000 gal./day 

or less

50 50 100 N

4 4 4AA4 Absorption area of a soil dispersal system serving multiple family 

residences or a non-residential facility and has the capacity to serve 20 or 

more persons per day (Class V well)²

50/300/150 50/300/150 100/600/300 N

CSP Cesspool 75 75 150 N

AGG Dry well, leaching pit, seepage pit 75 75 150 N

*FD1 Floor drain, grate, or trough connected to a buried sewer 50 50 N

*FD2 Floor drain, grate, or trough if buried sewer is air-tested, approved 

materials, serving one building, or two or less single-family residences

50 20 N

14/3/2019



Community Non- 

community

Dist. 

from 

Well

PWS ID  /  FACILITY ID UNIQUE WELL NO.

PCSI 

CODE

ACTUAL OR POTENTIAL 

CONTAMINATION SOURCE

ISOLATION DISTANCES (FEET) LOCATION

Minimum Distances
Sensitive 

Well¹

Within 

200 Ft.  

Y / N / U

Est. 

(?)

1270073 S01 611054

*GW1 Gray-water dispersal area 50 50 100 N

LC1 Large capacity cesspools (Class V well - illegal)² 75 75 150 N

MVW Motor vehicle waste disposal (Class V well - illegal)² illegal illegal N

PR1 Privy, nonportable 50 50 100 N

PR2 Portable (privy) or toilet 50 20 N

*SF1 Watertight sand filter; peat filter; or constructed wetland 50 50 N

SET Septic tank 50 50 N

HTK Sewage holding tank, watertight 50 50 N

SS1 Sewage sump capacity 100 gal. or more 50 50 N

SS2 Sewage sump capacity less than 100 gal., tested, conforming to rule 50 20 N

*ST1 Sewage treatment device, watertight 50 50 N

SB1 Sewer, buried, approved materials, tested, serving one building, or two or 

less single-family residences

50 20 N

SB2 Sewer, buried, collector, municipal, serving a facility handling infectious or 

pathological wastes, open-jointed or unapproved materials

50 50 N

*WB1 Water treatment backwash holding basin, reclaim basin, or surge tank with 

a direct sewer connection

50 50 N

*WB2 Water treatment backwash holding basin, reclaim basin, or surge tank with 

a backflow protected sewer connection

20 20 N

Land Application
SPT Land spreading area for sewage, septage, or sludge 50 50 100 N

Solid Waste Related
COS Commercial compost site 50 50 N

CD1 Construction or demolition debris disposal area 50 50 100 N

*HW1 Household solid waste disposal area, single residence 50 50 100 N

LF1 Landfill, permitted demolition debris, dump, or mixed municipal solid waste 

from multiple persons

300 300 600 N

SVY Scrap yard 50 50 N

SWT Solid waste transfer station 50 50 N

Storm Water Related
SD1 Storm water drain pipe, 8 inches or greater in diameter 50 20 N

SWI Storm water drainage well² (Class V well - illegal³) 50 50 N

SM1 Storm water pond greater than 5000 gal. 50 35 N

Wells and Borings
*EB1 Elevator boring, not conforming to rule 50 50 N

*EB2 Elevator boring, conforming to rule 20 20 N

MON Monitoring well record dist. record dist. N

WEL Operating well record dist. record dist. Y 176

UUW Unused, unsealed well or boring 50 50 N

General
*CR1 Cistern or reservoir, buried, nonpressurized water supply 20 20 N

PLM Contaminant plume 50 50 N

*CW1 Cooling water pond, industrial 50 50 100 N

DC1 Deicing chemicals, bulk road 50 50 100 N

*ET1 Electrical transformer storage area, oil-filled 50 50 N

GRV Grave or mausoleum 50 50 N

GP1 Gravel pocket or French drain for clear water drainage only 20 20 Y 36 N

*HS1 Hazardous substance buried piping 50 50 N

HS2 Hazardous substance tank or container, above ground or underground, 56 

gal. or more, or 100 lbs. or more dry weight, without safeguards

150 150 N

HS3 Hazardous substance tank or container, above ground or underground, 56 

gal. or more, or 100 lbs. or more dry weight with safeguards

100 100 N

HS4 Hazardous substance multiple storage tanks or containers for residential 

retail sale or use, no single tank or container exceeding 56 gal. or 100 lbs., 

but aggregate volume exceeding

50 50 N

HWF Highest water or flood level 50 N/A N

*HG1 Horizontal ground source closed loop heat exchanger buried piping 50 50 N

*HG2 Horizontal ground source closed loop heat exchanger buried piping and 

horizontal piping, approved materials and heat transfer fluid

50 10 N

24/3/2019



Community Non- 

community

Dist. 

from 

Well

PWS ID  /  FACILITY ID UNIQUE WELL NO.

PCSI 

CODE

ACTUAL OR POTENTIAL 

CONTAMINATION SOURCE

ISOLATION DISTANCES (FEET) LOCATION

Minimum Distances
Sensitive 

Well¹

Within 

200 Ft.  

Y / N / U

Est. 

(?)

1270073 S01 611054

IWD Industrial waste disposal well (Class V well)² illegal³ illegal³ N

IWS Interceptor, including a flammable waste or sediment 50 50 N

OH1 Ordinary high water level of a stream, river, pond, lake, reservoir, or 

drainage ditch (holds water six months or more)

50 35 N

*PP1 Petroleum buried piping 50 50 N

*PP2 Petroleum or crude oil pipeline to a refinery or distribution center 100 100 N

PT1 Petroleum tank or container, 1100 gal. or more, without safeguards 150 150 N

PT2 Petroleum tank or container, 1100 gal. or more, with safeguards 100 100 N

PT3 Petroleum tank or container, buried, between 56 and 1100 gal. 50 50 N

5PT4 Petroleum tank or container, not buried, between 56 and 1100 gal. 50 20 N

PU1 Pit or unfilled space more than four feet in depth 20 20 N

PC1 Pollutant or contaminant that may drain into the soil 50 50 100 N

SP1 Swimming pool, in-ground 20 20 N

*VH1 Vertical heat exchanger, horizontal piping conforming to rule 50 10 N

*VH2 Vertical heat exchanger (vertical) piping, conforming to rule 50 35 N

*WR1 Wastewater rapid infiltration basin, municipal or industrial 300 300 600 N

*WA1 Wastewater spray irrigation area, municipal or industrial 150 150 300 N

*WS1 Wastewater stabilization pond, industrial 150 150 300 N

*WS2 Wastewater stabilization pond, municipal, 500 or more gal./acre/day of 

leakage

300 300 600 N

*WS3 Wastewater stabilization pond, municipal, less than 500 gal./acre/day of 

leakage

150 150 300 N

*WT1 Wastewater treatment unit tanks, vessels and components (Package plant) 100 100 N

*WT2 Water treatment backwash disposal area 50 50 100 N

Additional Sources (If there is more than one source listed above, please indicate here).

Potential Contamination Sources and Codes Based on Previous Versions of this Form
none found within 200' of this well.

¹ A sensitive well has less than 50 feet of watertight casing, and which is not cased below a confining layer or confining materials of at least 10' in thickness.

* New potential contaminant source.

⁴ Isolation distance is determined by average flow per day or if a facility handles infectious or pathological wastes.

⁵ A community public water-supply well must be a minimum of 50 feet from a petroleum tank or container, unless the tank or container is used for emergency 

pumping and is located in a room or building separate from the community well; and is of double-wall construction with leak detection between walls; or is protected 

with secondary containment.

This form is based on the new isolation distances in Minnesota Rules, Chapter 4725, related to wells and borings adopted August 
4, 2008, and Minnesota Rules, Chapter 4720, related to wellhead protection.

² These sources, known as Class V underground injection wells, are regulated by the federal U.S. Environmental Protection Agency.

³ These sources are classified as illegal by Minnesota Rules, Chapter 4725.

34/3/2019
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GP1

PWS ID / FACILITY ID UNIQUE WELL NO.
SETBACK DISTANCES All potential contaminant sources must be noted on sketch.
Record the distance and approximate compass bearing of each potential contaminant source from the well,
and identify the source using the "Source Code".  Unlabeled points on the map are unsealed wells.

1270073 S01 611054

INSPECTOR DATEFreitag, John 3 - 12 - 2019
4/3/2019 4

Reminder Question: Were the wellhead protection measure(s) implemented?
Is the system monitoring existing nonconforming sources of contamination? X
Were the isolation distances maintained for the new sources of contamination? X

0°

45°

90°

135°

180°

315°

270°

225°

50' 100' 150' 200'

Y N N/A



611054UNIQUE WELL NO.S011270073PWS ID  /  FACILITY ID

WHP MEASURE 

IMPLEMENTED? 

Y or N

RECOMMENDED WELLHEAD PROTECTION (WHP) MEASURES
DATE 

VERIFIED

COMMENTS

4/3/2019 5

For further information, please contact:

Minnesota Department of Health
Drinking Water Protection Section
Source Water Protection Unit
P.O. Box 64975
St. Paul, Minnesota  55164-0975

Section Receptionist: 651-201-4700
Division TDD: 651-201-5797 or MN Relay Service @ 1-800-627-3529 and ask for 651-201-5000



INNER WELLHEAD MANAGEMENT ZONE (IWMZ) -
POTENTIAL CONTAMINANT SOURCE INVENTORY (PCSI) REPORT

PUBLIC WATER SYSTEM INFORMATION

COMMUNITYPWS ID

NAME

ADDRESS

1270073

Dayton

Marti Farrell, Water Superintendent, Dayton City Hall, 12260 S Diamond Lake Rd, Dayton, MN  
553279655

FACILITY (WELL) INFORMATION

NAME

FACILITY ID

UNIQUE WELL NO.

COUNTY

Well #2

S02

752128

Hennepin

IS THERE A WELL LOG OR 

ADDITIONAL CONSTRUCTION 

INFORMATION AVAILABLE?

YES

UNDETERMINEDNO

(Please attach a copy)

Environmental Health Division
Drinking Water Protection Section
P.O. Box 64975
St. Paul, Minnesota  55164-0975

Community Non- 

community

Dist. 

from 

Well

PWS ID  /  FACILITY ID UNIQUE WELL NO.

PCSI 

CODE

ACTUAL OR POTENTIAL 

CONTAMINATION SOURCE

ISOLATION DISTANCES (FEET) LOCATION

Minimum Distances
Sensitive 

Well¹

Within 

200 Ft.  

Y / N / U

Est. 

(?)

1270073 S02 752128

Agricultural Related
*AC1 Agricultural chemical buried piping 50 50 N

*AC2 Agricultural chemical multiple tanks or containers for residential retail sale 

or use, no single tank or container exceeding, but aggregate volume 

exceeding 56 gal. or 100 lbs. dry weight

50 50 N

ACP Agricultural chemical tank or container with 25 gal. or more or 100 lbs. or 

more dry weight, or equipment filling or cleaning area without safeguards

150 150 N

ACS Agricultural chemical storage or equipment filling or cleaning area with 

safeguards

100 100 N

ACR Agricultural chemical storage or equipment filling or cleaning area with 

safeguards and roofed

50 50 N

ADW Agricultural drainage well² (Class V well - illegal³) 50 50 N

AAT Anhydrous ammonia tank (stationary tank) 50 50 N

AB1 Animal building, feedlot, confinement area, or kennel, 0.1 to 1.0 animal unit 

(stockyard)

50 20 100/40 N

AB2 Animal building or poultry building, including a horse riding area, more than 

1.0 animal unit

50 50 100 N

ABS Animal burial area, more than 1.0 animal unit 50 50 N

FWP Animal feeding or watering area within a pasture, more than 1.0 animal unit 50 50 100 N

AF1 Animal feedlot, unroofed, 300 or more animal units (stockyard) 100 100 200 N

AF2 Animal feedlot, more than 1.0, but less than 300 animal units (stockyard) 50 50 100 N

AMA Animal manure application use discretion use discretion N

REN Animal rendering plant 50 50 N

MS1 Manure (liquid) storage basin or lagoon, unpermitted or noncertified 300 300 600 N

MS2 Manure (liquid) storage basin or lagoon, approved earthen liner 150 150 300 N

MS3 Manure (liquid) storage basin or lagoon, approved concrete or composite 

liner

100 100 200 N

MS4 Manure (solid) storage area, not covered with a roof 100 100 200 N

OSC Open storage for crops use discretion use discretion N

SSTS Related
AA1 Absorption area of a soil dispersal system, average flow greater than 

10,000 gal./day

300 300 600 N

AA2 Absorption area of a soil dispersal system serving a facility handling 

infectious or pathological wastes, average flow 10,000 gal./day or less

150 150 300 N

AA3 Absorption area of a soil dispersal system, average flow 10,000 gal./day 

or less

50 50 100 N

4 4 4AA4 Absorption area of a soil dispersal system serving multiple family 

residences or a non-residential facility and has the capacity to serve 20 or 

more persons per day (Class V well)²

50/300/150 50/300/150 100/600/300 N

CSP Cesspool 75 75 150 N

AGG Dry well, leaching pit, seepage pit 75 75 150 N

*FD1 Floor drain, grate, or trough connected to a buried sewer 50 50 N

*FD2 Floor drain, grate, or trough if buried sewer is air-tested, approved 

materials, serving one building, or two or less single-family residences

50 20 N

14/3/2019



Community Non- 

community

Dist. 

from 

Well

PWS ID  /  FACILITY ID UNIQUE WELL NO.

PCSI 

CODE

ACTUAL OR POTENTIAL 

CONTAMINATION SOURCE

ISOLATION DISTANCES (FEET) LOCATION

Minimum Distances
Sensitive 

Well¹

Within 

200 Ft.  

Y / N / U

Est. 

(?)

1270073 S02 752128

*GW1 Gray-water dispersal area 50 50 100 N

LC1 Large capacity cesspools (Class V well - illegal)² 75 75 150 N

MVW Motor vehicle waste disposal (Class V well - illegal)² illegal illegal N

PR1 Privy, nonportable 50 50 100 N

PR2 Portable (privy) or toilet 50 20 N

*SF1 Watertight sand filter; peat filter; or constructed wetland 50 50 N

SET Septic tank 50 50 N

HTK Sewage holding tank, watertight 50 50 N

SS1 Sewage sump capacity 100 gal. or more 50 50 N

SS2 Sewage sump capacity less than 100 gal., tested, conforming to rule 50 20 N

*ST1 Sewage treatment device, watertight 50 50 N

SB1 Sewer, buried, approved materials, tested, serving one building, or two or 

less single-family residences

50 20 N

SB2 Sewer, buried, collector, municipal, serving a facility handling infectious or 

pathological wastes, open-jointed or unapproved materials

50 50 N

*WB1 Water treatment backwash holding basin, reclaim basin, or surge tank with 

a direct sewer connection

50 50 N

*WB2 Water treatment backwash holding basin, reclaim basin, or surge tank with 

a backflow protected sewer connection

20 20 N

Land Application
SPT Land spreading area for sewage, septage, or sludge 50 50 100 N

Solid Waste Related
COS Commercial compost site 50 50 N

CD1 Construction or demolition debris disposal area 50 50 100 N

*HW1 Household solid waste disposal area, single residence 50 50 100 N

LF1 Landfill, permitted demolition debris, dump, or mixed municipal solid waste 

from multiple persons

300 300 600 N

SVY Scrap yard 50 50 N

SWT Solid waste transfer station 50 50 N

Storm Water Related
SD1 Storm water drain pipe, 8 inches or greater in diameter 50 20 N

SWI Storm water drainage well² (Class V well - illegal³) 50 50 N

SM1 Storm water pond greater than 5000 gal. 50 35 N

Wells and Borings
*EB1 Elevator boring, not conforming to rule 50 50 N

*EB2 Elevator boring, conforming to rule 20 20 N

MON Monitoring well record dist. record dist. N

WEL Operating well record dist. record dist. N

UUW Unused, unsealed well or boring 50 50 N

General
*CR1 Cistern or reservoir, buried, nonpressurized water supply 20 20 N

PLM Contaminant plume 50 50 N

*CW1 Cooling water pond, industrial 50 50 100 N

DC1 Deicing chemicals, bulk road 50 50 100 N

*ET1 Electrical transformer storage area, oil-filled 50 50 N

GRV Grave or mausoleum 50 50 N

GP1 Gravel pocket or French drain for clear water drainage only 20 20 Y 32 N

*HS1 Hazardous substance buried piping 50 50 N

HS2 Hazardous substance tank or container, above ground or underground, 56 

gal. or more, or 100 lbs. or more dry weight, without safeguards

150 150 N

HS3 Hazardous substance tank or container, above ground or underground, 56 

gal. or more, or 100 lbs. or more dry weight with safeguards

100 100 N

HS4 Hazardous substance multiple storage tanks or containers for residential 

retail sale or use, no single tank or container exceeding 56 gal. or 100 lbs., 

but aggregate volume exceeding

50 50 N

HWF Highest water or flood level 50 N/A N

*HG1 Horizontal ground source closed loop heat exchanger buried piping 50 50 N

*HG2 Horizontal ground source closed loop heat exchanger buried piping and 

horizontal piping, approved materials and heat transfer fluid

50 10 N

24/3/2019



Community Non- 

community

Dist. 

from 

Well

PWS ID  /  FACILITY ID UNIQUE WELL NO.

PCSI 

CODE

ACTUAL OR POTENTIAL 

CONTAMINATION SOURCE

ISOLATION DISTANCES (FEET) LOCATION

Minimum Distances
Sensitive 

Well¹

Within 

200 Ft.  

Y / N / U

Est. 

(?)

1270073 S02 752128

IWD Industrial waste disposal well (Class V well)² illegal³ illegal³ N

IWS Interceptor, including a flammable waste or sediment 50 50 N

OH1 Ordinary high water level of a stream, river, pond, lake, reservoir, or 

drainage ditch (holds water six months or more)

50 35 N

*PP1 Petroleum buried piping 50 50 N

*PP2 Petroleum or crude oil pipeline to a refinery or distribution center 100 100 N

PT1 Petroleum tank or container, 1100 gal. or more, without safeguards 150 150 N

PT2 Petroleum tank or container, 1100 gal. or more, with safeguards 100 100 N

PT3 Petroleum tank or container, buried, between 56 and 1100 gal. 50 50 N

5PT4 Petroleum tank or container, not buried, between 56 and 1100 gal. 50 20 N

PU1 Pit or unfilled space more than four feet in depth 20 20 N

PC1 Pollutant or contaminant that may drain into the soil 50 50 100 N

SP1 Swimming pool, in-ground 20 20 N

*VH1 Vertical heat exchanger, horizontal piping conforming to rule 50 10 N

*VH2 Vertical heat exchanger (vertical) piping, conforming to rule 50 35 N

*WR1 Wastewater rapid infiltration basin, municipal or industrial 300 300 600 N

*WA1 Wastewater spray irrigation area, municipal or industrial 150 150 300 N

*WS1 Wastewater stabilization pond, industrial 150 150 300 N

*WS2 Wastewater stabilization pond, municipal, 500 or more gal./acre/day of 

leakage

300 300 600 N

*WS3 Wastewater stabilization pond, municipal, less than 500 gal./acre/day of 

leakage

150 150 300 N

*WT1 Wastewater treatment unit tanks, vessels and components (Package plant) 100 100 N

*WT2 Water treatment backwash disposal area 50 50 100 N

Additional Sources (If there is more than one source listed above, please indicate here).

Potential Contamination Sources and Codes Based on Previous Versions of this Form
none found within 200' of this well.

¹ A sensitive well has less than 50 feet of watertight casing, and which is not cased below a confining layer or confining materials of at least 10' in thickness.

* New potential contaminant source.

⁴ Isolation distance is determined by average flow per day or if a facility handles infectious or pathological wastes.

⁵ A community public water-supply well must be a minimum of 50 feet from a petroleum tank or container, unless the tank or container is used for emergency 

pumping and is located in a room or building separate from the community well; and is of double-wall construction with leak detection between walls; or is protected 

with secondary containment.

This form is based on the new isolation distances in Minnesota Rules, Chapter 4725, related to wells and borings adopted August 
4, 2008, and Minnesota Rules, Chapter 4720, related to wellhead protection.

² These sources, known as Class V underground injection wells, are regulated by the federal U.S. Environmental Protection Agency.

³ These sources are classified as illegal by Minnesota Rules, Chapter 4725.

34/3/2019



!(!(

!(

GP1

PWS ID / FACILITY ID UNIQUE WELL NO.
SETBACK DISTANCES All potential contaminant sources must be noted on sketch.
Record the distance and approximate compass bearing of each potential contaminant source from the well,
and identify the source using the "Source Code".  Unlabeled points on the map are unsealed wells.

1270073 S02 752128

INSPECTOR DATEFreitag, John 3 - 12 - 2019
4/3/2019 4

Reminder Question: Were the wellhead protection measure(s) implemented?
Is the system monitoring existing nonconforming sources of contamination? X
Were the isolation distances maintained for the new sources of contamination? X

0°

45°

90°

135°

180°

315°

270°

225°

50' 100' 150' 200'

Y N N/A



752128UNIQUE WELL NO.S021270073PWS ID  /  FACILITY ID

WHP MEASURE 

IMPLEMENTED? 

Y or N

RECOMMENDED WELLHEAD PROTECTION (WHP) MEASURES
DATE 

VERIFIED

COMMENTS

4/3/2019 5

For further information, please contact:

Minnesota Department of Health
Drinking Water Protection Section
Source Water Protection Unit
P.O. Box 64975
St. Paul, Minnesota  55164-0975

Section Receptionist: 651-201-4700
Division TDD: 651-201-5797 or MN Relay Service @ 1-800-627-3529 and ask for 651-201-5000
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WATER SUPPLY CONTINGENCY PLAN (4720.5280) 

WATER SUPPLY CONTINGENCY PLAN 
DAYTON, MINNESOTA 

 

INDEX 
A. PURPOSE 

 
B. PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY CHARACTERISTICS 

1. Current Supply Source 

2. Treatment 

3. Storage and Distribution 

4. Maps and Plans 

 
C. PRIORITY OF WATER USERS DURING WATER SUPPLY EMERGENCY 

 
D. ALTERNATIVE WATER SUPPLY 

1. Surface Water Sources and Treatment 

2. Bottled Water 

3. System Interconnects 

4. Other Alternative Water Resources 

 
E.       INVENTORY OF AVAILABLE EMERGENCY EQUIPMENT AND MATERIALS 

 
F.       EMERGENCY IDENTIFICATION PROCEDURES 

 
G. NOTIFICATION PROCEDURES 

1. Agency Contact List 

2. Critical Response Personnel 

3. Public Information Plan 

 
H. MITIGATION AND CONSERVATION PLAN 

1. Mitigation  
2. Conservation 

 
Annual Plan Review    

Date Reviewed Reviewer Comments 

   

   
Plan Distribution 

Person Organization Plan Location 

   

   
 

Prepared by: ___________________________________________Date Approved: _________________________ 
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A. PURPOSE 

 

The purpose of this Contingency Plan is to establish, provide and keep updated, certain emergency 

response procedures and information for the City of Dayton, MN which may become vital in the 

event of a partial or total loss of public water supply services. 

 

B. PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY CHARACTERISTICS 

 

1. Current Supply Source 

The water supply system consists of 2 primary wells from the “Tunnel City - Wonowoc” Aquifer.  

One elevated water storage tank of 500,000 gallon capacity in NE Dayton and one pressure tank 

with a 1,000 gal capacity located in NW Dayton.  Fluoride, chlorine and polyphosphate are injected 

into the water supply for treatment.  

   

Table B-1: Supply Well Information 

 Well 

Number _1_ 

Well  

Number _2_ 

Supply Source CTCW -

Tunnel City - 

Wonewoc 

CTCW - 

Tunnel City - 

Wonewoc 

Well Depth (ft.) 385 404 

Well Diameter 

(in.) 

16 18 

Latitude of 

Well 

45.090820 45.090997 

Longitude of 

Well 

-93.739791 -93.738648 

Well Capacity 

(gpm) 

300 1100 

Well 

Production 

(gpm) 

300 400 

 

2. Treatment 

 

Fluoride, chlorine and polyphosphate are injected into the water supply. 

   

3. Storage and Distribution 

 

The City of Dayton currently has one elevated water tower with a 500,000 gal capacity in NE 

Dayton and a pressure tank with 1,000 gal capacity in NW Dayton.  

  

4. Maps/Plans 

 

Detailed plans and maps of the city’s infrastructure are available at city hall and public works. 
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C. PRIORITY OF WATER USERS DURING WATER SUPPLY EMERGENCY 

   

Table C-1—Water Use Priority Grouping 

Priority Group and Rank Average daily use 2016 (gpd) Reduction daily use (gpd) 

Residential--#1 174,000 gpd 138,000 gpd 

C/I/I-#2 33,100 gpd 30,100 gpd 

Irrigation--#3 5,100 gpd 0 

Unaccounted   

Wholesale   

 

Triggers for implementing water supply reduction/allocation procedures:   

 

● The static water level drops substantially. 

● Pumps are unable to keep up with demand. 

● Disruption in the water supply. 

● Governor determines and declares by executive order water deficiency. 

 

D. ALTERNATIVE WATER SUPPLY OPTIONS 

 

1. System interconnects with other water supplies:  

 

The city of Dayton shares an interconnect with the City of Champlin water supply system in NE 

Dayton. In the event that water supply issues arise in either city, a valve is manually opened along 

CR 121 which allows for the supply of water from the neighboring system.  

 

Response Time: 30 minutes 

 

2. Emergency or backup wells:   

 

The City of Dayton has no current backup wells. 

 

Response Time: NA 
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3. Bottled water supplies, delivery and distribution:  

  

Target 

15300 Grove Circle N 

Maple Grove, MN 55369 

763-447-2506 

 

The Home Depot 

15800 Grove Circle North 

Maple Grove MN 55369 

763-494-0117 

 

Core & Main 

15800W 79th Street 

Eden Prairie, MN 55344 

952-937-9666   

 

Vessco Inc 

8217 Upland Circle 

Chanhassan, MN 55317 

952-941-2678 

  

Response Time:  12-24 Hours 

  

 

4. Other:   

 

The City of Dayton has a mobile generator that can operate Well 1 in the Old Village, in the event of 

an Electrical outage. Well 2 does not currently have a generator receptacle for auxiliary power, this 

is something that the City is looking to address in the short term. In the event of an emergency at 

Well 2 the interconnect with the City of Champlin would be activated to provide an alternate water 

source. 

 

Response Time: 1-2 Hours 
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E. INVENTORY OF AVAILABLE EMERGENCY EQUIPMENT AND    

  MATERIALS 

 

Table E-1 contains a list of services, equipment and supplies that are available to the City 

(system) to respond to a disruption in the water system.  It is believed that the items 

contained in Table E-1 would be adequate to respond to most (if not all) water system 

emergencies. 

 

Table E-1: Critical Service Contacts 
Technical/Contracted 

Services/Supplies 

Name Work Telephone  Alternate Telephone 

MRWA Technical Services MN Rural Water Association 800-367-6792       

Well Driller/Repair Renner Well Drilling 763-427-6101 763-286-5283 

Pump Repair “ “ “ 

Electrician Bruce Bennet 763-421-2948 612-363-7121 

Plumber                   

Backhoe Dayton Public Works 612-751-8847 763-427-3224 

Chemical Feed Jeremy Bakke 952-941-2678 612-979-7438 

Meter Repair Dayton Public Works 612-751-8847 763-427-3224 

Generator Marty Farrell 612-751-8847 763-427-3224 

Valves Renner Well drilling 763-427-6101 763-286-5283 

Pipe & Fittings “ “ “ 

Water Storage Martin Farrell 612-751-8847 763-427-3224 

Laboratory Water Labs Elk River 763-441-7509       

Engineering firm Jason Quisberg 612-384-5379 763-252-6873 
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F. EMERGENCY IDENTIFICATION PROCEDURES 

 

Table F-1  Procedural Operations 
Incident Response Procedure and Comments 
Identify Disruption 

(Mechanical Failure 

or Contamination) 
  
  

Identifies the nature of the water supply disruption and communicates this information to the 

city government, the alternate response coordinator, and members of the emergency oversight 

committee. 

Notify Response 

Personnel  
  

Notifies city staff and others who will be responding to the water supply emergency about the 

disruption and coordinates their efforts to correct it. 

Incident Direction 

and Control 
  

Identifies the actions that are needed to correct the water supply emergency and directs 

responders to implement corrective actions. 

Internal 

Communication 
  

Communicates the status of response efforts to the primary spokesperson and the emergency 

oversight committee as needed to keep these parties informed of progress. 

Assess Incident 

Response on 

Continual Basis 
  

Assesses the efforts to correct the water supply disruption on a continual basis so that the 

emergency oversight committee can take additional corrective actions and the city 

government and public are updated on issues and progress. 

Define the Extent of 

a Contamination 

Disruption 
  

Coordinates efforts to define the extent and level of the contamination with local, state, and 

federal agencies.  This may continue after initial corrective actions have been implemented. 

Assess the Extent of 

a Mechanical 

Disruption 
  

Coordinates efforts to define the cause(s) of the mechanical failure and the equipment, data, 

and expertise that are needed to correct it.  Identifies measures for reducing the likelihood that 

a similar mechanical failure will not occur in the future. 

Identify Need for an 

Alternate Water 

Supply 
  

Evaluates the need to obtain an alternate water supply, the time period it is needed before the 

water supply emergency is corrected, and the actions that are needed to achieve it. 

 

G. NOTIFICATION PROCEDURES 

 

1. Agency Notification 

 

Table G-1 contains the names and telephone numbers for contacts at various local and state agencies 

that may be notified in the event of an public water supply system emergency.  Based on the nature 

of the emergency and the information available, various representatives from this listing will be 

selected by the response coordinator to be part of the emergency oversight committee which will 

then meet throughout the duration of the emergency to aid in decision-making and positive 

outcomes.   
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Table G-1. Agency Emergency Contact Listing 

 

 
State and Local Emergency 

Response Contacts 

Name Work Telephone  Alternate Telephone 

State Incident Duty Officer Minnesota Duty Officer 800/422-0798 Out State 651-649-5451 Metro 

County Emergency Director Hennepin County Emergency 

Management 

612-596-0250       

National Guard Minnesota Duty Officer 800/422-0798 Out State 651-649-5451 Metro 

Mayor/Board Chair Tim McNeil 612-751-8707 763-427-3224 

Fire Chief Jason Mickelson 612-751-8158       

Sheriff Hennepin County Sheriff 612-348-3744       

Police Chief Paul Enga 763-274-4966 763-427-2017 

Ambulance North Memorial Ambulance 

Service 

763-520-5200       

Hospital Hennepin County Medical Center 612-873-3000       

 
State and Local Agencies Name Work Telephone  Alternate Telephone 

MDH District Engineer Isaac Bradlich 651-201-3971       

MDH Drinking Water Protection  651-201-4700       

State Testing Laboratory Minnesota Duty Officer 800/422-0798 Out State 651-649-5451 Metro 

DNR Area Hydrologist Mark Bushinski 651-259-5879       

 
Utilities Name Work Telephone  Alternate Telephone 

Electric Company Elk River Utilities 763-441-2020       

Electric Company Xcel Energy 1-800-960-6235  

Electric Company Connexus 763-323-2650  

Electric Company City of Anoka 763-576-2750  

Gas Company Centrepoint 612-321-4939 612-372-5050 

Telephone Company                   

Gopher State One Call Utility Locations 800-252-1166 651-454-0002 

Highway Department Hennepin County Highway Dept 612-596-0300       

 
Mutual Aid Agreements Name Work Telephone  Alternate Telephone 

Neighboring Water System Champlin 612-968-2167       

Maple Grove Maple Grove 763-494-6370 763-494-6377 

Emergency Water Connection Mike Bramwell 612-968-2167       

Materials                   
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2. Critical Response Personnel 

 
Emergency Response Team Name Work Telephone  Alternate Telephone 

Emergency Response Lead 

 

Martin Farrell 612-751-8847 763-427-3224 

Alternate Emergency 

Response Lead 

Paul Enga 763-274-4966 763-427-2017 

Water Operator Mark Carlson 612-751-8874 763-427-3224 

Alternate Water Operator Victor Martinez 612-750-1887 763-427-3224 

Public Communications Tina Goodroad 763-421-3487 763-427-4589 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3. Public Information Plan 

 

A. Public relations center 

 

 

Public Information Center Location during Emergency: Public Works 

Building 

 

Times Available: Any 

   

 

B. Information checklist to be conveyed to the public and media 

 

Name of water system  

City of Dayton Water Supply System 

 

Contaminant of concern and 

date_____________________________________________ 

 

Source of contamination 

________________________________________________ 

 

Public health hazard 

________________________________________________ 

 

Steps the public can take: 
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_____________________________________________ 

 

Steps the water system is taking:  

The City’s Primary Goal is restoring piped water service. 

_________________________________________ 

 

Other information__________________________________ 

 

 

 

a. Media Contacts 

 

Media  Name Telephone Address 

Newspaper Crow River News 763-477-5771 Dayton, MN 

Radio WCCO 612-204-0331 Minneapolis, MN 

City Website www.cityofdaytonmn.com 763-427-4589 Dayton, MN 

 

 

 

H.        MITIGATION AND CONSERVATION PLAN 

 

1. MITIGATION  

 

a. Infrastructure maintenance/upgrades/maps - The city currently has up to date maps of 

the water distribution system.. 

b. Regular inspection of tower, well, pump house - Weekly inspections are performed at 

pump houses and towers. Wells are inspected annually by licensed well contractor. 

c. Staff emergency training – Annually, city representatives attend Emergency 

Management meetings in various locations. 

d. System security analysis – All pump houses and water towers are equipped with 

security alarms and locks with proper signage on structures. 

e. Site new backup well – None at this time. 

f. System valving to isolate problems – Yes, the water distribution system has valves 

throughout the system to isolate potential contamination or isolate water leak/break if 

needed.  

g. Sanitation procedures for construction/repairs – Contractors follow guidelines for 

sanitation on new construction and repairs to the water distribution system. 

 

2. CONSERVATION  

 

a. Water Meters – all connections from the distribution system are metered. 

b. Public Education – Conservation pamphlets are available at city hall, City’s web site 

and the bi-monthly newsletter, information distribution at Heritage Days festival. 

c. Rate structure – The City of Dayton currently has a tiered rate structure per thousand 

gallons with a monthly base rate, and consistently evaluates the rate structure to 

inform of any alterations to the system are required and implemented.  



 

Toll Free: 800-472-2232          Email: wenckmp@wenck.com          Web: wenck.com 

        

MINNESOTA   COLORADO  GEORGIA NORTH DAKOTA SOUTH DAKOTA WYOMING  

Maple Plain Bloomington New Hope  Denver Roswell Fargo Pierre  Cheyenne 

763-479-4200 952-831-5408 800-368-8831 602-370-7420 678-987-5840 701-297-9600 605-222-1826 307-634-7848 

 Windom Woodbury   Mandan  Sheridan 

 507-831-2703 651-294-4580   701-751-3370  307-675-1148 

     Williston   

     800-472-2232   

 

 

 

 

 


	04-23-19 Agenda
	A. 04-09-19 Council Minutes
	B. Payment of Claims 04-23-19
	C. RESOLUTION Fire funds
	D. Activity Center RFP
	ACTIVITY CENTER STAFF REPORT
	ACTIVITY CENTER RFP 04-23-2019 (new)

	E. CITY HALL ROOF REPLACEMENT
	F. stategic Plan
	staff report - strategic plan
	WORKING DRAFT OF STRATEGIC PLAN POLICY DOCUMENT

	G. 2019 Car show application
	car show staff
	car show application

	H. Activity Center position
	Staff report on Activity Center position
	Activity Center Coordinator

	L. Audit 2018 Dayton - CL - FINAL
	L. Audit2018 Dayton - FS - FINAL
	M. 2019-04-23_Approve Plans-Auth Ad for Bid_NW Area Water
	N. Regular Meeting_Part 2 Wellhead Protect Plan Public Hearing and Approval



